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DEPARTMENT OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
REPARATIONS 1932-1933

FINAL REPORT

To His Excellency
the Governor General in Council,

May 1T Preast Your BXCELLENCY:

I have the honour to submit the following Final Report under and in virtue
of Royal Commission issued to me dated September 6, 1930, dirccting that 1
hear and make report in respect of claims for reparations not heard by the
previous Comunisioners, or which have been filed since the date of the earlier
report. T e

Since the date of my Further Report, dated November 30, 1932, the Coin=——
mission has held sessions at Toronto, and has heard cases at Montreal and

- Ottawa, with a view to completing the 286 outstanding claims. Where claimants
failed to appear and the claims were pressed, they were requested to complete
the records by documentary evidence.  In the result, all open dockets have heen
closed and recommendations made in all records before the Commissicn,

The present report involves an expenditure of 855,121.10, with $36,345.19
estimated interest, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum to, say, March 14, 1933—
total of $91,466.29. Adding this total to the sums allowed in previous reports
gives a grand total of $1,123,702.08,

Summarizing the work done by the Commission, T have the honour to report
the folowing number of cases dealt with:—

Report ‘?’:\’&f;{ Date \\vgn';{l 8 Principal Int cest Totnl

$ cts. $ cta. $ [AER

Interim.............. 272 [March 6, 193t...... 188 345,379 26 212,380 38 557,768 04
Armeniun......... ... .. May 9,1030......0L......... ..o o
Supplementary....... 54 Puly 21,19031...... 14 131,014 93 95,804 10 226,819 03
Maltreatment..... ... 340 Man, 13, 1932...... 132 93,500 00 50,343 13 140,843 13
Otokfo................ 1 |March 15, 1932...... 1 3500288 (.............. 35,062 58

; Further.............. 324 [Nov. 30, 1932...... 57 37,810 00 24,032 41 61,842 41
: inal......o.ooool L 280 tMarch 4, 1933...... 64 55,121 10 36,345 19 01,400 20
:‘ Total.......... LT 456 608,787 87 424,911 21 | 1,123,702 08

Nore.—The interest amount mentioned in tho lust item is an estimate.

Of the total number of 1,277 cases dealt with, 415 claims were filed by
civilinns and 862 claims by military ex-prisoners of war, and of these 63 civilian
and 108 military claims were disallowed for lack of prosecution or withdrawal
by the claimants, ’

Total ceses heard, 1,067,

S
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Awnrds | Withdrawn | Disallowed | Total
—_ ete.
CIvilRn lRIME. . e e e 255 53 107 415
Military elaims. oo 201 108 553 862
LR €Y P ) 456 161 660 1,277

The principles upon which the assessments have been made and the methods
adopted in recommending awards are stated in Opinions annexed to and forming
part, of my earlicr reports, .

The present. report includes findings relating to the dependents of the mem-
hers of the erew of the ill-fated schooner Otokio, whose loss was the subject of
a previous special report. These elaimants were given an opportunity to be
heard during the last Maritime session of the Commission,

In those cases in which elaimants, for one reason or another, have advanced
further claims since the date of earlicr awards, & general recommendation will
be found herewith, briefly stating the grounds upon which no further action is
recommended,

May I again express my appreciation for the faithful, intelligent and con-
sistent assistanee and co-operation given me by the Deputy Commissioner, Major
H. Spencer Relph; the Sceretary, Mr. John A. Duffy; and the efficient staff, in
carrying out the difficult and detailed labour involved in the preparation and

-~ hearing of these cases and the completion of the reports.

Al of which is respectfully ‘submitted-for-Your Excellency's consideration.

FRROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner.

Orrawas, Mareh 4, 1933,

SCHOONER *“0TOKIO”

Cuse . Claimant :\':::3?(“ Decision
$ cta,
1550 L........... Acker, Charles--deceased. . ... ... oooal L e Unstated.. ... 1,600 00
1550 N.ooooo o [Allison, James Ac—deceased. oo o .. 1,500 00
| 6% 7¢I J Wurke, Jobn Fo—decensed ..o u A 1,500 00
1550 ... Conrad, Milledge—decensed. ..o oo “ s { 1,500 00
1,500 00
l 1,600 00
1550 C'........ ... |Helsler, Geonpe—derensed.. . ... i “ ....1 Disallowed.
1550 H. JMeLeod, Calvin—decensed.......... oo oo s oot Disallowed.
1550 G... Meleod, John—deceased . ... ..o e “ 2,000 00
1550 D Mosher, John--deconsed. ..o oo “ 1,200 00
1550 1. Nauss, Elwood—decensed. ... v 1,500 00
1550 ... .. [Publicover, Charles—deceased... ... ... .. ... “ e 2,500 (0
1550 Ao, . Riteey, Newton—deceased. ... L e u N | 1,500 00
3 \ 1,500 00
1550 K........... Riteey, Wellaee—deceased. ...t e u .| Disallowed.
1550 M.......... smeltzer, Stephen—deceased. ..o " -} Disallowed.
1550 B.......... Smith, Sydenham—deceased . ... R ‘ . ! 1,500 00
1,500 00
{1,500 00

14 cases—-10 with 57 interest from January 10, 1820,
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FINAL REPORT 4
CASES 1550 (A to N)—DEPENDENTS SCHO_ONER “OTOKIO”

The schooner Otokio was lost with her entire orew on or about September 6,
1018. I have already held that her loss is to be attributed to enemy action and
awards have been rendered and paid to her owners for her loss and the cargo loss.
Claims have been presented on behalf of the dependents of the ill-fated members
of the orew. ‘

As pointed out in Opinion No. 2, to my Interim Report, in considering claims
of dependents for the loss of life, it is not the value of the life lost which must be
determined, but the loss sustained by those who were dependent upon the
deceased. The factors or clements to be considered in computing the loss have
been there stated and need not be repeated. In the majority of the cases now
under examination the deceased left a widow and & child or children. Many of
the widows have since remarried, thus terminating in most instances any further
dependency upon their former husbands. During their period of widowhood,
these widows were compelled, as best they could, to provide for themsolves and
their children—mostly of tender years—and the burden was particularly heavy.
Quite apart, thorefore, from any legal principle that arrears of maintenance are
not properly recoverable, I consider that the widow who has been compelled to
support herself and her children through the loss of her husband, should receive
compensation during the period she was in such position, covering the expense
she necessarily incurred to maintain herself and her children. 'Taking as a basis
the amount earned by the deceased and the sum he would probably have con-
tributed to the support of his family had he survived, an estimate of the amount
payable to the widow may be made. Previous cases have been decided upon this
principle and I would propose to adhere thereto in the present case. I consider

__also that the child who has beon deprived of a father's personal services in his

or her care, adusation or supervision has sustained damage for which she or he,
in the speeial circumstances of each case, is entitled to be compensated. Under
previous awards, many of the present claimants, as heirs at law of the deceased
members of the crew, have received swins of money, representing the share to
which the decedent was entitled as n sharcholder in the vessol, as also the share
in the catch of the vessel to which such decedents beeame entitled. In assessing
these olaims 1 consider that this compensation should be taken into account.

With these considerations in mind, I proceed to deal with the various elaims
presented.

A, NewtoN RITCEY—MASTER,

The deceased, a Canadian, left a widow and one child, the latter aged 2
years and 11 months at the time of her father’s death. The widow remarried
November 1, 1922, and is now Murs. Titus Conrad. It is in cvidence that, during
hor period of widowhood, olaimant, Enid Conrad, reccived financial assistance
from her brother-in-law, Harris Riteey, and further that the estate of her
husband was probated at an amount over $5,000, which amount was received by
the widow. Claim is made by claimant on her own behalf and also on behalf of
her minor child. Havijig regard to all the ecircumstances, and bearing in mind
the amounts already received, as above pointed out, I would recommend payment
to the olaimant, Enid Conrad, of $1,500, with interest thorcon, at the rate of 5
per cent por annum, from the 10th January, 1920, to date of payment. As to the
daughter, Pauline Riteey, now aged 17 years, I would recommend a payment of
$1,500, with interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per cont per annum, from the 10th
January, 1920, to date of payment, payable to her legal guandian, in accordance

with the laws of Nova Scotia. e

.



8 ' REPARATIONS 1932-1933

B. SypENHAM SmiTH—MEMBER oF CREW,

The deceased, a Canadian, left o widow and two children, Solomon Edward
smith (also called Armold) aged one year and two months at the time of his
father's death, and Cora Kathleen Smith born after her father’s doath (December
20, 1918). The widow remarried on December 22, 1926, and is now Mrs. Mary
Lee Hirtle, " T regard the widow as entitled to an award during her period of
widowhood. Having regard to all the cireumstances, and bearing in mind the
amounts alrendy received, as above pointed out, I would recommend a payment
to Mary Lee Hirtle of 81,600, with interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per
annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of payment. As to the two children, now
aged respectively 14 years and 13 years, ‘)oth of whom were clearly depondent
upon the deceaserd, I wounld recommend payment of $1,500 each, with interest
tiereon, at the rate of § per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of
payment, pavable to theiv legal guardians, in aceordance with the laws of Nova
scotin. A further elaim was presented on behalf of a sister of the deceased,
Ia Smith, who is deelared to have been dependent upon him.  While the
claimant may, in fact, have received support from her deceased brother during
Lis Lifetime, T cannot find that she is to be regarded as a surviving dependent
within_the meaning of the relevant sections of the Treaty of Versailles, Her
claiin must be disallowed,

(. Girorae HESLER—MENMBER oF CREW,

The deceased, a Canadian, was unmarried.  Claim s made by Kenneth
Creaser, in his quality of exceutor to the estate of the late Margaret Creaser, by
whom is is said the decensed was adopted, and upon whom she was dependent.
Margaret Creaser died on November 22, 1920, She had been appointed Admin-
istratrix to the cstate of the deceased on November 23, 1919, There ean be no
claim on the ground of dependeney in this case inasmuch as elaimant is not a
curviving dependent, even were the legal relationship between the deceased and
Ms. Creaser established, which has not been done.

D. Jorux Mosner—MEeEMBER OF CREW,

The deceased, a Canadian, left a widow and one child, Anson Mosher, aged
7 years and 10 months at the time of his father’s death, The widow remarried
in 1920 and is now Mvs. John Himmelman, The evidence discloses that her
present hushand is now insane and confined in an institution, and that his wife
supports herself by her own labours, and presumably may look to her son, who
is now of age, for assistance, Having regard to all the circumstances, and bear-
ing in mind tee amount already received, as above pointed out, I would recom-
mend a pavment to the claimant, Mrs. John Himmelman, of $1,200, with
interest thercon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920,
to date of payment. As to the gon, Anzon Mosher, now of age, no claim is made.

It CuarLks PubricovEr—MeMBER OF CREW,

The decensed, a Canadian, left a widow and two children, Geraldine, aged

18 vears at the time of her father's death, and Otto, aged 12 years at that time.
The widow did not remarry. Having regard to all the circumstances, and bear-
ing in mind the amounts already received, as above pointed out, I would recom-
mend o payment to the widow, Eliza Publicover, of $2,600, with interest thereon,
“ at the rate of 6 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of payment.
As to the two children, there is no evidence of dependency in regard to the
daughter, who was 18 years of age at the time of her foth.or's death. Tho son,
who is now of age, makes no claim.
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F. MiLLenge CoNraD—MEMBER OF CREW,

The deceased, a Canadian, left a widow and two children, Collins Amos
Jonas, aged 2 years and 10 months at the timé of his father's death, and Ralph
Lorenzo Conrad, aged 1 year at the same time. The widow remarried a brother
of the decensed, Lorenzo Conrad, on June 17, 1922, Claim is made by the widow
of deceased as well on her own behalf as for her two minor children. Having
regard to all the circumstances, and bearing in mind the amount already received,
as above pointed out, I would recommend a payment to the widow, Cora Conrad,
of 81,500, with interest thercon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from
January 10, 1920, to date of payment. As to the two children, still minors, 1
would recommend payment of $1,600 each, with interest thercon, at the rate of
6 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of payment, payable to
their legal guardians, in accordance with the laws of Nova Scotia,

G. Jonx McLron—MeMBER oF Criw,

The deceased, a Canadian, left a widow and three children, Susie Melcod,
aged 14 years at the time of her father’s death, Ross Mel.cod, aged 10 years,
and Horace MclLeod, aged 7 years at the same time. Another son of the
deceased, Calvin MeLeod accompanied his father aboard the Otokio, and lost his
life at the time of her dizsappearance. The widow did not remarry. Claim is made
by the widow on ihe ground of dependency. Tt will be observed that the three
children are now of age. They have not presented separate claims and [ cannot
regard them as “ swrviving dependents " within the meaning of the Treaty of
Versailles {Annex, See. 1—pp. 11, Interim Report). Having regard to all the
cireumstances, and bearing in mind the amounts already received, as above
pointed out, I would recommend a payment to the widow, Rosena Meleod, of
$2.000, with interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January
10, 1920, to date of payment.

H. Carviny McLeop—MeMaen or Crew.

The decensed, a Canadian, was a son of John Mel.cod, also a member of
the erew of the Otokio. Deceased was unmarried, Claim is made by the mother,
Rosena Mcleod, on the ground of dependency. The recond does not disclose
that claimant was dependent upon her son, her claim being in respeet of the
loss of her husband, for which she is receiving an award. The claim cannot,
therefore, be allowed.

I. Cuarnks AckeErR—NMEMBER OF CREW.

The deceased, a Canadian, was unmarried, but left a mother, by whom
claim is made, on the ground of dependency., Her husband, Nathaniel Acker,
died in 1924, but had been unable to work, through illness, for 12 years hefore
his death, and claimant alleges that she supported him by her own work., This
fact is corroborated by the evidence of a neighbour. The deceased contributed
to the support of his mother. Having regard to all the circumstances, and bear-
ing in mind the amount already received, as above pointed out, . would recom-
mend payment to the mother of the deceased, Eunice Acker, of $1,600, with
interest thercon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920,
to date of payment.

J. Joun Freberick BURKE—MEMBER oF CrEW. :

The doceased, a Cunadian, left a widow and one child, Jean Winifred, horn
a few weeks previous to the death of her father, The widow, who remarried on
March 15, 1920, Spurgeon Mcisner, died on April 17, 1027. Claim is made by
Spurgeon Meisner, the child’s stepfather, on her behalf as a dependent. of the
deceased. The dependency is established. Having regard to all the circum-
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stances, and bearing in mind the amoum already received, as above pointed out,
T would recommend a payment of $1,600. with interest thereon, at the rate of
5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of payment, payable to the -
legal guardian of the minor, Jean Winifred Burke, in accordance with the laws of
Nova Scotia.

K. Wanrace Ritcey—MeMsER or CreEw,

The deceased, a Canadian, was unmarried. Claim is made by his mother,
Rosetta Riteey, on the ground of dependency. It appears from the recond that
claimant had remarried previous to the death of her son. The claim, on the
ground of dependency, is not pressed, and could not be maintained.

I.. Erwoop Navss—MgeMBER OF CREW,

The deceased, a Canadian, left a widowed mother, who now makes claim on
the ground that deceased was her sole support. Deceased was unmarried.
Claimant’s hbusband died in September, 1918, as the result of injuries sustained
in 1917, The evidence establishes that claimant was partly dependent upon her
son. Having regard to all the circumstances, and bearing in mind the amount
already received, as above pointed out, I would recommend a payment to
claimant, Antoinette Nauss, of $1,500. with interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per
cent per apnum, from January 10, 1920, to date of payment.

M. SterueN SMELTZER—COOK.

The deceased, a Canadian, was cook aboard the Otokio. He would appear
to have left a widow, Letitin Smeltzer, who, however, died on October 8, 1924.
Claim is now made by Harris Smeltzer, as administrator of the estate of Stephen
Smeltzer and heir-at-law of the late Letitia Smeltzer. It is evident that there
can be no claim on the ground of dependency, the widow of deeeased having died;
any elaim she may have had is not transmitted to her estate.

N. James A. ALLison—MeMBER oF CREW,

The deceased, a Canadian, was unmarried, but left surviving him a father
and mother. Chiim is now made by the father on the ground of dependency.
It is proved that claimant was ill and unable to work for many years and was
supported, in part at least, by his son. T think it is only reasonable to suppose
that deceased would have continued to support his indigent parents. Upon the
whole and bearing in mind the amount already received, as above pointed out,
I would recommend a payment to James Allison of 81,500, w'th interest thereon,
at the rate of 5 per cont per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner.

Orrawa, February 11, 1933.
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CIVILIAN CLAIMS

n

T

Amount
Caso Claimant Naturo of Claim claimed Decision
No.
2325 |Andorson, August.............. Toss of personal effects onjUnstated...|Dismissed.
schooner Wallena Gertrude,
sunk July 21, 1017,
2327 |Anderson, Robert Nelson...... Loss of personal cffects and|$1,008.25...]8800.00 interest from
solatium re ss. Dundee, sunk Jan. 10, 1620.
Jan. 31, 1917,
2302 |Booth,John................... Loss of personal effecta and|Unstated. . .($500.00 interest from
solatium re sa. Crispin, sun Jan. 10, 1920,
March 29, 1917,
2314 |Breen, Miss Hattio B.......... Loss of lifo of brother......... Unstated. . .|Dismissed.
2737 |Brown, Edward W., Estate of .|L.oss of personal cffects on|Unstated..,{Dismissed,
schooner Lillian H.
2306 {Brown, W. A...........covvnts Ioss of pevsonal effects on{Unstated...|Dismissed.
schooner A, Piatt Andreuws,
sunk August, 20, 1918,
2513 {Crooks, Capt. Arthur.......... loss of personal effects on|$875.00..... $700.00 intorest from
schooner Hestic A. Crooks, Jan. 31, 1917,
. sunk in January, 1017.
2385 |LEnslow, Ellen....ooo.vvvntvun Lors of personal effects and|Unstated...|$600.00 interest from
solatium of deceased son on Jan, 10, 1020,
ﬁ;.lg'aimoouun, sunk April 20,
2675 |Frazier, Jobn..., ............. Loss of personal effects and|Unstatod...{8600.00 intcrest from
solatium re schooner Reli-{ Jan. 10, 1820,
ance, sunk August 19, 1018,
2746 |Gilmore, Harry............... Loss of personal offects and|Unstated...] $1,200.00 interest
solatium ress. Mount Temple, from Jan. 10, 1920.
sunk Decomber 6, 1016,
2736 }Hawx, Capt. Frederick G...... Loss of porsonal effects on{$285.00..... £285.00 interest from
schooner Lillian M., sun Jan. 17, 1917,
January 17, 1917,
2789 ardine, Charles H............ Porsonal in ulgr on 8s. Hesper-$5,000.00. .. .| Dismissed.
tan, sunk Sopt. 4, 1015,
2310 [Keitley, Mrs. Minnie G........ Ioss of personal effects on 83.{$286.10..... $286.10 interest from
. 411?9';?5".“"' sunk September Bept. 4, 1915,
2534 |Lo Vatte, Regioald............ Personnl effects and solatium|Unstated. . .|$500.00 interest from
rl‘gia.;. Morwenna, sunk May 20, Jan. 10, 1920.
2389 [MaoDonnell, James R., Estate|l.oss of personal effects of de-| Unstated. . .|$600.00 intorest from
of ceased and solatium re schoo- Jan. 10, 1020.
ner J. J, Flakerly, sunk Aug-
gust 25, 1918,
2743 |Marshall, William Wallace..... Personal effects and solativin{Unstated. . .($500.00 interest from
;8 s;bl((r;ardcprc sunk October Jan. 10, 1920,
2389 |McPherson, John........... +..{loss of personal effects on saUnatated. . | Dismissed.
l\nul.s}t);t;d on July 22, 1910,
2349 {Moorrees, John Pieter (3., Es-|Loss of personal effects of de-{Unstated. . .{$700.00 interest from
tate of ceased andsolatium re schoo. Jan. 10, 1920.
ner Mayola, sunk ¥Fob. 16,
2800 (Morgan, Ernest Adrinn, Estatejloss of lifo of deceased on|Unstated...[$2,000.00 cach inter-
of (two claimnnnts). schooner Verna M. Lohnecs, est from Jan. 10,
sunk on Sept. 9, 1018, 1920,
2391 |Muise, William.............. ..{loss of personal effocts opUnstated...|Dismissed.
schooner J. J. Flaherly, sunk
August 25, 1018,
2343 Muny, Alfred................. Loss of personal offects and|Unstated...{$600.00 interest from
so'atiumn re schooner Muriel, Jan. 10, 1920,
sunk August 3, 1018,
2676 [Myett, Richard, Estato of.....|Loas of porsonal effects of de-|$600.00.....{$600.00 intorest from
ceased and golatium re achoo- Jun, 10, 1620,
ner Reliance, on August 10,
2708 |Ramsay, George.............. Loss of personal effect 2n ss.|Unstated. . .[Dismissed,
Demelerton, sunk March 13,
2324 |Sjogren, Karl......., ......... Lolss of personal effecta on as.iUnatated.. .| Dismissed.
.argo.
2333 |Snow, Joonard................ Loas of personal cffocts andiUnstated...}[$600.00 intercat from
el oo o L. .. ._ __| solatitin re schooner Lauro, Jan. 10, 1920.
“sunk Aptf) 28,1017 - -l b
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Cn.so Amount
No. Claimant Naturo of Claim clsimed Decision
- 2300 (Watt, James................... Loss of personal effects on|Unstated...|Disraiind.

schooner J. J, Flaherty, sunk
Aug. 25, 1918,

2720 |Wesley, Charles............... Loss of personal cffects and]Unstated. . .|$600.00 interest from
solatium re schooner Lillian Jan, 10, 1920,
M., on Janunrf' 17, 1917,

2348 {White, Jeo, Estate of......... |Loss of personal effects of de-| Unstated. . [$600.00 interest from

ceased and  solatium  on Jun, 10, 1920,
schooner J, J. Flaherty, sunk
Augunrt 25, 1018,

2701 |Williatns, Charlea B........... Loss of personal offects on|Unstated. .. .[$250.00; no interest.
schooner Rob Roy, sunk
August 3, 1918.

2550 {York, William, Fatate of.. .. ... Inlss of life of deccased on ss.|Unstated. . .| Dismissed.
.usilania.

ot e e 30
CASE 2325—AUGUST ANDERSON

This elaim arises out of the destruetion of the three masted schooner Wallena
Gertrude, by enemy action, on July 21, 1917, off Santa Maria, Azores. The loss
of the vessel, in the manner indieated, is established by Admiralty Reports, and
her loss has been the subjeet of a previous award (Case 2326).

The elaimant was employved as cook abvard the vessol and makes elaim for
the loss of his personal eficets. Tt appears from claimant’s testimony that he is
not a British subject although he had been resident in Canada for many yvears.
He was of Norwegian birth and never became naturalized in this country.,
Sinee the date of the hearing his attorneys have advised that claimant died
#uddenly on November 29, 1932, at Parrshoro, N.S.

In the circumstances, it is impossible to reach a finding in favour of claim-
ant’s estate.  As an alien, elaimant had no standing before the Commission and
his elaim failed.  On the whole, neither the elaimant nor his estate is entitled to
make claim for loss of personal effeets and solatium.  The elaim must be
disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 15, 1932,

CASE 2327—ROBERT NELSON ANDERSON

This claim arises out of the destruction of the ss. Dundee, on January 31,
1917, by enemy action, 10 miles N, by W. from St. Ives Head, Cornwall, with
loss of one life.  The loss of the vessel, in the manner indicated, is cstablished by
Admiralty reports and certificate from her owners, which morcover attests the
fact that cinimant was aboard, as Muster, at the time of the loss.

The claimant, a Canadian, makes claim for the loss of his personal cffects,
navigation instruments avd a sum of cash which he declares to have been in the
ship’s safe when she went awn,  The claim is stated at the sum of $1,008.25, of
which amount, $615 was in vash. As to this latter item, it has not been shown
that this money was the personal property of elaimant. 1t would rather appear
to have been the property of his employers.

Claimant has establishod the essential clements to substantiate his olaim
and T consider that he is entitled to an award upon the same basis as Master
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Mariners in the Merchant Service. Dieregarding the chaim for oash lost, and
dealing with the case upon the basis of the seale awards referred to in Opinion
No. 3 to my Interim Report, I would recommend a payment to claimant of $800,
wh interest thercon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920,
to date of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commisstoner.
Orrawa, December 13, 1932.

CASE 2382—JOHN BOOTH

This claim arises out of the destruction of the ss. Crispin, by enemy action,
on March 29, 1917, off Hook Point, with the loss of lives. The fact of the loss of
the vessel, in the manner indicated, is established by Admiratty reports, and the
presence of clairaant aboand as an able seaman has also been proven.

Claimant is a British subject, born in England. In his statement of claim,
and at the heaving, he declared that he hiad come to Canada to reside in 1922,
and for this reason the claim was disallowed for want of jurisdiction (see Opinion
No. 1 to my Interim Report). Since that time claimant has alleged that he had
become resident in Canada in April, 1917, at Minto, New Brunswick, where he
worked nas a miner and that he went to sea on June 5, 1817, signing Canadian
articles as an A.B. He contends that these circumstances, coupled with his
stated intention of remaining a resident of Canada, establish a residence
which qualifies his olaim for consideration by this Commission. Claimant has
been successful in establishing that he became resident in Cansda prior to
January 10, 1920, and I therefore considor that his claim should be treated on
the same basis as other seamen in the Merchant Service. He claims for loss of
personal effeets and the usual solatium. I would recommend a payment to
elaimant of $500, with interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from
January 10, 1920, to date of payment.

ERROT M. McDOUGALL,
Commuissioner.
Orrawa, February 6, 1933,

CASE 2314—MISS HATTIE B. BREEN

Notice of claim was given by the above named olaimant, apparently based
upon the loss of the lives of her two brothers who served, during the war, in the
Navy, and upon whom she was partially dependent. Claimant was advised that
this Commission could not entertain such a claim and she has pursued the matter
no further, although given notice that she might appear before the Commission at
its Halifax sescons on June 18, 1932, For purposes of record the claim is
regarded as withdrawn,

ERROI, M. McDOUGALL,

Conunissioner,
Orrawa, January 5, 1933. :
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CASE 2737—EDWARD W. BROWN, Estate of

Notice of elaim was received on behalf of the Estate of the late Edward W.
Brown, who was master of the schooner Lillian H. when she was destroyed by
encmy action. The claim was filed for loss of personal effects and the usual
solatium. It has since developed that the deceased had become an American
citizen before the date of the loss, and notice of withdrawal of the claim has been
given by his attorney.  The elaim is, accordingly, regarded as withdrawn.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner.
Orrawa, January 11, 1933.

CASE 2366—W. A. BROWN

This elaim arises out of the destruction of the United States fishing schooner
A. Piatt Andrews by enemy action on August 20, 1918, off the coast of Nova
Scotia. The fact of the loss of the vessel, in the manner indicated, has been
established by Report of the United States Mixed Claims Commissior, and her
loss has been the subject of previous awards (Case 1639 and others).

The olaimant was cook aboard the vessel and lost his personal effecis when
the vessel went down. He now makes elaim for the vatue thereof and the usual
solatium. It is shown by the creiv list, furnished by the United States Mixed
Cluims Commission, that elaimant was aboard at the time stated. Claimant did
not appear before the Commission, but alleges that he was Canadian born but is
now naturalized as a citizen of the United States. The date of his naturalization
is not shown. When advised of this fact claimant produced another sworn
affidavit that he had never become a citizen of the United States.

In these circumnstances, in the absence of better evidence of citizenship, 1
am unable to entertain the claim.  Claimant cannot, when it serves his interest,
thus alter a previously 'sworn statement. The elpim must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commisstoner,
Orrawa, December 20, 1932,

CASE 2513—CAPTAIN ARTHUR CROOKS

The claim arises out of the loss of the three mased sailing schooner Bessie
A. Crooks, destroyed by enemy action in January 1917. 'The fact of her loss,
in the manner indicated, was determined in previous decision contained in my
Interim Report (Case 1857, p. 53).

The claimant was master and part owner of the vessel, but did not sail
aboard her upon the ill-fated voyage, duc to iliness at home. She sailed with
Captain F. H. Walley, as Master (Case 1908). Claimant, a Canadian, now
advances claim for the loss of his personal eficets and navigating equipment which
were aboard the vessel when she sailed and was lost. He claims & sum of $875,
as the value of such property loss. It is satisfuctorily established that claimant's
effects were, in fact, aboard the vessel.

Applying the principles states in Opinion No. 3 to my Interim Report, I am
of opinion that claimant is entitled to an award for loss of personal effects. T
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find the amount somewhat high in the circumstances, and would recommend a
payment to claimant of $700, with interest thereon, ‘at the rate of 5- per-cent
per annuin, from January 31st, 1917, to date of payment

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 17, 1937, ~

CASE 2385—ELLEN ENSLOW

This claim arises out of the destruction of the ss. Cairngowan, by enemy
action, on April 20th, 1916. The fact of the loss of the vessel, in the manner
indicated, is established by Admiralty reporis and certifieate of her owners.

At the time of her loss one, Nathan Enslow, a Canadian, was serving aboard
as a seaman. Nathan Enslow is now deceased and claim is made by his mother
for the value of the effects lost by her son, and the usual solatium. The deceased
was unmarried and died intestate. His prosencc aboard is proven by the state-
ments of other members of the crew and certificate from owners. -1t appears that
Enslow had also been aboard the Mayola when she was destroyed by enemy
action at a later date. An award was made in his favour by my predecossor,
Mr. Friel (Case 6).

I consider, however, that his Estate is entitled to the usual award for loss
of personal effects and solatium. There has been filed in the record an assignrent
in favour of their mother by the brothers and sisters of ducaased of their interest
in the intestate succession of their brother. In these Cll'C\lll]StﬂnCCb I consider
thit the award should be made to the mother, rather than to impose upon these
ncedy people the cost of obtaining administration of deccased’s Estate. I would,
accordingly, recommend a payment to Mrs. Ellen ISnslow of $600, covering the
loss to her deceased son (Sce Opinion No. 3 to my Interim Report), with interest
thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to-date
of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commdisstoner.
Orraw., December 17, 1932.

CASE 2675—JOHN FRAZIER

This claim arises out of the destruction of the United States fishing schooner
Reliance, by enemy action, on August 10, 1918, on Georges fishing banks. The
fact of the loss of the vessel, in the manner 1n(hcated is established by report of
the United States Mixed Claims Commission, which Tribunal granted an award
to the vessel’s owners on November 11, 1925.

Claim is now made by the above named claimant, who alleges that he was
& member of the crew and lost his personal cffects when the vessel was lost. He
also claims the usual solatium. Claimant did not appear before the Commis-
sion, but documentary evidence has been produced establishing that he was
aboard at the time of her loss, that he was agvarently and still is & British sub-
ject, born in Nova Scotia, and that he took to the boats with other members of
the crew. There is some confusion as to his name, which has become anglicized,
but T am satisficd that claimant’s identity has been properly established.

In these circumstances, I am of opinion that claimant is entitled to an
award upon the same basis as other fishermen clnimants (See Opinion No, 3 W
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my Interim Report). 1 would, accordingly, recommend a payment to him of
2600 with interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10,
1920, to date of pavment. .

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

v Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 13, 1932,

CASE 2746—HARRY GILMORE

This claim arises out of the destruction of the ss. Mount Temple on Decem-
ber 6, 1916, by enemy action. The loss of the vessel, in the manner indicated,
is established by Admiralty Reports, and her loss has been the subject of
numerous awards by previous Commissioners, and several decisions by myself
{Case 1641, J. Lucasse, p. 71, and Case 1197—Boulton, p. 68, Interim Report).

Claimant, a Canadian born, shipped on board the ss. Mount Temple at
Montreal, November 29, 1916, in the capacity of horseman. His presence on
board the vessel at the time of loss is established by a letter from the General
Superintendent of the Canadian Pacific Steamships, Limited, which recites “ The
only Hary Gilmore I can find in my records for this ship is one signed in as
horseman, After the vessel was lost he was taken with the rest of the érew to
a German prison and there exchanged and proceeded back to New York from
whence he was repatriated to Montreal.” This office had no knowledge of Gil-
more as a horseman on the vessel as in his statement of claim he stated he was

" a fireman. It has now been established that he signed on as a horseman but
worked as a fireman when the stoking crew became short handed. After eap-
ture, he, with others, was eventually landed at “winemunde and finally reached
Brandenburg. He remained here for 23 month- “.nd was repatriated to England
after the Armistice.

His claim is for loss of clothing, cash and wages, and no allegation of injury
is made.

I am satisfied that elaimant was a member of the crew of the ss. Mount
Temple in the capacity of horseman and fireman, and under the circumstances
I consider that he is entitled to tne same consideration as that given to other
claimants who suffered the same loss and internment without personal injury.

The claim for loss of personal effects and solatium can best be dealt with
under a lump sum award for internment. I would therefore recommend that
payment be made to the claimant of the sum of $1,200, with interest thercon,
at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawy, January 24, 1933,

CASE 2736—CAPTAIN FREDERICK G. HAWX

_This claim arises out of the destruction of the Canadian railing vessel
Lillian H, by encmy action, on January 17, 1917, off Old Head of Kinsale. The
fact of the loss of the vessel, in the manner indicated, is established by Admiralty
T’bu%'\orts, and her loss has been the subjec, nf previous awards (Cases 1682,
e
‘The claimant, a Canadian, was Master of the vessel, but did not sail aboard
her on her last voyage. He had left his personal effects aboard and now makes
—— —claim_for the value_thereof, 'The fact that claimant_had left his cffects aboard



FINAL REPORT ’ 17

is proven by the affidavits of two members of the crew, Charles Rector and
Augustus Olsen. There is also filed copy of the transcript of the vessel’s registry
showing that claimant was Master of the Lillian H,

Claimant has established the material allegations of his statement of claim
and is entitled to an award upon the same basis as other fishermen claimants
(See Opinion No. 3 to my Interim Report). There is, of course, no claim for
the usual solatium, I would recommend a payment to claimant of the amount
shown in his statement of claim, viz., $285 with interest thereon, at the rate of
5 per cent per annum, from January 17, 1917, to date of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 20, 1932,

CASE 2789—CHARLES H. JARDINE

This claim arises out of the destruction of the ss. IHesperian, by enemy

action, on September 4, 1915, in circumstances which are well known. The loss
of the vessel has been the subject of many previous awards, ,
. ... Cluimant’s mother- received - an - award from the previous Commissioner
(Case 968). The present claimant, then aged 7 years, was accompanying his
mother and was taken by her into the boats with another minor child. The
present claimant now makes claim, in the sun of $5,000, for injury to health,
alleged to be due to exposure in the boat: on wie oceasion in question. In sup-
port of his olaim he produces the certificate of a physician, from which I quote
as follows: “For about 5 years Jardine, C. H., is nervous and irvitable. He
thinks he would be in better health had he not been in torpedoed boat—mwm—.
He thinks he is unable to do his work without more fatigue than he should.”
The mother advanced no claim on behalf of her children, and it is scarcely
likely that any injury to their health should have oceurred. It is also quite
cvident, at this late date, that claimant could not establish any conuaction
betwe}cn his present state of health and exposure at the time of the loss of the
vessel.

It is unnccessary to pursue the matter further‘. The claim fails and must
se disallowed, :

ERROL M. McDOUGALL;

Commissioner.
Orrawa, January 5, 1933,

CASE 2316—MRS MINNIE GERTRURE KEITLEY

This claim arises out of the destruction of the ss, Hesperian on September
4, 1915, by encmy action. The loss of the vessel, in the manner indicated, is
established by Admiralty Reports and her. loss has been the subject of many
previous awards, : '

The claimant was a passenger aboard the vessel (2nd eabin) and was com-
ing out to Carada to be married. She lost her personal effects, to a stated value
of £58.174 (cquivalent at par of exchange to $286.10), The passenger list,
furnished by owners of the vessel, shows claimant (maiden name—M. Q.
Palmer) to have been aboard the vessel. Claimant later came to Canada aboard
the Scandinavian and was married on October §, 1915. Her husband died in
April, 1920, and claimant returned to England to live.

010863
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Claimant has established the material allegations of her statement of elaim
and is entitled to an award, I do not find the amount claimed excessive and
would, accordingly, recommend a payment to her of $286.10, with interest
thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from the date of loss, September
4, 1915, to date of payvment. :

FERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner,
O1tawys, December 20, 1932,

CASE 2534—REGINALD LEVATTE

Thi= elaim arises out of the destruction of the ss. Morwenna, by enemy
action on May 26, 1915, oft the coast of Ireland, with loss of life. The fact of
the loss of the vessel,-in the: manner indicated, “is established by “Admiralfy
Reports and her loss has heen the subjeet of previous awards (Cases 1163,
16481,

The elaimant, a Canadian, was employved aboard as donkeyman and lost
his personal effeets, for which elaim is now made, as also for the usual solatium.
Claimant’s presence aboard is proven by certificate of the Registrar Genera
and corroborative statements of shipmates,

Applying the prineiples stated in Opinion No. 3 to my Interim Report, I
consider that claimant is entitled to an award upon the same basis us other
seamen in the Merchant Sevvice. I would, aceordingly, recommend a payment
to him of 500, with interest. thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from
January 10, 1920, to date of payment (Opinion No. 4 Interim Report).

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commassioner.
Orrawys, January 4, 1933. -

CASE 2389—JAMES R. MACDONNELL, Estate of

Notice of claim wus reecived by letter dated May 25, 1931, from claimant’s
solocitor, advising that he intended presenting a elaim on ochalf of his client,
who served as a cook on hoard the United States fishing schooner J. J. Flaherty,
sunk by cnemy submarine August 25, 1918, "The proof of the loss of the vessel
1s supplied by a report given by the United States Mixed Claims Commission at
Washington, which report also verifies the fact of the presence of the deceased
on board at the time of los=, and that, further, he was not a citizen of the United
States,  These latter faects are further substantinted by letters from fellow
members of the erew, '

Information has been received that the elaimant is now deceased and that
steps ave now being taken to secur» administration of his estate. For the reasons
expressed in Opinion No, 3 to my Interim Report I consider that the estate is
entitled to the usual award for the loss of personal effects and solatium. 1
would, accordingly, recommend payment to the estate of James R. Maedonnell,
deceased, of $600 covering loss of personal effects and solatium, with interest

t-hcroon,t at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from J anuary 10, 1920, to date of
payment,

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, January 16, 1933,
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CASE 2743—WILLIAM WALLACE MARSHALIL

This elaim arises out of the destruction of the ss. Gardepee, by enemy
action, on October 10, 1916, off the coast of Norway. The fact of the loss of
the vessel, in the manner indicated, is established by Admiralty Reports and
certificate of her owners, '

Claimant, & Canadian, was aboard the vessel at the time of her loss in the
capacity of First Mate, as is shown by certificate of her Master and letter from
owners, filed of record. He now makes claim for"the loss of his personal effects
and the usudl solatium,

While the elaimant did not appear before the Commission, the documentary
evidence produced establishes the essential facts. Applying the prineiples stated
in Opinion No. 3 to my Interim Report, 1 consider that claimant is entitled
to an award upon the same basis as other seamen claimants in the Merchant
~Service. I would, accordingly, recommend_a payment to him of $500, with
interest. thercon, at the rate of 5 per eent per annum. from January 10, 1920,
to date of pavment, o

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner.
Otrawy, January 5, 1933.

CASE 2369—JOHN McPHERSON

This claim arises out of the destruction of the ss. Knitsford, by enemy
action on July 22, 1916. The fact of the loss of the vessel, in the manner
indicated, is established by certificate of the Registrar General of Shipping and
Seamen, which also attests the presence of claimant aboard, as an able seamen.

The elaimant now resides at Swansea, South Wales, and declares, in his
statement of claim, that he was born in Prince Edward Island, in 1878, He
‘adds that he received an award from the British Reparations Commission of
£33, which is confirmed by enquiries made in England. Claimant qualified
hefore the British Reparations authorities and was given an award for the loss
of his personal effects, It is, moreover, deelared that while claimant stated he
had been born in Prince Edward Island, he was found to have acquired a
domicile of choice in the United Kingdom. In these circumstances, claimant is
without standing before this Commission, and the claim must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALIL,

» _ Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 20, 1932,

CASE 2349—JOIIN PIETER G. MOORREES, Estate of

This claim arises out of the destruction of the fishing schooner Mayola, by
enemy action, on February 16, 1917, The loss of the vessel, in the manner
indicated, is established by Admiralty Reports, and her loss has already been
the subject of previous awards (Cases 1 to 6, Friel Report). )

The late John Pieter Gerhardus Moorrees, who died on January 26, 1926
was originally a Dutch ecitizen, resident in Canada, who enlisted in the Cann(lian,
Expeditionary Forces on April 17, 1915, served in France with the 13th Battalion
and No, 1 Field Ambulance and was discharged as medically unfit on June 3,
1916, in Canada. He subsequently (June 6, 1919) became naturalized as a
British subject in Canada. The foregoing facts are proven by documentary
evidence filed of record,

61085—23
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It is also proven, by documentary cvidence, that the deceased was serving
as Mate aboard the Mayola at the time of her loss. Claim is now made by a
sister of deceased, alleging that she is the sole surviving heir at law of her
brother, for the value of his personal effects and the usual solatium. The evid-
ence of heirship in the claimant has not heen satisfactorily proven and any
award must, acoerdingly, be made to the Estate of the deceased.

I am, however, of opinion that the claim for loss of personal effects and
solatium is valid, and, applying the principles stated in Opinion No. 3 to my
Interim Report, T would recommend a payment to the Estate of the late John
P. G. Moorrees of $700, with interest thereon at the rate of 5 per cent per annum,
from January 10, 1920, to date of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Orrawa, December 17, 1932, Commissioner.

CASE 2800—EARNEST ADRIAN MORGAN (deceased)

This claim arises out of the destruction of the schooner Verna M. Lohnes,
on or about September 9, 1918, by enemy action. The loss of the vessel, in the
manner indicated, is established by decisions of the previous Commissioner (See

~Friel Report pp. 91 ct. seg). At pp. 92 of the Report, the Commissioner makes
the following observation: “The dependents of —————— and E. Morgan, Cape
Breton, 31, cook, presumably Canadians, are entitled to compensation which
can be assessed when we get further information,”

Claim is now made on behalf of the two minor children of the deceased
for loss and damage resulting from the death of their father. A claim had
already been presented (Case No. 1562) on behall of a sister of deccased's
mother, but was disallowed by the previous Commissioner on the ground that no
dependency had been shown. It appears also that the deceased’s widow (maiden
name Gertrude Clyburne) remarried, and died on December 18, 1931,

The reecord consists of documentary evidence. Certificate of marriage of
the Iate . A. Morgan and the late Gertrude Clyburne is produced, evidencing
their marriage on November 27, 1912, Both are shown to be British subjects
by birth, and resident in Nova Scotia. Certificate of the birth of William James
Morgan at Albion Mines, N.S,, on April 30, 1913, issue of the marriage referred
to, is filed of record, and another child was also born, issue of this marriage,
on January 14, 1915, at Stellarton, N.S., named Robert Bruce Morgan. While
no certificate is produced as to the birth of this child, the fact has been satis-
factorily proved. The deceased enlisted in the Canadian Expeditionary Furces
on October 27, 1915, then being a resident of Isaac’s Harbour, N.S. The family
later resided at Trenton, N.S.

At the time deceased lost his life he was cook uboard the Vérna M. Lohnes,
carning $90 per month. His minor children were then aged 5 and 3 years
respeetively, ‘The children were brought up by their mother.

In these circumstances, the claim made on behalf of the twe minor children
appears to have been established. For reasons which have been explained in
Opinion No. 2 to my Interim Report, I consider tlat claimants are entitled to
awards for damage resulting from the loss of their father’s life. I would, accord-
ingly, recommend payment to the legal guardians of the said William James
Morgan and the said Robert Bruce Morgan, of the sum of $2,000 each, with
interest upon these sums, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10,
1920, to date of payment (Opinion No. 4 to Interim Report).

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

. Commissioner.
Orrawa, January 23, 1933,
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CASE 2391—WILLIAM MUISE

Notice of claimn was received by letter, dated May 25, 1931, from claimant’s
colicitor, advising that he intended presenting a claim on_ behalf of his client,
who was a member of the crew of the United States fishing schooner J. J.
Flaherty, sunk by enemy submarine, August 25, 1918, No further steps were
taken in the matter, until by letter dated January 14, 1932, the solicitor advised
that the elaim was withdrawn, ' ' :

The case is therefore dismissed for lack of prosecution.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
e L i - (Commissioner, .
Ortawa, January 16, 1933.

CASE 2343—ALFRED MURRY

This elaim arises out of the destruction of the United States fishing
schooner Muriel, by enemy action on August 3, 1918, off Seal Island, Shelburne
County, N.S. The fact of the loss of the vessel, in the manner indicated, has
been established in a number of carlier decisions (Cases 1647, 1609, etc.).

The claimant, a Canadian, was a fisherman aboard the vessel and now
makes claim for the loss of his personal effects and the usual solatium. His
presence board, at the time of the loss, is proven by the crew list furnished by
the United States Mixed Claims Commission and aflidavit of a shipmate.

Applying the principles stated in Opinion No. 3 to my Interim Report,
I consider that claimant is entitled to an award upon the same basis as other
fishermen claimants. 1 would, accordingly, rccommend payment to him of
$600 for loss of personal effects and solatium, with interest thereon, at the ratc
“of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of payment.

ERROL M., Mc¢cDOUGALL,
Commussioner.
Orrawa, December 15, 1932,

CASE 2676—RICHARD MYETT, Estate of

This claim arises out of the destruction of the United States fishing echoaoner -
Reliance, by enemy action, on August 10, 1918, on Georges fishiug banks. The
fact of the loss of the vessel, in the manner indicated, is established by report
of the United States Mixed Claims Commission, which tribunal granted an
award to the vessel’s owners on November 11, 1925.

Claim is naw made by the duly appointed Administratrix to the Estate of
the above named deceased, in the sum of $600, for loss of personal effects
abandoned when the vessel went down, as also for loss of time due to the frus-
tration of the voyage. The late Richard Myett died on April 21, 1923, at
Gloucester, Mass. It is established that he was a British subject, born in Nova
Scotin. The evidence also proves that he was aboard the vessel when she was
lost and was unable to remove his personal cffects before taking to the boats
with other members of the crew. :

I find that decedent’s cstate is entitled to reecive the sum which wonld
have heen payable to him had he advanced the claim in his lifetime, upon the
same basis as other fishermen claimants. 1 would, accordingly, recommend
a payment to the Estate of the late Richard Myett of 3600 with interest thereon,
at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of payment
(Opinion No. 3 to Interim Report). .
ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioncr.
Orrawa, December 13, 1932. -
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CASE 2798 —GEORGE RAMSAY

Notice of elaim was received from the above named claimant, who served
as an apprentice aboard the =<, Demeterton (sie) alleged to have been sunk by
the German raider Mocwe, on Mareh 13, 1917, Claimant was taken prisoner
and interned in Germany until November 23, 1918, 1t developed during the
correzpondenee that elaimant i a British subjeet, who first heeame resident in
Canada on July 6, 1920. He has been advised that this Commission is without
jurisdietion to entertpin the elaim, for reasons which have Peen explained in
my carlier reports.  The elaim hasx not heen further pressed, and must bhe
disallowed.

ERROIL M. MeDOUGALL,

. Commissioncr,
Orrawy, January 11, 1933,

CASE 2324—KARL SJIOGREN

Notice of claim was received on behalf of the above named claimant, who
has completed the usual documents of elaim. Tt appears that he is of Swedish
nationality and served aboard the ss, Largo, as also the ss, Lorelei, ns an AB.,
when these vessels are deelared to have been destroyed by enemy action. Claim
is made for los= of personal effeets. No evidence in substantiation of the elaim
has been made. Claimant was notified through his attorney, that his claim
waould be heard at the sessions of the Commission, nt Halifax, on June 18, 1932.
He did not appear and his default remains unexplained.  The claim must,
accordingly, be disallowed for want of prosceution.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, January 5, 1933,

CASE 2333--LIEONARD SNOW

This elaim arises ont of the destruction of the schooner Laura, sunk by
enemy action on April 25, 1917, 200 miles ofl the South West coast of Ireland.
The faet of the losx of the vessel, in the manner indieated, is_cstablished -by.
finding of the previous Commissioner and award to her owners (Friel Report
pp. 73).

The claimant, a British subjeet, born in Newfoundland but resident in
Canada since 1907, was a seaman aboard the vessel at *be time of her loss, and
now makes elaim for the value of his personal effects and the usual solatium. He
lias sucees=fu'ly proven his presence aboard, in the quality stated, by his own
testimony, supported by certificate from owners of the vessel.

Applying the principles stated in Opinion No. 3 to my Interim Report, 1
regard elaimant as entitled to an award upon the same basis as other seamen
in the Merehant service. T would, accordingly, recommend a payment to him
of §600, with intevest thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January
10, 1920, to date of payment {Opinion No. 4, Interim Report).

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

C'ommissioncer.
Orrawa, December 15, 1932, .
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CASE 2390—JAMES WATT

Notice of claim was 12ceived by letter, dated May 25, 1931, from claimant’s
solicitor, advising that he intended presenting a claim on behalf of his client,
who was a member of the crew of the United States fishing schooner J. J.
Flaherty, sunk by cnemy submarine August 25, 1918. No further steps were
taken in the matter, until by letter dated January 14, 1932, the solicitor advised
that the claim was withdrawn,

The case is therefore dismissed for lack of prosccution.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commaissioner.
OTrawa, January 16, 1933.

CASE 2726—CHARLES WESLEY

This claim arises out of the destruction of the Canadian sailing vessel
Lillian H. by cnemy action, on January 17, 1917, off Old Head of Kinsale, The
fact of the loss of the vessel, in the manner indicated, is established by Admiraly
Reports, and her loss has been the subjeet of previous awards (Cases 1682,
1939).

The claimant, a Canadian, was a member of the crew and makes claim
for the loss of his personal cffects, loss of wages and the usual solatium. His
presence aboand, at the time of the loss, is proven by certificate of the Shipping
Master, at Parrsboro’, N.S., supported by the aflidavits of two shipmates, Charles
Rector and Augustus Olsen (Sce Case 2736).

Applying the principles stated in Opinion No. 3 to my Interim Report,
I censider that claimant is entitled to an award upon the same basis as other
~ fishermen claimants., The claim for loss of wages cannot be entertained but
I would recommend a payment to claimant, as covering loss of personal effeets
and solatium, of $600 with interest thereon, at the rate of § per cent per annum,
from January 10, 1920, to date of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
. Commissioner,
Orrawy, December 20, 1932.

___CASE 2388—LEO WHITE, Istate of

This claim arises out of the destruction of the United States fishing
schooner J. J. Flaherty, sunk by cnemy submarine on August 25, 1018, off
Miquelon Island. The loss of the vessel, in the manner indicated, is established
by report of the United States Mixed Claims Commission, and her loss has
already been the subject of awards made to Canadian members of the crew
(Cases 1668, 1687, 652, 666). »

" The late Peter leon Leblane (Leo White) is certified by owners to have:
been n member of the erew and is also noted as such in report of the Mixed
Claims Commission. His presence aboard is also established by affidavits of
other members of the erew. While known as Leo White, it is quite definitely
proven that lic was baptized as Peter Leon Leblane, in Nova Scotia, and is the
son of his aged parent who now makes claim for the loss of his son's personal
cffects and the usual solatium. It appears that the deceased lost his life some
time after the sinking of the J. J. Flaherty. He died intestate and unnarried
and I am informed that under the law of Nova Scotia his father and mother
would be his heirs. - -
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I regard the claim for loss of personal effects and solatium as well founded,
and, upon the principles declared in Opinion No. 3 to my Interim Report, I
would recommend a payment to Peter Leblane, the claimant’s father, of $600,
with interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10,
1920, to date of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Orrawa, December 15, 1932 Commissioner.

Note—In this case 1 direct the payment to the deceased’s father rather
than to the estate, beeause these aged and needy people ean searcely afford the
cost of taking out administration of diceased’s estate.

CASE 2701--CHARLES E. WILLIAMS

'This elaim arises out of the destruction of the United States fishing
schooner Rob Roy, sunk by enemy action on August 3, 1918, fifty miles off
Cape Sable. The loss of the vessel, in the manner indicated_is established by
report of the United States Mixed Claims Commission, and her loss has been
the subjeet of previous awards (Cases 1619 and 1642).

The claimant, a Canadian, while a member of the crew of the vessel, was
nct aboard her at the time of the loss. He had missed the voyage in question.
He 1now makes claim for the value of his personal effects, which had been
left aboard and were lost when the vessel went down. The fact that his effects
were aboard is proven by the afliduvits of several shipmates.

Applying the principles stated in Opinion No. 3 to my Interim Report,
"I am of opinion that claimant is cntitled to an award for loss of personal
-flects upon the same basis as other fishermen claimante. Since claimant
did not appear before the Commission and has not otherwise shown that he is
still a Canadian citizen, I am not disposed to allow any interest. [ would
recommend a payment to claimant of $250 without interest.

- ERROIL M. McDOUGALL,
Orrawa, December 20, 1932, Commissioner.

€EASE-2350—WILLIAM YORK, Estate of

This claim arises out of the destruction of the ss. Lusitania, by cnemy
action, 'in circumstances which are well known.

The claimant is the widow of the late William York, who was a third class
passenger aboard the vessel at the time of her loss. He is stated to have come
from Brantford, Ontario, and the fact of his presence nboard the Lusitania,
and the loss of his life when the vessel went down, is proved by certificate of
the owners. It scems that claimant and her deceased husband were born in
England and were resident in Canada before the war. Mis. York now resides
in England and presented a claim before the - British . Reparations Claim
Department. Award was made in her favour in January, 1925. It moreover
appears that she also reccived an allowance out of the Lusitania Disaster
Fund, constituted in 1915, )

In these circumstances, the claim has been dealt with by the British
authorities, and I do not consider that claimant has shown that she comes
within the jurizdietion of this Commission. For this reason, the claim as here
preser:ted, must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Orrawa, Januav.23, 1933. Commissioner.
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. MISCELI.ANEOUS CASES
Applications have been received in some cases for reconsideration of cases

already disposed of cither by the previous Commissioner, or by earlier reports
of this Commission. In most cases claimants have been advised that there is
no authority to reopen cases already disposed of. Where, however, fresh evidence
has been submitted, the cases have been reviewed with a view to determining
whether any substantial injustice has occurred. The files have been carefully
read and it has been found that there is no reason to adopt any further action,
either beeause the original awards were adequate or because the new evidence
adds nothing further. In order that the files may be definitely closed, the cases
so receiving further consideration are disposed of as follows:—

1. 1604—Joux Aaxrw—Claim not subject to consideration by Reparations
Commission. Dealt with by Dr. Pugsley. -
2. 1401—ArtHUR J. CuaMpers—Claim dealt with by Mr. Friel. No authority
to reopen. Award adequate. Claimant’s attorney so advised at hearing.
3. 994—Lrira Crow—Claim dealt with by Mr. Friel. No authority to reopen.
4. 1638—CHarnes Kennaven—Additional amount claimed on ground further
evidence shows greater loss than originally shown. Award found
- adequate. o
5. 972—NoryaN R. MirrLar—Claim dealt with by Mr. Friel.  No authority to
reopen.
6. 1602—JosHua Warwick—Claimant cannot be located. Cace dealt with by
Mr. Friel.
7. 1360—Francis Warers—Claim dealt with by Mr. Friel. No authority to
reopen,
ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner.
AWARDS TO EX-MILITARY PRISONERS OF WAR
Caso . Name of Claimant Award
$ cie.
2705 |Ball, Frederick.......... e et e e aee et hae e e 600 00
2693  {Ball, Robert Arthiur. ... .o i i e e et e 600 N0
2707  {Blytho, Samuel D e 500 00
2784  [Brown, Thomas West........v.eiiiiiiiir ittt aees 500 00
2572 [Cameron, Herbert Luther.. . ..o i i i e 500 Q0
2709  {Dowdney, Thomas Willlam. ... ..ccoooiiii i i i 500 00
2372 {Doyle, Gregory Fdward ..ot i e 500 00
2756 {Empey, Harold H. ... oo i i i it e 500 00
2650  [Forris, Samuel JAIIes. .ot cii i it i e e 500 00
2607  JFoster, GOPdon. ..., . .ottt ittt i i P 500 00
2711 {Gallamore, Edward Thomas.................... e e 600 00
2769 {Gallant, FredericK. .ooovvnn v it i e st 500 00
2732 (Griflin, Mansel James. ..o v i e e %00 00
2531  {Hilderman, Fred.. ... .00 e e ket 500 00
2712  Hitchman, Henry George...oooovoovvvennnnnt F 500 00
2760 |Hockey, Rtginald DS 0 3173 « D PPN 600 00
2745 Mewson, Fred. ... ..o i i i i 500 00
2774 JJones, SHAneY Porey . .o ittt ittt i ittt it £,00 00
2730  (MacKinnon, Alfred Nedl. ... .. oo i e 500 00
2540 |McDonald, Maleolm...coo.o oo oo U, 500 00
2063  [Moore, Robert. ...t i i i e i e e 500 00
2581 [ Peters, DINOAN. .. ..ot i et i e e e 500 00
2660 (Richer, Bdmund. ..o i it ittt it ia ity 500 00
2673  (Riley, Charles Sidney.........vi ittt iitiiiiiaariaraatieaaaens £00 00
2536  |Romer, Charies.......... ettt e ee e esterteeararr et 500 00
2681  |Salmon, John Arthur..............o L e e e e ar e e e ey 500 00
2688  JOMIth, JAIIeS. it i e e et it e et i 500 00
2706 |Stowe, Edgar................... et raaesaretae e tteeaasr e e ares 500 00
2762  |Sugden, Samuel Cecil....ooii i i i i e 600 00
2658 |White, Frank Samuel. ... . o i e PO 1,000 20
23590  {Woodley, Clifton Neil.....o..oooiiiiiin @ a e eeaiaire s e eaaantn 500 00
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AWARDS TO EX-MILITARY PRISONERS OF WAR
CASE 2705—FREDERICK BALL

Claimant waz a Private in the 15th Battalion—Regimental No. 27443. He
enlisted in Augnst, 1914 at the age of 19 years and was taken prisoner April 24,
1915, during the second battle of Ypres, suffering from gas. He was repatriated
to Encland December 21, 1918, He ix not in receipt of peasion, was marrvied in
September 1921 and has two children.  Prior to enlistment, e was employed as
an otler on Marine vessels, earning $60 per month and board and is now a street
railway conductor, at about $85 per month.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
ha< resulted i pecuniary damage to him. He complains of solitary confinement,
excessive labour, starvation, foreed to work while ill, beatings and bad food.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant first spent three months at Gottingen, and received no medical
treatment, although sick from the (ffeets of gas. He was sent to the salt mines
at Salsted, where he remained for three vears and five months. The story of his
treatment here 1= consistent with that of other prisoners who were in the salt
mines, a recital of long hours of labour, frequent beatings for not doing enough
work and several periods of solitary confincment. Being ill and unable to carry
on effectively, he states he got many beatings and that his condition of weakness
wax enhanced by the poor quality of the food.

No medical evidence was adduced at the hearing, the record consisting
of a eertificate by Dr. G, L. Tanner, indicatin,; duodenal uleer, with a disability
rated from 25 per eent to 50 per cent. and a further certificate by the same
doctor, stating that he has been treating elaimant for ten years for the above
condition. The record is completed by u letter from 8. W, Barrett, n fellow-
“prizoner, who corroborates his story as to treatment in the salt mines. Claimant's
medical history files show nothing unusual.  Included in the file is a statement
made by claimant uwpon repatriation which largely bears out his testimony
before the Comnuission.

Were it not for the fact that elaimant spent over 3 vears in the salt mines,
I do not think the evidence as to present disability would justify a finding in his
favour. His story of brutality and cruelty in the mines is similar to that told
by other prisoners whe had the misfortune to reeeive the same treatment, and 1
consider that elaimant is entitled {o the benefit of any doubt there may be.
Iaving reaard to the particular eirenmstances, 1T would recommend a panyment
to claimant of $600, with interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum,
from January 10, 1920, to date of payment,

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner,
Orrawa, Junuary 16, 1932

CASE 2693—ROBFRT ARTHUR BALL

Claimant was an Imperial soldier who served at a Private in the 2nd
Norfolk Regiment—Regimental No. 7360. He first enlisted in December 1906,
at the age of 19 yvears and rejoined the colours at thie outbreak of war. He came
to Caunada to reside in October 1919, He was taken prisoner by the Turks in
Mesopotamia April 29, 1916, unwounded. He was repatriated in November
1918 from Smyrna. He is not in receipt of pension and is unmarried. Prior to
enlistment, he was a shoemaker, carning 14 shillings per week, and is now an
hotel employee at 850 per month and meals,
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He alloges that while a prisoner he was subjeeted to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of bad food and water,
exposure, a blow on the nose nnd medical neglect, while ill with dysentery.

An analysis of the evidenee revenls:—..

Claimant was taken by the Turks and marched by the caravan route across
the desert to Bagdad, He states he got but little food on the march, and was
heaten beeause he could not keep up, due to illness from dysentery.  His nose
was injured by a blow. He received no medieal attention. This 1carch took
about three months and at the emd he was placed in a German hospital at
Entilla, suffering with dysentery, bevi-beri and malaria.  He complains that
while on the march he had to drink stagnant water. He moved along on another
arduous march and reachod Afion Kara Hissa where he again entered hospital.
Here his condition improved. Six weeks prior to the Armistice; he was sent to
an officers’ camp to act as servant and was treated very well,

The medical recordd consists of a certifieate by Dr. Ray J. Spence. who did
not appear before the Commission, indieating ~hronie rhinitis with crust forma-
tion. Claimant’s medical history files are not availal,e.

This case is unusual in that it is the only claim presented by a prisoner held
captive by the Turks. He te¥s a harrowing story of deliberate starvation and
sbuse whilst on the mareh across the desert and it is surprising that claimant is
not more seriously disabled than he appears to be. 8o cruel was the treatment
meted out by ihe Turks, the claimant and other priconers welcomed the ap-
pearance of Germans, from whom they, at least, received some food. While the
record as to disability is not entirely satizfactory, T am inclined to give the claim-
ant the benefit of any doubt there may be. 1 find that he was subjected to
maltreatnient resulting in some disability and I would recommend a payment
to him of 86C0 with interest thercon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from
January 10, 1920 to date of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUCALL,

. Commissioner.
Ortrawa, January 16, 1933,

CASE 2707--SAMUEL D. BLYTHE

Claimant was a Private in the $th CNLR.—Regimental No. 109224, He
cnlisted April 7, 1915, at the age of 21 years and was taken prisoner June 2,
1916, suffering with a shrapnel wound in the right hand. He was repatriated
to England January 4, 1919. He is not in receipt of pension, was married in
March, 1919, and bas one child,  Prior to enlistment, he was a labourer, caraning
about $3 per day and is now a railway car cleaner, at sbout $4.25 per day.

He aMeges that while a prisoner he was subjected to mudtreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of lack of attention to
his wound, being foreed to work with a swollen hand, bhegten, overworked in a
voal mine, starved and struck in the mouth with a bayvonet, losing two teeth,

An -analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant first spent cleven months attached to Stendal eniec, and statos he
received no attention for his wounded hand but was compolled to work. Being
unable to continue at earryving tics, he was placed in the creosoting plant, where,
he states, the skin of his face was burnt, through failure to supply him with a
protective mask. He was then sont to a farm, where he worked {rom daylight
to dark and was given only seraps of food. His hand beeame swollen_and
finally the shrapnel was removed by a Russian dostor, without anaesthetic. He
was then sent to a second farm, at Merseburg. where the same long hours and
overwork prevailed. He was finady sent to a coal mine at Gruber, where he
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vorked underground.  Tere he veceived three days’ confinement for a trifling
offence and was given neither bread nor water. He spent fifteen months at this
mine and states that the place was alive with vermin, and, when ill with boils,
he was routed out of bed. beaten amd lost two teeth as the result of a blow
from a bavonet in the mouth. His quarters were damp and his clothing inad-
cquate and as a result he now suffers with rheumatism and stomach disorders,

No medieal evidenee was adueed at the heaving, the reeord consisting of
{wo certificates by Dr. Mortimer Fleming indicating neurasthenia, rheumatism
(arthritis) and impaived digestion.  He fixes the dizability at from 15 to 25 per
cent. Claimant’s medieal history files show nothing unusual. He was apparently
discharged as fit. )

Were it nor fof the fact that elaimant spent 15 months of his period of
captivity in the ecil mines, 1 would not be disposed to regard his ease favour-
ablv. Under the eireumstances T have reached the conelusion that cliimant was
subjeeted to maitreatmest. T would, accordingiy, recommend a payment to him
of §300. with interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per eent per annum, from January
10, 1920, to date of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioncr.
Orrawa, January 16, 1933.

CASE 2784—THOMAS WEST BROWN

The claimant was a Private in the P.P.C.L.I.—Regimental No. 51059. He
enlizted December 22, 1914, at the age of 22 vears and was taken prisoner June 2,
1916, suffering from contusions in the head and left shoulder and pelvis. He
wa~ repatriated to England January 2, 1919, He is in reccipt of an 80 per cent
disahility pension, amounting to 8100 per month, based on neurasthenia.  He
war married in April, 1919, and has three children. Prior to enlistment, he was a
telephone lineman, carning about $2.50 per day, but is now unemployed and
stated, at the hearing. that he hadn t done-any work for about 10 years.

He alleges that while a prioner he was subjected to maltreatment which has
resulted in peeuniary damage to him. He complains of labour in the coal mines,
being clubbed in the stomach with a rifle butt, tied to posts, reccived a blow an
the head with rifle and had his ankle brolen. He alzo states that his evesight is
falling.

- An analysis of the evidence revealsi—-

Taken to Aachen. elaimant lay in hospital for four months and received
but very little treatment.  Then he was sent to the coal mines and being unable
to carry on with the work, was tied to a wall by his legs and wrists for three
Lours dailv. Hie wound was still open and sainful. Next he was sent to Stendal,
to another coal mine. where he remained over a year. A sentry hit him in the
stemach and across the back of the head with a rifle.  He also states that while
he was Iving on the ground a sentry broke his ankle with a rifle butt.

The medical recerd eonsists of a certificate of Dr. (name indecipherable)
who did not appear before-the Commission and who finds claimant greatly run
down, neurasthenie and possibly a little mentally unstable.  He fives the dis-
ability at from 60%: to 100%. A certificate from Dr. G. W. Knipe of Win-
nipeg. who did not appear before the Commission, indicates that he treated
claimant from 1920 to 1923 for stomach discrders. Certificates as to character
and present conditions are filed by friends, Claimaat’s medical history files
confirin the condition of neurasthenia and irfer very clearly that this is con-
sequent upon his period of captivity.

This is another case coming from the coal mines and exhibiting marked
signs of disability. Claimant’s story iz consistent with the evidence of cruelty
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and brutality recounted by other prisoners who experienced internment in the
coal mines. ‘The medical evidence on claimant’s pension files fully substantiates
his elaim to disability and I have no hesitation in reaching the conclusion that
his present condition is, in part, at least, due to maltreatment whilst he was held

a prisoner. 1 would, accordingly, recommend a payment to claimant of 3500,
with interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920,
to date of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
OTrawa, January 9, 1933. Commissioner.,

CASE 2572 HERBERT LUTHER CAMERON

Claimant was a Private ir the 13th Battalion—Regimental No. 46818. He
enlisted in Aungust, 1914, at the age of 29 vears and was taken prisoner April 26,
1915, during the second battle of Ypres, suffering from three shrapnel wounds in
the legs. He was repatriated to England in December, 1918, He is in receipt of
a 30 per cent disability pension, based on tuberculosis. He was married in
February, 1919, and has four children. Prior to enlistment, he was employed
as a_coal miner, earning about $6 per day, and is now doing light jobs, earning
£3.25 per day. .

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment whiel has
resulted in pecuniary damage to him.  He complaing of exposure to wet weather,
nadequately elad, of heing tied to trees for 12 hour periods, that, he was hit over
the head with a rifle butt and had his nose split, was given solitary confinement
for attempted escape and starved. He now suffers with sinus trouble, stomach
disorders and tuberculosis,

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was first taken to Gottingen camp, where he complains of lack of
raedieal attention and poor food. Sent out on a working party, breaking stones,
before his wounds had healed, he complains of the heavy work, rough usage and
starvation and of being beaten with whips. He was tied to a tree for several
hours for asking for food and later confined to cells for the same alleged offence.
At Cassel camp, though examined and passed by the Swiss Commission as
medicully unfit, he was dented transfer and sent out on munitions work, which he
refused to do, was tied up, beaten and confined as punishment. His head was
split open from a blow from the butt of a rifle and on one oceasion he was struck
on the nose, breaking it. - The sear of (his blow is still visible. At a farm, and
later at Langensalza, he complains of rough treatment and exposure while
working. He now suffers with his nose and head and has a chest condition.

The medical evidence indicates that claimant suffers from chronic pulmonary
tuberculosis, smusitis and chronie bronchitis. In 1923, 1925 and 1930, his nose
was operated upon to relicve an obstruction due to fractured nasal bones. He
still suffers with sinusitis. Dr. I, E. Walsh, who certifies to the foregoing, did
not appear before the Commission.  Claimant’s medical history files refer to the
tubereular condition and chronic bronchitis and mention sinusitis.

I find from the evidence that claimant’s story of a blow on the nose with
tesultant disability is borne out. As to his chest condition, 1 do not think this
can be attributed to maltreatment and is properly a matter of pension. 1 was
favourably impressed with elaimant’s testimony and conelude that he is entitled
to an award for the nose injury which is attributable to maltreatment. I would
recommend a payment {o claimant of $500, with interest thercon, at the rate of
5 per cent per annum, from Jannary 10, 1920, to date of payment,

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 15, 1932.
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CASE 2709—THOMAS WILLIAM DEWDNEY

Claimant was a Private in the $th C.M.R.~—Regimental No. 109307. IHe
enlisted November 27, 1914, at the age of 21 years and was taken prisoner
June 2. 1916, suffering from gunshot wound in the right arm, shrapnel in the
shoulder and small picees in the head and face, contusions and bruises on the legs.
He was repatriated to Fngland December 31, 1918, He is in - reecipt of a 10 per
cent disability pension, amounting to $7.50 per month, based on bronchitix. He
wis married in June, 1927, and  has one ehild.  Prior to enlistment, he was

engaged in landseape gardening, at $1.500 per annum, and is now following the’

swine ocettpation, at about £1.200 per annum,

He alleges that while a prizoner he was subjeeted to maltreatment which has
resulted in peenniary damage to him. e complains of having been beaten, of
long hours of labour, bad food, pareels stolen, exposure and of being foreed to
work while ill.

An analysis of the evidenee revealsi—

While being  treated at Cologne for his wounds, claimant received a beating
for refusing to divulge information and was confined in the latrine for a week.
He was then taken to Stendal and o few weeks later sent to Merzeburg, working
on the building of a chemieal factory. Here, he received a beating with a walking
ek, heeause lie was unable to keep up with the work. During his three months’
stay at thiz camp he states he reecived frequent beatings.  He was next trans-
ferred to a coal mine at Mucheln (sic), where he remained nearly two years.
The working hours varied from 12 to 18 hours depending on whether the allotted
loadings were completed. Finally, he was compelled to remain in the mine for
two months sleeping in an open tunnel which was cold and wet.  He made two
attempts to eseape and received three weeks' solitary confinement as punishment
in cach easze. He reeites an instance of one beating in particular by two men, one
armed with.aniron shod stick and the other with a rifle, for not doing enough
work.  On another oceazion, when stooping to pick up a derailed wagon, he
reccived a kick from behind which eaught him in the croteh and disabled him
for two weeks.  Unon reporting sick, possibly due to rhewmatism, he was beaten
and foreed back to work. In the winter when going to the latrine at night, partly
elad, the sentry would' not let him back into the barraek and struck him with a
elub knocking him out.  He has developed chronie bronchitis as the result of his
experiences,  He states that, at Madgeburg, he sustained several beatings at the
hands of German reeruits,

No medical evidence was adduced at thie hearing, the record consisting of a
certificate by Dr. W, (L Givens, indieating that claimant has been under his
are sinee 1927 suffering from chronie bronehitis.  He fixes the disability at 30
per cent. In a statement made upon vepatriation, claimant reeites the story of the
killing of a fellow-prizoner but makes no mention of his own treatment.

As will be seen, elaimant daes nor suffer any great disability, and, were it not
for the fact that he spent nearly two years in the coal mines, I would not be
inclined to rezard his case favourably. In view of all the circumstances and
other testimony available as to the harsh and brutal treatment accorded prisoners
in these mines, T have reached the conclusion that claimant was subjected to
maltreatment. 1 would, accordingly, recommend o payment to him of 300, with
interest thereon, at the rate of & per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to
date of payvment.

FRROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner,

Ortawa, January 16, 1933.
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CASE 2372—GREGORY

EDWARD DOYLE

Claimant was a Private in the 8th Brigade Machine Gun Company—Regi-
mental No. 414340.  He enlisted July 19, 1915, at the age of 21 vears and was
taken prisoner June 2, 1916, suffering from hand grenade wounds in the leg
and chest, and « bullet wound in the side. He was repatriated to England in-
December, 1918, He is in receipt of 4 5 per cent disability pension, amounting
to 83.75 per month, based on hix war wounds. He is unmarried.  Prior to
enlistment, he was emploved as a struetural steel worker, earning 815 per week,
and is now in the same trade, carning 877 per week when in steady employment.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him.  He complains of severe injuries to
his head from blows with pick handles while working in the salt mines, a broken
nose, digestive disorders due to starvation and bad food, and permanen’ nervous
trouble.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was taken to hospital at Courtrai, followed by Hanover and
Celle tager, and was finally sent out upon a farm before his wounds had properly
healed. It is of his later experiences that he chiefly complains—at Edwigsburg
salt mines—where he spent over two years. ‘The story he tells of hard work,
long hours, and brutal treatment, is quite consistent with the mass of testiinony
adduced before the Commission as to conditions in the salt mines, although,
in_fact, the particular mine referred to by claimant had not previously been
called to our notice. He was beaten, had his nose broken, and has sears on
his head resulting from blows inflicted because he was unable to complete the
allotted tasks,  He now suffers from persistent diarrhoea, nervousness, and
stomach trouble.

The medical evidence indieates that elaimant suffers from tremulousness,
nervous instability, nervous indigestion with recurrent diarrhoea, defective
breathing fromn broken nose, sears on head, body and legs. His pereentage of
disability is stated at from 30 per cent to 40 per cent. Dr. J. W, Merrett, who
certifies to the foregoing, also appeared before the Commission, and declared
claimant’s main dizability to be bis nervous condition. From the history of
the case, he expressed the opinion that the disability could well result from the
experiences recounted.. A certificate of Dr. P. O'Kelly is also filed, certifying
to a condition of neurasthenia, gastritis and migraine. Claimant’s medical history
files relate only to his service wounds,

I should be surprised indeed to learn that elaimant came through his experi-
enees in the salt mines without injury. That he did not so escape injury and
disability is borne out by the record and is quite in ascord with the evidence
of other prisoners who had the misfortune to serve time in these mines. On
the whole, and without endeavouring to trace specifieally the various disabilities
shown to particular maltreatment, I am of opinion that elaimant is entitled
to an award. I would recommend a payment to him of 8500 with interest
thercon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date

of payment,
ERROIL M. McDOUGALL,

: Commissioncr,
Orrawas, December 15, 1932.

CASE 2756—IIAROLD H. EMPEY

Claimant was a Private in the 31st Battalion—Regimental No. 811730.
He enlisted January 1, 1916, at the age of 23 years and was taken prisoner
May 3, 1917, at Fresnoy, suflfering from gunshot wounds in both buttocks. He
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was rvp'\tlmtml to England December 7, 1918. He is not in receipt of pension,
was married in October, 1928, and has no children. Prior to enlistment, he
was engaged in farming and is now unemployed although, after (hccharge he
tried farming, selling, and various occupations.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment -which
has resulted in peeuniary damage to him. He complains of starvation, blows,
kicks, standing at attention.  He now suffers from nervousness and stomach
disorders. '

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Taken first to Merseherg, claimant remained three weeks, when he was
sent to Munster. Here he complains of recciving too many inoculations, He
was then sent to a coal mine at Karneg (sic) near Iissen, where he remained
until the Armistice. He states that he received several beatings, one of which
rendered him unconscious, and on another occasion, was knocked down by a
rifle and kicked, his ribs being broken. He received no medical attention, and,
being unable to work, had to hide in the mine every day, for three weeks, to
eseape work. His main disability appears to be from stomach disorders,
although he also complains of loss of memory and frequent headaches.

The medical record consizsts in a certificate of Dr. K. P, Jearlett, of Calgary,
who examined claimant shortly before the hearing. He finds a functional
gastro-intestinal condition and right inguinal hernia.  He is unable to estimate
the extent of disability. A copy of a report by the Department of Radiology
of the Calgary hospital is also filed which, while technical in its terminology,
indicates that there are adhesions in the region of the gall biadder, suggestive
of probable gall bladder disease. Claimant’s medical history files indicate that
Le was discharged “ all svstems normal.”

Were it not for the fact that claimant spent over a vear of his period of
aptivity in the coal mines, T would not be inclined to view his case with
favour. IHis story is quite consistent with the evidenee of other prisoners who
were in the coal mines and I have reached the conelusion that claimant was
subjected to maltreatment whilst a prisoner which has resulted in some dis-
ability to him. While his main.disabilities appear to be of nutritional origin,
T am vet satisfied that his unjustifiable treatment i the mines-is a-contributing
factor. I would, wccordingly, recommend a payment to him of $500 with
interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, {rom January 10, 1920,
to date of payment, : '

LERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 22, 1932.

CASE 2650—SAMUEL JAMES FERRIS

Claimant was a Corporal in the 8th Battalion—Regimental No. 832. He
enlisted in August, 1914, at the age of 32 years, and was taken prisoner April
25, 1915, during the second battle of Ypres, =uﬁ'cring from gas. He was
repatriated to Ingland November 23, 1918. He is in receipt of a 60 per cent
disability pension, amounting to 360 per month, based on cpilepsy. He was

“married in May, 1919, and has no children. Prior to enlistment, he was

employed as a sailor, carning $95 per month and board, and is now a Ccarctaker
of a military bmldmg, at $65 per month and his quarters

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of beatings, blows on
the head, being compelled to stand all night and being hung up by the wrists.
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An analysis of fhi¢ ¢vidence Teveals:—

Claimant was at Gicssen, Munster and Friederichsfeld camps. He states

that because be had a picture of Lord Kitehener tattoed on his chest, he was
singled out for brutal treatment. He was forced to stand against a wall prac-
tically all night for four nights. While working in a coal mine, he was struck
over the head with minfng lamps for not working fast enough and as a result
vas laid up for six months. He recites another incident of having his wrists
tied together and pulled above his head while he was standing on a box. He
states he was practically paralysed when allowed to get down.

Dr. T. H. Manchester appeared and testified that for many years he has
Leen speeializing in neurology and neuro-psychiatry. He examined the claim-
ant during the routine of his work at Shaughnessy Hospital and is impressed
with the consisteney of his story. He testifies that the condition of epilepsy
could have been caused by a severe blow on the head. He fixes claimant’s
cdizability at 75 per cent.

The file contains reports of Dr. Dobson, neuropsychiatrist, and of Dr.
Manehester, covering claimant’s condition as to epileptic fits and left side
paralysis. A sear on the right side of the head and over the left eye bear
cvidence as to the blows from miner's lanterns. A submission by claimant’s
solicitor is also filed, subsequent to the hearing presenting arguments refuting
any possibility that claimant’s condition might be duc to disease. Claimant’s
medical history files show nothing unusual, apart from the epileptic condition.

The medical evidence of Dr. Manchester, together with the certificate of
Dr. Dobson, estublish that the epileptie condition from which claimant suffers
could very well result from the blow ¢. the head related by claimant. T have
carefully serutinized claimant’s story and have become convinced of the sub-
stautial accuraey of the statements made. There seems to me to be clear
evidenee that claimants present condition, in part at least, is attributable to
maltreatment whilst a prisoner of war. Other possible eauses for his preseat
state ceem to have been eliminated and 1 consider that claimant has been .uc-
cessful in making out a ease. QOn the whole, having regard to the pension he
reccives, I would recommend a pavment to claimant of $500 with interest there-
on, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of pay-

ment. .
ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
' Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 27, 1932, SRR

CASE 2697—GORDON FOSTER

Claimant was a Private in the 15th Battalion—Regimental No. 27474,
He enlisted in August, 1914, at the age of 19 years, and was taken prisoner
April 24, 1915, during the sccond battle of Ypres, suffering from gas. He was
repatriated to England December 31, 1918. He is not in receipt of pension,
was married in November, 1920, and has three children. Prior to enlistment,

he was employed as a carpenter, at about $20 per week, and is now following -

the same trade but cannot find employment.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of starvation, over-
work and abuse, eyesight affected through work underground and salt poison-
ing due to salt entering open wounds.

An analysis of the evidence revcals:—

Claimant passed through Gottingen and Celle lager, and arrived at the ill-
famed Beinerode salt mines. He was kicked and beaten and forced to work
vnderground, where he contracted salt sores. He states he was suspended on

810853
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a_ board with @ rope in cithier emd; dm\‘n_thtrininc‘shﬂft'm{miring“the"Urrsing'; -
where a slip meant a fall of some 600 feet. His evesight beecame affected due

to some refuse splashing in his ¢ve and he states that, against doctor’s orders,

he was compelled to work underground in bright artificial light. He now com-

plain: of nervous trouble and heart strain and savs he cannot climb buildings.

A fellow-prisoner, I&. W. Hopkins, testified that claimant was with him at .
Beinerade,

No medieal evidence was addueed at the hearing, the record consisting of
a certificate by Dr, G, W, Pringle, indicating nervousness and defective vision,
e fixes the disability at 35 per cent. A report from Dr. C. E. Hill, covering
the eve injury, is filed. Tle recommends glasses for close work, Claimant’s
medical history files show nothing unusual. He was apparently discharged as
fit.

We have grown familiar with the cruel and brutal treatment which pre-
vailed at the Beinerode salt mines, where elaimant spent so large a part of
his period of eaptivity.  His story is consistent with that of other prisoners
who were there. T am not surprised that hi= health has suffered, and 1 have
fittle hezitation in finding that elaimant was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in some disability to him. 1 would recommend a payment to him

of 8500, with interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per eent per annum, from January
10, 1920, to date of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Ortawy, January 16, 1933.

CASE 2711—EDWARD THOMAS GALLAMORE

Claimant was a Private in the 15th Battalion—Regimental No. 27478.
He enlisted in August, 1914, at the age of %4 years and was taken prisoner on
April 24, 1915, at the second battle of Ypres, suffering from a slight wound in
the shoulder and affected by gas. He was repatriated to England on or about
December 26, 1918, He i< in receipt of a 20 per cent disability pension, amount-
ing to 232 a month, based upon neurasthenia. He is married and has five
childeen.  Prior to enlistment, he was a butcher, earning 815 per week. IHe is
now an assembler at the Galt Brass Works, carning about 55 cents an hour
when working,

Claimant alleges {hat while a prisoner of war he was subjected to maltreat-
ment which has resulted in peenniary damage to him. He complains of hard
Iahour in the salt mines, blood poisoning, pneumonia and a nervous breakdown
which results in his present neurasthenie condition.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant received some treatment behind the lines and was then sent on
to Gottingen Camp.” Almost i imediately he was notified that he was being
sent out to work on a furm, br t found that he was destined for the ill-famed
stlt mine at Beinerode, where ) ¢ spent three vears and three months. He tells
the familiar story of ill treatm.nt, abuse, lack of food, and long working hours,
recounted by other prisoners who had the misfortune to be sent to this particu-
lar camp. He still suffers from boils or salt sores which he contract. 1 during
this time in Germany. He now suffers from general weakness, lack of con-
centration and a nervous condition which greatly incapacitates him.,

The medical evidence indicates that claimant suffers from neurasthenia and
loss of control of himself. His percentage of disability is stated at 25 per cent.
Dr. D. L. Mackendrick, who certifies to the foregoing, did not appear before
the Commission. There is also filed in the record medical certificate of Dr.
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“Danicl Buchanan; certifving -that—he-attended -elaimant .in..1925_ and. 1929 for
neurasthenia and general nervous debility. A further certifieate of Drv, L
Reginald Beaven is also filed, certifving to the same condition and inferring
from the history of the case that elaimant's disability is due to his experiences
as a prisoner in Germany. '

I have very little hesitation in reaching the conelusion that claimant is

- entitled to an award.  As pointe’ out in my carlier report upon maltreatment

: casex, prisoners at the Beinercde salt mines were treated with the greatest

. cruelty and brutality and it i< not surprising to find that elaimant’s health has

- stffered as a result of his treatment.  Having regard to all the cirenmstances,

I would recommend a payment to claimant of $600 with interest thereon, at the

i rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of payment.

Z' ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
: Orrawa, January 13, 1933. Commissioner,

CASE 2769—FREDERICK GALLANT

Claimant was a Private in the 102nd Battalion—Regimental No. 703349,
He enlisted in November, 1915, at the age of 32 years and was taken prisoner
 November 11, 1916, at Courcelette, unwounded. He was repatriated to England
December 14, 1918, He is not in receipt of pension and is unmarried. Prior
~to enlistment, he was emploved as a logger, averaging $100 per month and is
- now unemployed although he has followe« lumbering operations since discharge.
: He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
~ has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of being worked hehind
the lines under shell fire, beaten, starved and that he received no pareels,

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was detained at working camps behind the lines from the tiine of
~ecapture until August, 1917, He was subjected to rough usage, exposed to shell
" fire and an air bombardment, given unhealthy food and exposed to all weathers.

At Ecourt St. Quentin, he complains chiefly of the lack of food, and of one

guard, who continually tormmented the prisoners. At Bochaine, they were
" bombed by allied planes, the work was hard and the food exceptionally bad.

Sent to Germany, he reached Schneidemuhl, where he was placed at work carry-
~ing coal. He, with others, was beaten with whips. He also sent to Poatzig,

Zadow and Krusewitz, but was subjectes! to no particular maltreatment. His

main complaint is as to treatment to which he was subjected behind the lines
" at Queant, Ecourt St. Quentin and Bochaine, as a result of which he suffers from
- nervous disorders, . '

There is no medical evidence of record, not even the usual certificate of a
physician. Claimant's medical history files contain a statement made by him
on repatriation concerning conditions behind the lines, which is consistent with
: other evidence on the subject. Claimant apparently made a good recovery,
» because he was discharged as fit. )

. Claimant spent several months held behind the lines and seems to have

- come through his experiences with comparatively little disability. We have grown

" familiar with the conditions of brutality and cruelty which prevailed in these

~ camps and, while claimant has not shown any very detinite disability from his

~ treatment, 1 think he should receive an award on the general ground of the
nature of the captivity and brutality he was forced to endure. I would, accord-
ingly, rccommend a payment to him of 500, with interest thercon, at the rate
of & per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of payment.

, ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
O1.awa, December 30, 1932. Commissioner.
8108533
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T T T CASE 278 2==MANSELL-JAMES GRIEFIN.

Claimant was a Private in the 7th Battalion—Regimental No. 21696. He
enlisted in August, 1914, at the age of 25 years and was taken prisoner April
23, 1915, during the second battle of Ypres, suffering with shrapnel wounds in
the knee and groin,__He was repatriated to England, December 10, 1918, He
is in receipt of a 10 per cent disability pension, amounting to $10 per month,
based on nephritis.  He stutes he recently .received a letter advising that his
pension has been discontinued. He was married in May, 1921, and has no
children. Prior to enlistment, he wos farming, earning $60 per month and board
and is now engaged in fur farming bui finds it hard to keep out of debt.

1le alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in peeuniary damage to him. He complains of beatings, solitary
confinement and denial of medieal attention while ill. :

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was attached to Giessen Camp during his period of captivity and
was sent out to different working commandos. He was sent to a plant at
Neidersehelden, where, upon discovering he was expected to work on munitions,
he refused to comply and attempted to cscape, Reecaptured, he was given 14
days cells at Giessen, and was sent back to the same plant, where, upon further
refusal to work on shells, he was kicked and beaten with a rifle and was placed
in a small tool shed which was bricked in after him. He was removed after,
four hours and placed in a cell for 21 days. e received a blow from a riflelhutt’
on the side of the head and shoulder, knocking him unconseious, He wasialso
kicked in the face, eve, ribs and stomach, e was then taken to the barracks,
where other British prisoners were confined (declarations by two of whom are
on file attesting to claimant’s condition immediately after this beating). He
contracted infhienza and was refused attention. At Giesweid, he was placed in
the steam box, sv-called. As a result of the beating, he complains of his arm
and shoulder and deafness in the right ear. The aflidavit of H. 8. Kenyon was
read into the record as corroborating claimant’s story,

The medieal record consists of a certificate by Dr., W. Ross Stone, who
examined claimant subsequent to the hearing, e finds lameness and pain in
the right shoulder, which he attributes to a blow en the right shoulder, A cer-
tificate of Dr. H. R. Mustard is also filed, certifying to nerve and catarrhal
deafness in hoth ears.  Neither physician appeared before the Commission.
Claimant’s medieal history files show the esadition of nephritis and refer to
arthritis and otitis media as “post discharge”,

A puzzling feature of this case is that elaimant made no claim at the time
of his medical examination onr discharge of an injured shoulder, but referred
only to a minor foot injury, sirce clearec up. He appears to have aroused the
particular hostility of his guards by his persistent refusal to work upon muni-
tions, e was apparently one of the first to adopt this course.at Giessen and
his casc came to be régarded as a test caze.  The evidence of abuse, by way of
punishment, to which he was subjected, is clear. His own statements are cor-
roborated by the affidavits of fellow prisoners. I do not believe, however, that
the partial deafness of which he speaks, resulted from this treatment. That his
shoulder was injured from blows of a rifle is not clear but I think he should
have the benefit of the doubt and I find that he has been left with some disability
from such treatment. I regard the punishment he received as going beyond all
reasonable bounds and as constituting maltreatment. On the whole, I think
claimant has made out a case, and I would, aceordingly, recommend a payment
to him of $500, with interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from
January 10, 1920, to date of payment,

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

’ Commissioner.
OtTawa, December 30, 1932.
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o _.______CASE 2531—FRED HILDERMAN

Claimant was a Private in the 50th Battalion—Regimental No. 447929.
He enlisted November 17, 1915, at the age of 15 years, He was born in Russia
and states that he obtained his naturalization papers this year. He was taken
prisoner November 18, 1916, unwounded. He was repatriated to England,
December 9th, 1918, and is in receipt of a 15 per cent disability pension, amount-
ing to $19.50 per month, based on visceroptosis and appendicitis. He was married
in May, 1928, and has two children. Prior to enlistment, he was an hotel bell-
boy, at $10 per month and tips, and since 1924 has been a dining car waiter,
carning from $90 to $175 per month. He was laid off at the time of the hearing.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him., He complains of starvation and
lack of medical attention, '

An analysis of the evidence reveals:— ;

After capture, claimant was detained for some weeks behind the lines, He
was sent to Maritz, in France, and placed on road work, also behind the lines.
He was starved, and deseribes the conditions as to food and heavy labour as
particularly harsh. When unfit for further work, he was next taken to Munster
No. 2, and thence to Minden, where he was fairly treated until January, 1918,
when he was sent to Witten. He was sent back to Minden, charged with having
incited mutiny, and went to hospital with bronchitis, where he remained until
after the Armistice.

. The medieal record consists of certificates by Drs, H, Gordon Young and
F. D. Wilson, neither of whom appeared before the Commission, and a report
of an X-ray examination of the thorax. Dr. Young certifies that he treated
claimant for bronchitis and Dr. Wilson treated him for about five months for
hronchiectasis. Claimant’s medical history files show the conditions referred to,
and coniain statements made by claimant upon repatriation. Unfortunately,
a part of these is practically indecipherable,

Claimant’s main complaint centres around his experiences while held behind
the lines and made to work. While the conditions behind the lines as applying
to prisoners there held, from the official reports, appear to have been later in
date than the Fall of 1916 and beginning of 1917, I have reached the conelusion
crom claimant’s testimony and statements made on repatriation, that he was
subjected to this particularly harsh form of punishment. When he was sent back
into Germany, as unfit for further work, he was emaciated and in a pitiable
condition. I consider that evidence of maltreatment has been made, and it is
not surprising that injury to health has resulted. I am inclined to give claimant
the benefit of any doubt there may be, -and would recommend a payment to
him of $500, with interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from
January 10,1920, to date of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner,
Or1awa, December 28, 1932.

CASE 2712—HENRY GEORGE HITCHMAN

_ Claimant was a Private in the 4th C.M.R.—Regimental No. 113292, He
enlisted in July, 1915, at the age of 21 years and was taken prisoner on June 2,
1916, unwounded. He was repatrinted to England in November, 1918. He is
not in receipt of pension, was married May 2, 1920, and has two children. Prior
to cnlistment, he was a shipper with Campbell Flour Mills, earning $14 per
week. He is now without steady employment.
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. _Claimant_nlleges_that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment
which has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of being struck
on the head, nose and finger, with resultant injury, exeessive labour and punish-
ment.

An analysis of the evidenee reveals:— .

Claimant was first taken to Dulmen camp, as to which he has ro com-
plaints. He was then sent to the coal mines—Commando 47—where he remained
for the duration of the war. He was struck over-the head and nose for not
working fast enough. Claimant apparently retalinted, was tried sentenced
and served confinement to eells, Claimant tells a rather confused story but
stresses the two oceasions when he was struck as above stated.  He suffers with
his chest, bronchitis and hacmorrhoids. _

The medical record indieates that claimant suffers from haemorrhoids
(bleeding), chronie bronehitis und svmptoms of gastrie uleer. His percentage
of disability is stated at from 50 per cent to 60 per eent. Dr. ¥. N, Hughes,
wlio certifies to the foregoing, appearcd before the Commission and declared
claimant’s main disability to be the condition of gastrie uleer for which he was
treating him.  He also suffers from bronchitis.  Claimant’s medieal history files
show nothing unusual. He was apparently diseharged as fit,

Were it not for the fact that claimant spent twenty-seven months in the
coal mines I would not be inclined to view his case with favour. 1 am satisfied,
however, that he was subjected to maltreatment, and would accordingly recom-
mend a pavment to him of $500 with interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent
per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of pavment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner.
Orrawa, January 14, 1933.

CASE 2750 —REGINALD HERBERT HOCKEY

Claimant was a Private in the 48th Battalion—Regimental No. 430215. He
enlisted in February, 1915, at the age of 20 vears and was taken prizoner June
2, 1916, unwounded. He was repatriated to Fngland December 14, 1918, He is
not in receipt of pension, was married in 1922, and has no children. Prior to
enlistment, he was employed as a stair builder, earning $4.50 per day and is now
a Life Insurance salesman, ranging from $175 to 8300 per month.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which has
resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of forced labour while ill,
long houis, blows, starvation and long stretches of standing to attention in the
hieat of the sun.

An. anlaysis of the evidence reveals:—-

Claimant wag first taken to Dulmen, where he remained six weeks and was
then removed to the coal mines at Oespel No. 1, where he spent two vears and a
half. For refusing to work, he, with others, was compelled to stand to attention

Afor eleven hour periods and received blows for the slightest movement. He
collapsed after several days of this treatment and finally went to work. He
was suffering with rheumatism at the time, due to work at the coke ovens, and
was foreibly earr.ed from bed and put to work. Unable to carry on at work,
he received repeated beatings. The food was searce and contributed to the
inability te work ‘'on account of weakness. He suffers with his eyes—his main
complaint—which he attributes to the work done in the mine, by artificial light.
He seeme to have had a touch of sleeping sickness in 1922-23 and had slight
hallucinations.
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The medical record consists of certificates by Doctors Gunn, Hackney and
—Shoreof Calgary-who-find-clatmant-suffering-from-catarrhal deafness-in-both.cars

with chronic conjunctivitis and blepharitis. Patient had several attacks of
double vision and was unable to remain -awake. A certificate by Dr. J. V.
Follett is also filed, indicating that he treated claimant for double vision in 1923
and preseribed speetacles. Again, in 1925, he treated him for deafness. Claim-
ant’s medieal history files show nothing unusual. He was apparently discharged
as fit. : : :

Claimant stresses the cendition of his eyes as resulting from his experi-
cnees in Germany. While 1T am informed that the work on the coke-ovens and
in the coal mines was not likely to induce the trouble complained of, the evidence
indicating that impaired vision is attributable to his post discharge illness I yet
feel that the extreme harshness of the treatment to which claimant was subjected
in being made to work in his then condition may have contributed to his dis-
ability. Having regard to the fact that claimant spent over two years in the
coal mines as to which we have an abundance of evidence of cruelty and mal-
treatment I am disposed to resolve whatever doubts there may be in his favour.
I would recommend a payment to claimant of $600 with interest thereon, at the
Tate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Ortawa, December 23, 1932.

CASE 2 {5—FRED JEWSON

Claimant was a Private in the 49th Battalion—Regimental No. 432762.
He enlisted on January 14, 1915, at the age of 31 years, and was taken prisoner
on Junc 4,°1916, unwounded. He was repatriated to England on November 15,
1918. Claimant is in receipt of a 25 per cent disability pension, amounting to
$25 per month, based on neurasthenia.  He is married and has-six-children, all of
age. Prior to enlistment, he was a bricklay er, earning about 85 per day. When
working now, he is a plasterer and carns §8 per day.

Claimant alleges that while a prisoner of war he was subjected to mal-
treatment which has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains-of
general abuse, violent beatings about the head and body and excessive punish-
ment.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was taken to Giessen camp and was sent out to a farm for a year.
While ill he was knocked off his bunk and beaten, being hit on the head and
confined to cells. As a result he spent four weeks in hospital and was then sent
to an ore mine at Hagen to work. He was again beeten, being regarded by the
guards ag lazy. An attempt to escape earned claimant six weeks punishment
work in a stone quarry. Claimant complains chiefly of the blows he received
on the head and suffers from neurasthenia. Claimant’s statement of rough treat-
ment at the ore mines is corroborated by the affidavit of a fellow prisoner.

The medical record indicates that claimant is suffering from “weakness and
lack of control. Has not strength to work, losing weight———————cannot sleep
or eat, pulse 84—is suffering from nervous debility.” His percentage of dis-
ability is stated at 100 per cent. Dr. A. V. Webster, who certifies to the fore-
going, did not appear before the Commission. A further certificate of Dr.
O. 8. Large is filed to the effect that claimant suffers from very marked
ncurasthenin, annemia, gastric disturbances, sleeplessness and depression.  His

medical history files refer to the ncurasthenic condition, for which he receives
pension. :
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Were it not for the fact that elaimant served time in the ore mines, I would
—-—be-inclined_to_regard his_casc_as purely_pensionable. The medical evidence
clearly establishes disability and 1 think the record justifies a finding that claim-

ant was subjected to maltreatment which has resulted in some permanent dis-
ability. Claimant’s own evidence is not entirely satisfactory, but I am disposed

to give him the benefit of the doubt. I would, accordingly, recommend a pay-
ment to him of $500, v..ch interest thercon, at the rate of 5.per cent per annum,

from January 10, 1920, vo date-o( paymont,

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Orrawa, January 7, 1933. Commissioner.

'

CASE 2774—SIDNEY PERCY JONES

Claimant was a Private in the 28th Bettalion—Regimental No. 73668. He
enlisted October 23, 1914, at the age of 17 years and was taken prisoner June 6,
1916, suffering, from shrapnel wounds in both arms and thighs, He was repa-
triated to England December 22, 1918, He is vot in receipt of a pension, was
married in Mareh 1919, and has one child.  Prior *o enlistinent, he was employed
as n waiter, carning 25 per month and tips and is now a gas works operator, at
about &5 per day,

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjested to maltreatment which
has resulted in peeuniary damage to him. He does not set out particulars of
complaint in his deelaration.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant. was treated in hospital for two months and has no complaints of
his treatment. Sent then to Hameln, and placed at work in a salt mine under
the usual conditions of hard labour, long hours and poor ventilation, he attemted
to eseape, was recaptured, received two weeks confinement and was then returned
to work in the mine. Due to excessive labour, he refused to carry on and was
placed, with others, in a small engine room which had been so sealed up that
they could searcely breathe. Upon release, he did another two weeks confine-
ment. In ancther salt mine, he received a beating for remonstrating with a
sentry.  He contracted salt poisoning but received no medical treatment and
finally eommenced spitting blood whereupon he was placed on a farm. He
finally resorted to pouring scalding water over his foot, in order to escape heing
‘hounded to work. Hugh H. Legate testificd that he knew claimant before and
after the war and affirms his present condition of nervousness,

No medical testimony was adduced at the hearing, the record consisting of
a_certificate by Dr. G. H. Wilsen, who examined elaimant prior to the hearing.

-He states “in my opinion he sustained a very severe shock to his nervous system
before maturity whieh he is unlikely to recover from. This likely accounts for
the early change in his blood vessels with the accompanying high blood pressure.
Diagnosis—Arterio-sclerosis, neurasthenia”.  Claimant’s medical history files
refer to a slight weakness of the nervous system, but causing no disability. The
record is completed by a certificate from the Ancient Order of United Workimen,
refusing elaimant membership in 1924 due to his niedieal unfitness,

Claimant’s salt mine experiences are very similar to those spoken of by
other prisoners who were subjeeted to the same conditions. The story is one of
censtant cruelty and brutality (See Opinion anncxed to my earlier report on
maiieatment cases). I find that claimaut has shown a disability resulting from
maltreatment and I would recommend a payment to him of $600 with interest
thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of

payment.
ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Orrawa, January 10, 1933. Commassioner,

D P S S
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CASE 2730—ALFRLED NEIL MACKINNON

T Claimant was a Private-in-the-16th-Battalion—Regimental No. 28063, He
enlisted September 22, 1914, at the age of 21 years, and was taken prisoner April
22, 1915, during the second battle of Ypres, suffering from gas. He was released
to Holland about August 1, 1918, and reached England November 2 of that year.
He is in receipt of a 10 per cent disability pension, amounting to $7.50 per month,
based on bronchitis. He is unmarried. Prior to enlistment, he was employed
as a tailor, earning $18 per week. He is now unemployed. He tried several jobs
after discharge but had to give them up, due to the state of his health,

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him, He complains of kicks and blows and
sovere beatings for refusal to work on munitions, given solitary confinement and
his life threatened several times. \While ill and unclothed v.as kicked out doors
in January. Was tied to posts for four hour periods, over dve days, and sent to
three different. salt mines where the labour and punizhmernts were brutal. Finally,
in a state of collapse, he was sent to Holland, where he remained in hospital
until shortly before the Armistice.

An analysis of the evidence revenls:-~

Claimant was first taken to Giessen Camp, where he complains of general
rough treatment. For refusing to work at munitions at Hildesheim, he was
beaten and confined to célls on starvation diet. Sent on to Vehnemoor, claimant
complains that while sick he was thrown out of his bunk, practically naked, and
put out in the open in January. At Ostenholzenmoor, claimant was beaten for
not working fast enough and tied to a post at Celle lager for {our hour periods
on several successive days. He then had the misfortune to be sent to the notorious
salt mines at Beinerode, where he worked for four months under conditions of
cruelty with which we have grown familiar from the statements of other prisoners.
He escaped, was recaptured and sent to another salt mine, near Hitdesheim,
where the treatment was equally severe, Sent to Hameln, claimant was in
hospital for three weeks and then found himself at another salt mine at Granau,
where he encountered rongh and abusive treatment. As a result of these experi-
ences, claimant suffers from nervousness, rheumatism, bronchitis and general
debility,

There is no medical evidence of record and claimant relies upon his medical
history files to establish his disability. While this record is not entirely favour-
able to claimant’s contentions, I think the evidence, as a whole, justities a finding
of maltreatment with some resultant disability. T S

Were it not § = the fact that claimant spent about sixteen months of his
period of eaptivity in the ill famed salt mines, I would not be disposed to regard
his claim: with favour, havirg regard to his medical history files. As stated
above, claimant was exposed to extreme hardship, and I am prepared to give
him the benefit of the doubt in recommending a payment to him of $500, with
interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to
date of payment. : ‘

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

- " Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 20, 1932.
Nore—~1I would suggest that the payment in this case be forwarded in eare
of the Secretary of the local branch of the Canadian Legion.
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CASE 2540—MALCOLM McDONALD

Claimant was a Private in the Royal Canadian Rifles—Regimental No.
478532. e enlisted August 23, 1915, at the age of 20 vears and was taken
prisoner October 8, 1916, on the Somme, unwounded. He was repatriated to
England in December, 1918, He i< in receipt of a 30 per cent disability pension,
amounting to 822.50 per month, based on stomach disorders. He is unmarried:
but has the care of vounger brothers and sisters.  Prior to enlistiment, he was
cmployed as a coal miner, earning $1.45 per day and after discharge resumed his
trade, making 85 per day. He is now unemployed due to ill health,

He alleges that while a prizoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in peeuniary damage to him. He complains of labour in coal nmines, -
bad food. exposure and injury to finger on the right hand, smashed in the cogl
mines, for which he received no treatment,

An analvsis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was frst sent to Dulmen camp, where he remained 3 weeks and
hooo vo complaints. Sent 1o Friedrichsfeld, e remained at the coal mines for
the v mainder of his period of eaptivity., He does not complain of any particular
bratality, but deelares that the food conditions were very bad. e is very frank
in declaring that his present stomaeh condition i< attributable to the poor food
received. Probably beeause elaimant was o miner by trade, he was able to bear
up under‘the trying conditions in the mine.  On one oceasion he sustained an
injury to his finger. for which he received practically no medical treatment, He
was alzo subjected to the usual “stillestande” punishment for attempted escapes
by other prisoners.  Hiz eomphiint is confined to the condition of his stomach.

The medical evidence indicates that elaimant™sufiers from duodenal uleer,
for which he was treated sinee 1925 by Dr. F. W, Maedonald, and by Dr. C. J.
Sparrow. at an earlier date. for the same condition.  Neither of these doctors
appeared hefore the Commmfion. Claimant's medical history files show nothing
unuzual, the stomach condition heing referred to as entitlement to pension.

Having regard to the faet that claimant spent two vears in the coal mines
I am disposed to resolve whatever doubts there may be in his favour. I would
recommend a payment to claimant of $500 with interest thereon, at the rate of 5
per cent annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 15, 1932

CASE 2654—ROBERT MOORE

Claimant was a Private in the 7th Battalion—Regimental No. 16800. He
enlisted in August, 1914, at the age of 38 vears, and was taken prisoner on April
24, 1915, during the second battle of Ypres, wounded in the ealf of the left leg.
He was repatriated to England in November 1918, He is in receipt of a 5 per
cent dizability pension, amounting to §3.75 per month, based upon his wound.
Claimant was married upon enlistment and has four children. Prior to enlist-
ment, ke was a carpenter, earning 84.50 per day. He is now unemployed, but
=till follows his trade when possible. .

Claimant alleges that while a prisoner, he was subjected to maltreatment
which has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of conditions in
the coal mines, frequent beatings, and general abuse, resulting in disability due
to rheumatism.
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An analys! of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was taken to Paderborn hospital, via Roulers, and reeeived nothing
to cat for five days. In hospital, at Paderborn, his wounds were attended roughly
but efliciently. Sent to Sennelager, he was given light work for two months, and
after a short time at Straumuhl, was sent to Dulmen for about a year. The work
was severe—cutting down trees, but finally he was given lighter work and com-
plains of general rough treatment. Sent then to the coal mines at Mengede, he
remained two years and tells the familiar story of alimost constant brutality and
ill treatment.  He was beaten and knocked unconscious on one occasion and
refers to his period here as “one continnous batting around.” Claimant complains
of rheumatism, impairment of vision and some indigestion.

The medical record indieates that claimant suffers from “muscular rheuma-
tism involving arms and legs, and rhenmatie iritis.”  His percentage of disability
is stated at 10 per cent. Dr. J. W. Lennox, who certifies to the foregoing, also
appeared before the Commission.  He is unable to say whether claimant’s con-
dition results from the experiences related-—it might result from exposure, and
he can say little as to the eye condition.  Claimant’s mediceal history files show
nothing unusual. The wound in his leg is alone referred to.

As will be scen, elaimant does not suffer any great disability, and, were
it not for the fact that he spent about two years in the coal mines, I would
not be inelined to regard his case favourably. In view of all the circumstanees
and other testimony available as (o the harsh and brutal treatment accorded
prisoners in these mines;, I have reached the conclusion that elaimant was
subjected  to maltreatment which has resulted in some disability. I would,
accordingly, recommend a payment to him of 8500, with interest thereon, at
the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January. 10, 1920, to date of Payment.

ERROL M. MceDOUGALL,

Commisstoner.
Otrrawa, January 10, 1933.

CASE 2541 —-DUNCAN PETERS

Claimant was a Private in the 113th Battalion—Regimental No. 736806.
He enlisted March 17, 1916, at the age of 30 years and was taken prisoner
Mareh 15, 1917, at Vimy Ridge, unwounded. He was repatriated to England
December 9, 1918, He is not in receipt of pension, was married in November,
1919, and has an adopted son, now 18 years of age. Prior to enlistment, he
was employed as a brick burner at about $4 per day, is now farming for
himself and making a living.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him, He complains of beatings and kicks
and being foreed to work when not fit.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant first spent 15 days in Fort McDonald and complains of the
lack of food, ventilation and sanitary conditions, He was placed on working
parties behind the lines for some ecight months, under shell fire. Here he
received a beating by an officer beeause he was a Canadian, Sent to Germany
he was first placed in the lazaret, at Zerbst, where he had a rest and was then
sent to Elsburg, where he tock ill with influenza, Placed at lumbering work,
he received several blows one of which injured his ear, causing frequent buzzing.
He finished his period of captivity at Elsburg. T

The medical record consists of a certificate by Dr. J. B. Snyder, who finds
claimant physically unfit and suffering from premature senility. He fixes his
disability at from 40 per cent to 50 per cent. Claimant’s medicai history files
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indicate that he suffered from influenza in Germany, in September, 1918, with
no disability on discharge.

Were it not for the fact that claimant spent 8 months working behind
the German lines, under shell fire and subjected to starvation, 1 would not be
disposed 1o regard his case favourably. We have had an abundance of cvidence
as to conditions behind the lines and claimant’s statement is consistent. therewith
(See Opinion annexed to my earlier report on maltrestment cases). It is true
that the official records and evidence given refer to conditions bebhind the lines
in 1918, but I have no reason to doubt claimant’s story of similar treatment
in 1917. 1 consider that claimant has established impairment to health due
to maltreatment whilst a prisoner of war. I would recommend a payment to
nim of $500, with interest thercon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from
January 10, 1920, to date of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALIL,

Commissioner.
Ortawa, December 21, 1932,

CASE 2669—EDMUND RICHER

Claimant was a Private in the 4th CM.R.—Regimental No. 113515, He
enlisted Luly 15, 1915, at the age of 18 years and was taken prisoner June 2,
1016, suffermg from a touel. of shell gns. He was repatriated to England
December 10, 1918, He is not in receipt of pension, was married July 9,
1920, and has three children. Prior to enlistment, he was an apprenticed
printer, at no salary, and after discharge did odd jobs but has been unemploved
for the past two years. -

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of labour in coal
mines for many months, long hours of work, beaten, shot at, and given confine-
ment elternately in hot and cold rooms, and reecived injuries to his hands
trying to fend off & bayonet in the hands of the guard. He still earries sears.
He is now =ubject to weakness and fainting spells and cannot hold a job.
His attestation paper indicates that there were sears on both thumbs when
he enlisted,

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant does not complain particularly of his treatment at Dulmen or
Munster No. 3 Camps, to which he was first sent. His complaints centre around
his experiences in the coal mines at Lunen in 1917, and later at Karlingsburg.
He spent sixteen months in the coal mines and complains of the hard work,
leng hours and poor food. On one occasion he was shot at by a guard, the
bullet picreing the skin, and was hit on the head with a revolver, knocking
him unconseious.  Placed in cells, he was alternately exposed to hot.and cold.
He also ran foul of a guard and was wounded by a bayonet in the hands of
a guard when he tried to fend off blows aimed at his head. His statement made
upon repatriation, while less detailed, is substantially in accord with his
testimony.  Claimant suffers from what he calls fits.

The medical evidence is very general and consists merely in the certificate
of Dr. J. A, Labelle to the efeet that in 1921 he attended claimant and found
him in a generally run down condition which is assumed to have been due to
maltreatment. Claimant’s medical history files show ncthing unusual,

While the medical evidence is not strong as showing serious disability,
I have reached the conclusion based upon claimant’s coal mine experiences,
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that any doubt there may be should be resolved in his favour. I would
recommend a payment to claimant of 8500 with interest thereon, at the rate
of 5 per cent per annum, from Junuary 10, 1920, to date of payment.

ERROL M. MeDOUGALL,
) Commissioner.
Otraws, December 20, 1932.

CASE 2673—CHARLES SIDNEY RILEY

Claimant was a Private in the 14th Battalion—Regimental No. 25884, He
enlisted in August 1914, at the age of 18 ycars and was taken prisoner April
24, 1915, during the second battle of Ypres, suffering from a slight scalp wound
received two weeks earlier, and a touch of gas. He was repatriated to England
December 13, 1918. He is not in receipt of pension, was married in February,
1919, and has one child. Prior to enlistment, he was an acrobat, earning
€30 per week and is now unemployed but had been engaged in theatrieal
dancing, etectera, until 1931. . :

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatiment which
has resulted in pecuniary dw.age to him, He complains of poor medical
attention for a broken arm, four beatings, injury to his foot and long periods
of solitary confinement,

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was attached to Giessen camp but was sent out on some thirty
different working commandos. He became associated with a group of fellow
prisoners who refused to work and becamne organized for the purpose of cffect-
ing an eseape. He states that he did fourteen months’ continuous confinement
to celle at Giessen for a erime he did not commit. He was not in the dark
cells all the time and was with fellow-prisoners part of the time. His confine-
ment to dark cells was limited to three days at a streteh. He was beaten
four times, the worst being at a stone quarry at Wetzlau, where his wrist
bone was broken. He says he reccived bad medical attention as the bone was
not properly set. In an iron foundry at Weidenan, the foreman pushed a heavy
jiron bar he was helping to unload from a flat car, so that it fell crushing
his instep. He received medical attention. His term of imprisonment was the
result of a court-martial; claimant had been singled out as the ringleader of
a strike in which he had no part. He was sentenced to 14 months for ineiting
a mutiny. On top of this sentence, he served three months at Cologne for
refusing to work in a terrific rainstorm. Here, he was placed in a straight-
jocket for insubordination. Claimant was questioned by the medical adviser
to the Commission for corroboration as to the broken wrist and a letter from
. Walker, a fcllow-prisoner, was read into the record. This letter substan-
tiates the story of this incident. In response to enquirics made by this
Commission, letters have been received from George D. Scott, and R. H. Green,
fellow prisoners, which further corroborate the story of the broken wrist.
Subsequent to the hearing, claimant wrote the Commission to amplify his
evidence. In his letter, he asserts that while a prisoner he deemed it his duty
to cause all the trouble possible to the enemy, threw away tools, made six
attempts to eseape and sided others to do so, as the result of which he suffered
extreme abuse and punishment. He alleges that he was a member of the
“iron twenty.” He encloses a friendly letter from G. D. Scott as an indica-
tion of his close relationship with him, while in Germany.

The medical record consists of a certificate by Dr. F. S. Minas, indicating
injury to the left foot, fracture of the left forearm and weak eyes. The
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disability is rated at from 25 per cent to 100 per eent.  Claimant’s medieal
history files show nothing unusual, He was apparently discharged as fit.

The elaimant told his story in a very steaightforward and convineing
manner and T must say that whilst his story is not substantiated by the medieal
records, which are somewhat meagre, T am saticfied with the corroboration
of three fellow prisoners, G, D, Seott, W. Walker, and R. H. Gircen, as to the
injury received by him to his arm.  There ix no doubt that he suffered a
dizability which must bave handicapped him to some extent in his profession
and whilst he may have brought some of the brutality 'upon himeelf, T believe
that he did what he eonsidercd his duty. Viewing the case as a whole, T would
recommend a payment to him of 2800, with interest thercon, at the rate of 5 per
cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of pavment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner,
Orrawa, January 24, 1933,

CASE 2336 --CIHHARLES ROMER

Claimant was a Private in the 7th Battalion—Regimental No. 16690, He
enlisted in Angust, 1914, av the age of 33 vears and was taken prisoner on
April 24, 1915, at the sceond battle of Ypres, slightly wounded. He was
repatriated to Englund in December, 1918, e is not in receipt of pension and
1> unmarried.  Prior to enlistnent, elaimant was a labourer, earning about $100
per month. e has not worked for two vears and is on city relief.

Claimant alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment
which has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of beatings,
exeessive hard labour, inadequate food and general rough treatment by wav of
reprisals.  He suffers from neurasthenie depression, melancholia and general
debility.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:——

Claimant was taken to Muaster, via Roulers, and soon sent out to a mine
near Sterkrade. He was beaten beeause of the eseape of other prisoners and
made to stand to attention for a long period. He was here about nine months
and complains bitterly of the poor food and heavy labour. Taken sick, he was
returned to Munster, and, after a few weeks sent to the Russian front, as a
reprisal prisoner. Here, he was employved at making reads, cutting timbers.
The guards were very bratal.  Claimant beeame weak, reported sick and was
sent back into Germany to Munster, followed by Langensalza and a railway
construetion part . Later at Plowe (sic) he was hit by the guards for inability
to work. Ior an attempted escape from the railway construction gang, claim-
ant was beaten and eonfined to cells.  Claimant’s symptoms would appear to
indieate & depressive psyehosis,  Claimant has brought forward testimony of
persons who knew him before and after his period of captivity. They declare
him to be greatly altered as well physically as mentally.

The medieal record indieates that claimant suffers from neurasthenia and
despondeney. Dr. T, V. Cuniin, who so certifies. also appeared before the Com-
mixsion and confirmed his certificate. e is unable to state the cause of claim-
ant’s condition, having scen him for the first time in 1931, The medieal history
files show nothing unusual. Claimant was apparently discharged as fit.

Claimant was clearly in a nervous condition at the hearing and told a
very pitiful story of hardship and brutality. The memory of his ill treatment
and resentment therefor seem to have preved upon his mind to the extent of
inducing the condition of which he now complains.  After anxious reflection,
I am inclined to give claimant the henefit of whatever doubt there mayv be



FINAL REPORT 47

and to find that he was subjected to maltreatment which has resulted in some
disability. In doing so, I bear clearly in mind his experiences, as a reprisal
prisoner on the Russian front, as also time spent in the coal mines. 1 would,
accordingly, recommend a payment to him of 8500, with interest thereon, at
the rate of 5 per cent per annum from January 10, 1920, to date of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGAILL,

: Commissioner,
Otrawy, Jaruary 9, 1933. !

CASE 2681—JOHN ARTHUR SALMON

Claimant was a Private in the 44th Battalion—Regimental No, 219917,
He enlisted October 26, 1915, at the age of 15 years, and was taken prisoner
August 23, 1917, unwounded. He was repatriated to England December 7, 1918,
He is in receipt of a 60 per cent disability pension, amounting to $77 per month
for himself and family, based on neurasthenia. He was married December 20,
1915, and has three children, one adopted. Prior to enlistment, he was em-
ployed as a farm labourer, earning about $136 per year with board, and is at
present unemployved but held many different jobs since discharge.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltréatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of being beaten with
a hammer in the back causing permanent injury, refusal of proper medical
treatment, long howrs of heavy labour while ill, and starvation. '

An analysis of the evidence reveals:— :

Claiinant was first taken to Douai, where he was compelled to work on
stone barges without sufficient food to sustain him. After a month he was
sent to Friederichsfeld, attached to Dulmen, where he remained another month.
Finally he arrived at Essen, to work in the Vietory coal mines, where he re-
mained for more than a vear. He speaks of onc oecasion, when, ill with stomach
paing, the doctor refused him medical aid and sent him back to work. He fell
from weakness due to the pains and heavy work and the guard struck him
twice with a shovel and he was again struck by the German mine boss with a
heavy hammer twice across the back leaving him with an injured back. Later,
due to an outbreak of boils, he tried to have them lanced, but as the doctor
was about to usge an unsterilized instrument which he had just used on a Rus-
sian prisoner, the claimant refused to let him preceed, and was sent back to
work. He tried to get a little sleep down in the mine but received another
heating from the mine boss, this time with the handle of the hammer. He
states that these blows have left a definite injury to the back and have con-
tributed to his condition of neurasthenia. He was only about 16 vears of age
at the time and was compelled to do a man’s work, with 24 hours shifts at the
week-ends, . | complains that he did not get nearly enough sleep. He is now
unable to do any lifting and had te zive up several jobs due to the condition of
his back. .

Dr. William A. Dobson appeared and verified a certificate given by him
“indieating that ncurasthenia is at‘ributable to overseas serviee and not un-
likely brought on by experiences while a prisoner of war in Germany. He first
saw claimant in 1925, who then complained of stomach disorders, pain in the
lower spine, aching of the eves, and that nis legs tired easily. In 1926 and
1927 the complaints were the same and he placed him in hospital in April,
1931. His diagnosis continued to be neurasthenia on defective basis. He says
the defective condition would not have any connection with overseas service.
The neurasthenia condition, however, has been recognized as a serviee condi-
tion, qualifyving him for pension. The record further contains a report of Dr.
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A. P. Proeter, who did not appear, indieating that an examination had been
made by him of elaimant’s file. The reports thereon testify to a condition of
neurasthenia and anxiety or repression neurosis said to have originated at
Essen, Germany. A further letter from Dr. Procter recites as follows: “ His
condition has never improved and he has a fairly severe neurasthenia based
on anxiety neuhosis.” A specialist’s report by Dr. J. Brown is also filed.

Having regard to the fact that elnimant spent over o vear in the coal mines
‘md the medieal evidence, which attributes a part at least of his disability to
these experiences, T am disposed to view the case favourably. - Claimant's
statements of brutality and duress, while working in the coal mines, are quite
consistent with other evidence as to the conditions which there prevailed. On
the whole, 1 would recommend % payment to claimant of 8500, with interest
thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date
of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commuissioner.
Orrawa, January 6, 1933.

CASE 2686—-JAMES SMITH

Claimant was a Private in the Fort Garry Horse—Regimental No. 116094,
e enlisted March 29, 1915, at the age of 26 vears and was taken prisoner
November 20, 1917, unwounded. He was repatriated to England in Novemer,
1918. He is not in receipt of pension, was married in July, 1920, and has four
children.  Prior to enlistment, he was employed as a carpenter, carning about
£5 per day and since discharge he tried farming but had to give up due to ill
health. He then tried working as a car repairer but could not continue the work
regularly.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. 1fe cenplains of glandular trouble
in the neck, aseribed to bad barrack accommodation and neglect while a prisoner.
Also stomach disorders.

An analysis of the evidenee reveals:—

After capture, clamant was held in France for six weeks. He states that
the barrack accommodations there were bad; that the prisoners were over-
crowded in an old brewery and exposed to draughts and dampness which resulted,
in claimunt’s case, in swelling of the glands of his neck. He loses much timo
from work, mostly in winter. He was taken to Munster, in Westphalia, but was
returncd to France and made to work behind the lines from February till
(’}(-lt;uhvr, 1918. The food was bad and the guards would not allow him to report
sick.

The medieal record consists of certifieates by Doctors G. C. Paine, N. M.
MeNeil and G, S, Parvis, none of whom appeared before the Commission. Dr.
Paine certifies that he treated claimant in 1922-23 for swollen glands and general
debility.  Dr. MeNeill examined him in April, 1932, and finds gastric dyspepsia
and an enlarged lymph gland in the right neck. In 1919 he examined him and
found o larger swelling in the neck than at present.  Dr. Purvis supplies a
certificate, dated May 23, 1932, and finds recurrent duodenal ulcer and fixes the
isability at 25 per cent. He finds a posterior cervieal chain of glands, right
side of neck, greatly enlarged. As to the stomach disorders he finds symptoms
quite definitely suggestive of duodenal ulcer of the recurrent type. He furnishes

a letter, dated May 7, 1932, attributing the ulcer to the nature of the food
- received by claimant while a prisoner. Claimant’s medical history files show
nothing unusual,
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Were it not for the fact that claimant was held and made to work close

" behind the German lines for several months; under conditions of harshness and
- cruelty with which we hayve grown familiar, I would not be disposed to regard his
: case favourably, because the disability if any, from which he suffers has not
" been clearly shown as resulting directiy from maltreatment. For the reason
“stated, however, I consider that claimant has been successful in showing some
; disability which may be attributed to maltreatment, and I would recommend
“'a payment to him of $500, with interest therecn, at the rate of 5 per cent per

3 anpwin, from January 10, 1920, to date of payment.

" ERROL M. McDOUGALI,
Orrawa, January 3, 1933. Commissioner.

CASE 2706—EDGAR STOWE
Claimant was a Private in the P.P.C.L1—Regimental No. 51417. He was

' born in England, came to Canada in March, 1903, returned here after the war

. and remained untii 1922, when he went to California for his health., He is now
© naturalized in the United States, having sccured his centificate on January 24,

- 1930. He enlisted November 2, 1914, at the age of 28 years, and was taken
'~ prisoner May 8, 1915, suffering from gunshot wounds in the right upper arm
~_and left shoulder. He escaped into Holland Scptember 26, 1917. He is in

receipt of a 20 per cent disability pension, amounting to $15 per month, based
on heart trouble and deafness. ‘e was married in December, 1920, and has
two children. Prior to enlistment, he was engaged in farming and is now
employed as a painter, earning 87 per day when able to work.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of lack of treatment of
his wounds and refusal to extract bullets, was forced to work in the coal mines,

“wirere, upon reporting sick, he received solitary confinement, and injury to his

left ear in a powder explosion.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was taken to Ghent after capture and received treatment for
about five days. He was transferred to hospital at Cologne and has no com-
plaints as to his treatment there, although they would not remove the bullets
in spite of lis requests. Before the wounds had healed, he was taken from
hospital £nd sent to the coal mines at Castrup, where he remained for two years.
He was not beaten but was forced to work an eight hour shift with his wounds
not healed. For refusal to carry on with the work he was compelled to stand
to attention and then confined to cells. This happened on five or six occasions,
He now suffers with nevritis and attributes his deafness to an explosion of
powder in the mine, which occurred without warning.

The medical record consists of certificates by Doctors C. G. Sutherlin as to
deafness and F. M. Bantum who attended claimant for nine years. He certifies
as to neuritis, enlarged heart, paing in the left shoulder and back, deafness and
general nervous decline. He fixes the disability at 50 per cent. Neither of these
physicians appeared before the Commission. Claimant’s medical history files
refer to the ear condition and a heart affection, for which he is in receipt of
pension.

While there may be some uncertainty as to whether olaimant’s disability
is due to actual maltreatment. I am inclined, in view of his two years in the
coal mines, to resolve the doubt in his favour, and would accordingly recommend
a payment to him of 2500 with interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per
annum from January 10, 1920, to date of payment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Orrawa, January 4, 1933. Commissioner.
610854
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CASE 2762—SAMULL CECIL SUGDEN

Claimant. was a Private in the 31st Battalion—Regimental No. 808115, He
enlisted in Mareh 1916, at the age of 23 years, and was taken prisoner March 29,
1917, at St. Eloi, suffern g from shrapnel wounds in the legs. He was repatriated
to England January 12, 1919, Ile is not in receipt of pension, was married in
April 1919, and has three children.  Prior to enlistment, he was emploved as an
apprentice druggist, earning 812.00 per week, and is now a garage mechanie.
averaging $100.00 per month,

He alleges that while a prizoner he was subjected to maltreatment which has
resulted in peeuniary damage to bim. He complains of a severe blow on the
back of the head with a rifle butt, causing severe headaches, poor vision and
fainting spells.

An analysis of ihe evidenee reveals:—

Claimant was first taken to Fort MeDonald, at Lille, and encountered the
insanitary conditions prevailing there. e was starved and his wounds neglected,
resulting in the development of septic poisoning. He was compeled to work
bhehind the lines, exposed to shell-fire, and alleges long hours of labour, bad food,
overerowding in sleeping quarters and that he was knocked about with rifles.
Sent to Marchiennes, in Belgium; he suffered similar treatment and received no
parcels for 13 months from the date of his capture. In Germany, he was taken
to Friederichsfeld camp and states that machine guns and gas shells were turned
on the prisoners who beeame unruly. At Parchim-he met his brother who was
blind, but has no complaints of speeial ill-treataent. He finished his period
of captivity on a farm out of Hamburg. As a result of having been beaten
behind the lines over the back and shoulders with rifle butts he suffers pain and
headaches, is unable to read more than 10 minutes at a time, and suffers from
nervous disorders,

The medical record consists of a certificate by Dr. (i, L. MeGuftin, who did
not appear before the Commission, indicating that claimant suffers headaches
and pain running from back of the neck to the forehead and back of the eyes.
The record is completed by a letter from C. H. Lochead, a fellow-priscner, who
witnessed the blow with the rifle butt and corroborates elaimant’s story, and a
certificate of Rev. G, F. Driver of Calgary as to claimant's character. Claimant's
medical history files show nothing unusual. He was apparently discharged from
the service as fit.

Claimant tells the familiar slory common to all prisoners who were held
ana made to work elose behind the lines. He was finally sent back inta Germany
when he had become so emaciated through starvation that he could no longer
work. His statement is quite consistent with the official records of cruclty and
brutality to these prisoners, although carlier in date than the period these records
cover. While the evidence of present disability is not very convincing. I consider
that claimant should receive an award upon the ground of the nature of the
captivity and punishment to which he was subjected. The evidence justifies a
finding of some disability resulting therefron.. T would, accordingly, recommend
a payment to him of $600, with interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per
annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of pavment.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner.

Orrawa, January 3, 1933.
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CASE 2658—-FRANK SAMUEL WHITE

The clmmnnt was a Private in the 7th Battalion,—Regimental No. 16946,
He enlisted in August 1914, at the age of 19 years and was taken priscaer April
24, 1915, suffering from o shghb shrapuel wound. He was repatriated fo England
Decembcr 21, 1918. He is in receipt of 100 per cent disability pension, based on
(hl‘Ol)lC meumntmd arthritis, which amounts to %75 per month, }e is also
m receipt of an additional “helplo“ne.\s allowance” for an attendant, aimow.ding
;to 849 per month. He is unmarricd. Prior to enlistment he was employed
{as n waiter, at $50 per month, and all found, but by reason of his helplessness
the is now unable to follow any occupatmn
3 He alleges that while a prisoner of war he was subject to maltreatment
{whieh has resulted in peecuniary damage to him. He complains that he was
sstruck in the mouth with a rifle butt, with the result that several upper teeth
‘were broken off, and some of the lower teeth eracked. He also states that his
‘knee has been permanently injured through the faulty construction of a car on
.which he was working. He alleges also that he was violently struck on the back
by a guard, as a result of which he has become a permanent invalid,
: An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

| Claimant has no serious complaint to make of his treatment during the first
period of his captivity, which he spent at Roulers, Hofsgresen (sic), Langensalza
and Gottingen. In Augusb 1016, he had the misfortunc to be c(nt, to the salt
mines at Londerhausen (apparently near cherodc) and here his treatment was
cruel and brutal.  The story which he tells is consistent with the recitals of
other prisoners who spent time in the salt mines. In particular he complains of
an injury to the knee, hip and left leg, which were injured in an accident when
struck by a truck. He was Inid up for several weeks with very Litle medical
attention. On another occasion, claimant was struck in the mouth with the
butt of a rifie, knocking out several tecth. He received no treatment for this
injury. His teeth have since been extracted. Later he was hit across the back
by a guard while stopping over, the injury now constituting claimant’s main
disability. Claimant is permanently crippled with his back ard knee and has
“trouble with his mouth.
. The medical record indicates that claimant suffers from “arthritis gen-
eralized.” His percentage of disability is stated at 100 per cent. Dr. J. MeCallum,
' who certifies to the foregoing, did not appear before the Commission, but Dr. J.
. N. Taylor appeared on behalf of claimant. He finds both hips ankylosed with
considerable knee injury, not necessarily arthritic. Claimant’s back is com-
pletely ankylosed from rheumatoid arthritis, with a fracture of the transverse
process between the 4th and 6th lumbar vertebrae, which might well be traumatic
in origir.. Claimant also files certificate of Dr. W, J. Gibson, dentist, evidencing
the removal of teeth and the fitting of upper and lower duntures. Claimant’s
mexdical history files bear out his contentions to a certain extent.
. There is no question that claimant is seriously, if not totally, disabled. The
~case again brings to light the evil conditions which prevailed in the salt mine
camps. I have no hesitation .©: finding that claimant was subjected to maltreat-
~ment which has resulted in permanent disability. Having regard to all the
circumstances, and hearing i mind the pension which claimant receives, 1
would recommend a payment to him of $1,000 with interest thereon, at the
rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920, to date of payment

£
v

I‘RROL M. McDOUGALIL,

Commissioncr.
Orrawa, January 4, 1933.
610854}
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CASE 2359—CLIFTON NEIIL. WOODLEY

Claimant was a Private in the 4th C.M.R.—Regimental No. 145059. He
cnlisted September 6, 1915, at the age of 20 years and was taken prisoner
June 2, 1916, unwounded. He was repatriated to England November 29, 1918.
He is not in receipt of a pension, was married May 17, 1923, and has two
children. Prior to enlistment, he was attenting school and now he is postmaster
at Shawville, P.Q., at $1,968 per annum.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of forced labour in
the coal mines although suffering with influenza, heavy work and exposure.

An analysis of the evidence reveals;— ‘

Claimant was first taken to Dulmen and sent to Minden, as fo which
camp he has no complaints. His grievances centre around a coal miue, which
he refers to as “J.0. 32,” where hie remained for 18 months and was made to
work underground. He does not complain of any particular brutality, but
was made to work when he was ill, the hours were long and the work too heavy
with the result that he developed a chest condition which has persisted and
still troubles him. He attributes this condition to exposure in the coal mines.

The medical evidence indicates that claimant suffers from chronic laryn-
gitis and chronic left bronchitis. His percentage of disability is stated at
60 per cent in his own calling and at 50 per cent in the general labour market.
Dr. C. J. Macpherson, who certifies to the foregoing, did not appear before the
Commission. Claimant’s medical history files show nothing unusual. He was
declared fit upon discharge.

Were it not for the fact that claimant spent eighteer months in the coal
mines, I would not be inclined to view his case with favour. Under the circum-
stances, however, I would recommend 4 payment to claimant of $500 with
interest thereon, at the rate of 5 per cent per annum, from January 10, 1920,
to date of payment, '

ERROL M. MeDOUGALL,
Commissioner.
Orrawa, January 20, 1933.
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FINAL REPORT
CLAIMS OF EX-MILITARY PRISONERS OF WAR—DISALLOWED

Case No. Namo of Claimant

2636
2638
2740
2611

Abbott, Frederick J.
Adam, John A,

Allan, Douglas G,
Arvsenault, Theodore 1,
Ashdown, William Gordon
Austman, Joseph Victor
Babb, Richard

Baddeley, Archibald
Baller, Harvey John
Balmer, Walter Brown
Barlow, Frank

Bell, Harry

Bigney, James

Bircham, Philip

Blakey, Thomas

Boswclf, J. A,

Bradley, George Edward
Bremmer, Donald

Bridge, Captain Harold B,
Bronskill, Frank Henry
Brown, Abraham

Bruce, Joseph Charles
Bryant, Harry H.
Burgess, Vincent Thomas
Burton, Arthur F.
Callaghan, Robert
Cartwright, Frederick Arihur
Christy, Norman

Clarke, Walter W,
Clarke, Wilfred

Clifford, Colin Charles
Clifford, Frederick G.
Clougher, John Joseph
Coates, Christopher
Collins, H. H.

Collver, Hugo Ross
Comfort, Ithamer
Conley, Walter

Connolly, John Alexander
Cormack, Alfred

Cowie, Andrew

Cranston, Norman
Crawford, John

Crawley, Charles
Crichton, Robert

Crofts, Ernest Henry
Cruikshank, Stanley Lavern
Dalbeck, Edwin

Darley, Harry

Davey, Charles
Davidson, Bryce
Davidson, James
Davidson, James H,

de la Gorgondiere, Robert
Lempster, Robert
DJevonshire, Lancelot Cyril
Dexter, William Crews
Porman, John

Downing, William T,
Drope, Harry Earl, M.M,
Dudley, William Wright
Dusenbury, Ralph
Elliott, Capt. Dawson W,
Erickson, Einer Carl

2606 Evans, Charles H. M.

Fanning, Earl G, ,
Finnie, Andrew Fleming

Case No.

2551
2728
27175
2530
2780
2554
2317
2671
2544

Name of Claimant
Foottit, William

Fretwell, Herbert

Frost, Fred

Fuller, Walter

Gamage, George

Gaw, John Darrell

Gawn, Alfred

Geddes, William

Glover, Herbert
Goodiellow, James William
Grahum, Walter John
Gray, Alexander Paterson
Green, Alexander Fdward
Grifliths, David Tudor
Harrison, John Henr
Hawkins, Viclor Benjamin
Hay, Campbhell Stuart
Heaver, Henry Victor
Hobbs, Thomas Richard
Hopkins, Charles Henry
Hubbard, Frank

Hughes, Ellis D.
Hustwitt, Sydney A.
Hutchinson, George
Irving, Robert

Jack, David Adam

James, Frank

Jennion, William

Joel, Ernest J.

Johnson, John Manners
Johnston, Lester James
Jollineau, Frank

Jones, Robert Witliam
Kain, Charles

Keele, Thomas Edward
Kelly, Aringo Thomas
Kelly, John

Kenyon, Harold Sidney
King, Cedric Hamilton
King, John Percy

Koons, Leland

Langston, Archibald Fraucis
T.ebar, Frederick

Little, Thomas Charles
Lochead, Charles Hungerford
Longworth, John :
MauacDonald, Charles H. 1.,
Madeley, Robert
Manclark, John

Marshall, William

Mason, Neil

MecAngus, Hugh

McEwen, James
MeKenna, John
McKinnie, Howic Maxwell
McLaine, Colin

McLean, Muitdoch
MeclLean, Waliace Alexander
McLeod, John R.
MecMillan, Robert Gordon
McPherson, James
Meares, James

Mercer, Thomas

Miles, John

Millar, Clifford Clvne
Mills, Albert E.

Morley, Robert



54

(ue¢ No.

2633
2747
2765
2639
2283
2370
1985
2739
2643
2416
2786
26106
2781
2308
2758
2795

2792

2533
2718
1950
2785
2336
2719
2631
2727
273
2515
251
2622
2403
2569
2413
2006
2445
2447
2641
2412
20656
2014

REPARATIONS 1932-1933

Name of Claimant

Morrison, Archibald
Mullins, Thomas Michact
Munro, George McLean
Noble, Ernest

Nurse, Albert I1,
O'Connor, Edward
O'Grady, Willinm Agar
O'Rourke, Witliam

Orr, George .

Palmer, Arthur James
Pulmer, William John
Pearce, Alfred Charles
Pearce, Arvthur Mark
Phillips, Hugh White
Philp, Alred W,

Pillar, Frank Howard
Platts, Samuel

Potter, Frank

Pountney, George

Power, Howard Ray
Pratt, William T,
Procunier, Charles A,
Ravnham, Robert
Reeves, Thomas Gordon
Revnolds, William 8.
Richurds, Reginald H,
Richards, Thomas R,
Richard<on, Robert Reeinald
Riley:, Harold

Rodeors, Harry R,
Rodgers, Howard

Rogers, Walter

St Germain, Benjatin Clenent
Sambrook, Alfred
Sandells, Thomas Willimn
Scott, Janies

Seott, John Armstrong
Scott, Leslie Gordon
Seutter, Jfames 13,

Cnse No. Name of Claimant

2301
2787
2777
2735
2562
2603
2648
2804
2782
2729
2779
2095
2580
2692
2557
2748
2700
2751
2657
2707
2481
2767
2766
2720
2527
221
1965
2576
2609
2357
20693
2449
2703
2712
2722
2323
2642
20583
24
2634

Shaw, Thomas

Sheppard, Thomas

Sinelair, Lorne Ralph
Skead, Capi. Eric 8.

Smith, Charles lrederick
Smith, Reginald Gordon
Smith, Thomas

Stamper, Walter
Stanborough, Charles Edward
Steers, Vivian Edwoard
Stodgell, George

Storey, Burton Forsythe
Strachan, Willinin

Stuart, Albert Victor
Sumersford, Thomas Henry
Thompson, Frederick
Thompson, Jacob C. D.
Thorp, Thomas

Thurzood, William Charles
Tough, John

Turnbull, Evnest. Atlison
Tenun, Samuel Park
Wade, Joseph

Warburton, John
Wauchope, Robert Forbes
Weuy, Clarence

Webber, Vanghn Haliburton
Wells, Harry James
Wharpole, Frederick
Whelan, Richard

White, Svdney Charles
Whitehead, W, T, V,
Wizging, Joseph Arthur
Wilkie, Willinm M.
Wilkins, Charles

Wilkon, Albert Tdward
Wilson, Georgn

Wilson, John

Winn, James Henry

Waod, Frank

Totall oo 213
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CASE 2636—FREDERICK J. ABBOTT

Claimant was an Imperial soldier who served in the 2nd Battalion of the
Welsh Regiment—Regimental No. 6612. He arrived in Canada, to take up
residence, in November, 1920. He was taken prisoner October 30, 1914, and
was repatriated in December, 1918, It was explained to the claimant’s solicitor,
at the time of the hearing that the date of the claimant’s arrival in Canada
precluded the assumption of jurisdiction by this Commission. The date con-
stitutive of jurisdiction has been fixed as January 10, 1920, the date of the
ratification of the Treatv of Versailles (Sce my earlier report upon maltreat-
ment cases). Reserving to elaimant all other recourses, and, without deciding
the case upon its merits, I am, acoerdingly, bound to disallow the claim in so
far as this Commission is concerned,

FERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 6, 1932,

CASE 2638—JOIN A. ADAM

Claimant was a Private in the 7th Battalion—Regimental No. 16973, He
enlisted in August, 1914, at the age of 19 vears and was taken prisoner February
27, 1917, near Lens, slightly wounded in the hip by a concussion bomb. He
was repatriated to England December 12, 1918. He is not in receipt of a pension,
was married February 9. 1919, and has five children. Prior to enlistment, he
was employved as @ broker. carning 45 por month and i= now unemployved and on
relief,

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltrealment which has
resulted in pecuniary damage to him, e complains of forced labour in the
coal mines where he hecame affected by the gases, served terms of solitary con-
finement for attempted escapes and had his foot injured by a falling rock while
at work in the mine. : n*

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant spent the greater part of his captivity at Dulmen camp, working
out therefrom, first at a farm at Froman. He made two attempts to escape
and received as punishment two terms of solitary confinement of 28 days each
on bread and water. After the second attempt and following his period of con-
finement he was sent to a coal mine at Bergbarback, where he was compelled
to work underground from 10 to 16-hours per day including Sundays. The
mine was badly ventilated and the heat was intense. Here, he met with an
accident due to falling rock and had his foot cut aeross the instep. He rececived
a first aid dressing, was put on light work but states he received no treatment
for his injury for some 10 days thercafter, He was, however, then sent to
Munster as being unfit to work further in the mine, and remained there until
the Armisticc. He now suffers from dizzy spells, vomiting and frequent per-
spiration,

Two medical certificates are filed although neither physician appeared
before the Commission. Dr. A. B. Cameron, of Edmonton, certifies that he
attended the claimant at different times from October, 1919, until the year
1926, and found him to be suffering from a serious disorder of the lungs and
stomach, He infers that the conditions under which the claimant had to work
while in the coal mines, due to bad ventilation and gas, are probably the direct
cause of his present disability, which prevents his following his former occupa-
tion of baker. Dr. J. A. Mclver, of Vancouver, certifies that claimant suffers
from chronic bronchitis, bilious and vomiting attacks, and that he cannot work
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in a closed room where there is much heat. He fixes the percentage of disability
at 50 per cent permancent.

Notwithstanding the fact that claimant spent several months in the coal
mines, I eannot find in the record evidence that claimant was subjected to mal-
treatment which has resulted in disability to him. Whatever his disability
@may be, T am of the opinion that it must be aseribed to gencral conditions of
camp life in Germany (See Opinion annexed to my earlier report upon mal-
treatment cases). The claim, accordingly, fails and must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commnissioner.
Orrawys, December 6, 1932,

CASE 2740--DOUGLAS (. ALLAN

Claimant was a Captain in the 3rd Battalion, and was taken prisoner on
April 24, 1915, at the sccond bhattle of Ypres, apparently unwounded. He made
claim upen the ground of general mental perturbation dne to the strain of his
experiences as a prisoner of war. When it was pointed out to him that repara-
tion payments were heing, paid out of the Consolidated Revenue ¥und of this
country. he withdrew his elaim, declaring that he did not wish to press the
matter further. The elaim is, accordingly, regarded as withdrawn,

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioncr.
Orrawa, December 20, 1932,

CASE 2611--THEODORE F. ARSENAULT

Claimant was a Private in the 25th Battalion—Regimental Nc. 712553,
He enlisted in December, 1915, at the age of 16 years and was taken prisoner
April 28, 1917, at Fresnoy Wood, suffering from shrapnel wound in the right
leg. He was released to Holland in June, 1918. He is in receipt of a 75 per
cent disanility pension on behalf of himself and family, amounting to $116 per
month, based on the loss of his leg. He was married November 29, 1922, and
has four children, Prior to enlistment, he was empioyed as a labourer, carning
about $10 per week and is now unemployed.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjeeted to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of the loss of his right
leg by amputation in Germany four days after capture. e asserts that due to
neglect, poisoning set in, and that this could have been avoided with proper care.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was badly wounded in the right leg when captured. He does not
complain of any particular hrutality whilst a prisoner but contends that had his
leg been properly treated it wounld not have been necessary to amputate it so
close to the thigh and that his disability would not have been so great, After
capture, he received some attention at a dressing station and was sent to a
hospital at Ohrdruf, where he remained 3 months. Here his leg was amputated
4 days after capture. Apparently it had become infested, was swollen and black
to the thigh. Claimant declares that except for a broken ankle, as far as he
knows the wounds were only flesh wounds. He does not complain of the opera-
tions themselves but regards the treatment as coming too late to save at least
a part of the leg. Sent to Langensalza camp, on crutches, elaimant declares the
treatment to have been fair,
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The medieal e¢vidence confirms the loss of the leg by amputation and gives
claimant a disability of 75 per cent. The doctor (name indecipherable) who
certifies to the foregoing, did not. appear before the Commission. Claimant’s
medical history files show nothing unusual.

Claimant has not been able to indicate in what way the amputation of his
leg constitutes improper surgery. On his own statement, having regard to the
condition declared to exist at the time of the operation, the amputation would
. appear not only to have been justified but even necessary to save claimant's
life. There is nothing in the record to support the claim that claimant was
subjected to malpractice on the part of the German medieal authorities. The
“claim is quite properly pensionable in nature, As far as this Commission is
concerned, it eannot be allowed,

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

‘ Commissioner,
~Orrawy, December 15, 1932.

CASE 2561 —WILLIAM GORDON ASHDOWN

Claimant was a Private in the P.P.C.L.I—Regimental No, 475753, He
enlisted July 29, 1915, at the age of 27 years and was taken prigoner June 2, 1916,
having been burnt with liquid fire and suffering from a slight sealp wound.
He was repatriated to England on December 19, 1918. He is not in receipt of
pension, was married in June, 1920, and has two children. Prior to enlistment,
he was employed as a salesman, earning $1,800 per year and expenses and is
now unemployved although he tried various jobs and was in business for himself
for a time but failed,

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of starvation, being
compelled to work before his wounds were healed and of heing beaten and
knocked down while ill with influenza.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant spent 8 weeks, immediately after capture, in hospital at Julich,
where the treatment was fair. He was then sent to Stendal, where, for 8 months,
he did fatigue duty working around the gardens. At Gottlein, for 6 months, he
was employed at farm labour but has no complaizts. He was next sent to
Welmerstadt Sugar Factory, where he was subjected to beatings with rifle butts,
was compelled to work, at shovelling coal, from twelve to cighteen hours per
day and suffered general rough usage, which he avers, has affected him mentally.
In particular he complains that in the spring of 1918 “e contracted influenza
and while lying in bed, was hauled out on the floor and knocked down. He
received no medical treatment while ill and after two weeks was put to work
shovelling and hauling gravel on a railway embankment. He made one attempt
to escape, was reeaptured, and suffered the usual solitary confinement.

There is no medical evidence of record, the claimant relying on the medical
records of the Board of Pension Commissioners. The neurological report of
that body indicates that an examination of the nervous system is negative for
organic disease. “ This man is in quite a bad way with psychoncurosis. His
mind is in a perfect turmoil. . . . Business worries and the hopelessness of
his future outlook are overwhelming him. . . . There is no doubt but what
his morale has been lowered by his experience on June 2 (date of capture) and
his period of war service.” '

In cases such as this, where a nervous or mental condition constitutes the
dizability, it is particularly difficult to determine whether this mental state
may be attributed to maltreatment. Claimant received harsh treatment, but
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I eannot say, from the record, that it was unusual or deliberately inflicted. He
suffered from the general conditions of eamp life in Germany and the repercus-
<ions upon his mental outlook may possibly have had ill results. On the whole,
however, I cannot find that his experiences have induced the condition of which
he now complains, T regavd the case as purely pensionable in nature. It must,
acceordingiy, be disallowed, -

LERROL M. MeDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, Deceniber 13, 1932.

CASE 2614—JOSFPH VICTOR AUSTMAN

Claimant was a Corporal in the 8th Battalion—Regimental No. 812, He
enlisted in Auzust, 1914, at the age of 22 vears and was taken prisoner April 25,
1915, during the sceond battle of Ypres, slightly wounded in the calf of the left
leg and gaszed. He was exchanged to Holland November 1, 1918, and reached
Fngland on the 18th of that month. He is in reccipt of a 20 per cent dizability
penzion, amounting to 815 per month, hased on neurasthenin, He is unmarried.
Prior to enlistment, he was employed with his father as a building contractor,
carmng up to 23.000 per annum, and is now farming.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected {o maltreatment which
haz resulted i peeuniary damage to him. He complains of excessive solitary
confinement. on bread and  water, exeeszsive hard labour without proper
nourishment.

An analvsis of the evidence reveals:—

First taken to Magdeburg, elaimant remained six weeks, receiving treatment
for his wounded leg.  He was next sent to Allengrabow, where he spent two
vears, confined behind barbed wire.  There wax no work and is no complaint
ws to this camp.  The vemainder of his period of captivity, some 18 months.
was spent at Stuttgart, where, he states, it was a case of hard labour or solitary
confinement. all the fime. There wa- no brutality, but, for attempts to escape,
he reecived confinement, beeame a marked man and received many sentences
to eells for varying periods, making a total of some six months during bis stay
at the eamp. He now suffers nervous disorders, due to excessive confincnient,
heavy labour and lack of nourishment.

The medical record consists of a certificate by Dr. A, T. Mathers, who did
ot appear hefore the Commiz<ion, indieating a marked fatigability, aching in
head and back of neek, dizziness and odd bodily sensations at night. He rates
the disability at ‘rom 40 per cent to 60 per cent. Claimant’s medical history
files refer to a neurasthenie condition. for whieh he is in receipt of pension.

Claimant does ..ot complain of any particular brutality, but stresses the
long hours of labour and periods of confinement as reacting unfavourably upon
his nervous system. The strain and duress of prison life_in Germany bore
heavily upon all prisoners, but T do not consider that these general conditions
are to be regarded as maltreatment.  (See Opinion annexed to my earlier report
upon maltreatment cases.) Claimant has failed to establish a present disability
resulting from malireatment. His case is purely pensionable in nature. Before
this Commission, the elaim fails and must be disallowéd.

ERROL M. MeDOUGALL,

A Commissioner,
Orrawa, January 9, 1933,
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CASE 2528—RICHARD BABB

Notice of claim was received on behulf of the above named claimant from
the Canadian Legion in Alberta through the Dominion Headorarters at Ottawa.
Claim forms were forwarded to the Legion to be completed but these were never
returnea. A reminder was sent to the Legion on August 11, 1932, and a registered
notice was mailed to the clnimant in care of the Canadian Legion at Calgary,
on August 25, 1932, advising of sittings to be held at that city, on September
16, 1932. The elaimant did not appear and no information concerning his claim
has ever been received. The elaim must, therefore, be disallowed for lack of
prosecution.

ERROT, M. McDOUGALL,

Commussioner,
Orrawa, December 7, 1932.

CASE 2772--ARCHIBALD BADDELELY

Claimant was a Bugler in the 8th Dattalion—Repgimental No. 1253. He
cnlisted September 22, 1914, at the age of 20 vears, and was taken priconer
April 24, 1915, during the sceond battle of Ypres, suffering from gas. He was
«ent to Switzerland in December, 1916, and was repatriated to England Septer.-
her 11, 1917. He is in receipt of a 40 per cent disability pension, amounting
to 846 per month, based on asthma, was married July 1, 1919, and has one
child. Prior to enlistment, he was employed as a printer’s apprentice, at 86
per week, and is now a salesman, carning about &5 per day when working,

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of lack of food, medieal
neglect, forced labour while ill, and of being beaten,

An analysis of the evidence reveals:-—

Claimant was taken from Roulers to Munster in a box car and when he
reached Cologne was beaten by the civilians. Ile was three months at Munster
and was transferred to an officers’ camp at Gutersloh, where he acted as an
orderly. Sent to Dulmen, he was placed in the lazaret and required to do light
work. Suffering from stomach trouble and gas, he received no medical treat-
ment. At Mannheim, he was supposedly passed by the Swiss Commission for
transfer to Switzerland but, instead, was put to work at a mumitions plant.
He refused to work and was knocked unconscious, e was carried to Cologne
on a stretcher, Three months later he was sent to Switzerland. He complains
of impaired vision and a chest condition.

No medical testimony was adduced and no cerlificate fileld.  Claiinant’s
medical history files indicate thati, upon discharge, he suffered from chest and
stomach disorders,

Claimant has not shown that the cve condition of which he complains is
due to any maltreatment. His stomach affection is nutritional in origin and
cannot be set down to maltreatment. (Sce Opinion annexed to my earlier
report, upon maltreatment cases.) There is no medical evidence to substantiate
the disabilities claimed by claimant. On the whole, the claim fails and must
be disallowed, :

ERROL M. MeDOUGALL,

Commissioner,
Orrawa, December 28, 1932, :
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CASE 2647—HARVEY JOHN BALLER

Claimant was a Private in the 1st C.M.R.—Regimental No. 114788. He
enlisted December 27, 1915, at the age of 25 years, and was taken prisoner
June 3 or 4, 1916, suffering from gunshot wounds in the right arm and hand
and the left thigh, ankle and foot. He was released into Switzerland in June,
1918. He is in receipt of a 35 per cent disability pension, amounting to $26.25
per month, based on his service wounds.  He is unmarried.  Prior to enlistment,
lie was a carpenter apprentice, at 35 cents an hour, and now states he has not
had steady employment for over two years.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of neglect of his wounds
resulting in amputation of fingers.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant lay on the field wounded, for three or four days before he was
picked up and carried to Menin. At hospital, in Stuttgart, he states his wounds
were dressed every third or fourth day but never had his hand washed. After
ten months he was transferred to Depot 2 but after two months his hand became
infected and he went back to hospital. He complains of a nurse who tortured
him with tweezers but apart from the alleged lack of treatment to his wounded
hand and use of paper bandages, he makes no speeial charge of brutality. Two
fingers were amputated in Winnipeg in 1919.

The medieal record consists of a report by Dr. C. E. McCutcheon, who did
not appear before the Commission, which indicates the loss of the ring and little
fingers of the right hand and contracture of museles in right forearm. Also
metalarsalgia right foot from shrapnel, right ankle painful and loss of power
from shrapnel, also general nervousness. The disability is fixed at 50 per cent.
A statement is also filed, made by Charles G. Ritter, who was in hospital at
Stuttgart, Germany. He knew elaimant while in the camp and corroborates the
story as to hospital treatment.  The military medical report details the disability
due to the war wounds.

Claimant's case rests upon ulleged malpractice in not attending to his
wounded hand. Tt appears that the original wound was quite extensive and I do
not think that the record diselozes that claimant’s wounds were neglected or that
anything that could have been done for him was omitted. He did reeeive treat-
ment and dressings and the evidence fails to show any malpractice on the part
of his captors. T regard the case as covered by pension. Before this Commis-
¢ion, the claim fails and must be dizallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner.
Orrawa, January 9, 1933.

CASE 2585—WALTER BROWN BALMER

Claimant was & Private in the 15th Battalion—Regimental No. 27160. He
enlisted in August 1914, at the age of 18 years, and was taken prisoner April 24,
1915, during the second battle of Ypres, unwounded but slightly gassed. He was
repatriated to England January 1, 1919. He is not in receipt of pension, was
married in June 1926 and has one child. Prior to enlistment, he was employed
as a book-keeper, earning about $10 per week, and is now a salesman, at about
$30 per week. Born in Scotland he came to Canada in 1912 and lived here until
1924 when he went to Chicago.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of punishment and
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brutality for refusal to work on iron materials, illness and xolitary confinement
on bread and water and injury to the eyes while at work in the stone quarries.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was attached to two main prison camps, Gottingen and Cassel,
but worked at Commandos out of these two main camps at various places. He
see.as Lo have been subjected to rough treatment and suffered the usual beatings,
b'uws from rifle butts, solitary confinement and long hours of labour, due to
cefusal to obey orders and to do the work preseribed. He evidently brought much
of the trouble upon himself by his attitude to his guards. His present disorders,
upon which he bases his ¢laim, are defeetive vision, loss of teeth, nervousness,
and stomach trouble. While at a stone quarry in Furstenwald (sic), his eye
was accidentally injured by a pioce of stone, and he was rushed to Cassel, where
he was examined and given a shield to wear until he could get glasses at his
own expense. The eye has always been troublesome since and he has had to get
corrected glusses from time to time at his own expense.” His teeth became
defective and he had to have several upper front teeth extracted, also at his own
expense.  This he believes was due to the quality of the food.

A somewhat lengthy medical report is filed, prepared by Dr. J. ¥. Donahoe,
of Chicago, who states that he has had the claimant under observation for six
months and finds him suffering from a form of neurasthenia directly traceable
to injuries and hardships experienced in Germany. The results of his examin-
ation indicate that the claimant has defeetive vision, chronic inflammation in
the throat, enlarged uvula and missing tecth. Apart from the defective teeth,
which can be attributed to the food, the disabilities attributable to claimant’s
experiences as a prisoner are chicfly the cye injury and the nervous disorders.
The eve injury was the result of an accident and he was, scemingly, rushed to a
doctor for examination without delay. Whether the treatment received was
adequate, it is impossible to say, at least it has not been established that there
was negleet and improper treatment suflicient to constitute maltreatment.

Claimant did not crcate a favourable impression before the Commission.
His truculence of manner and general resentment, if adopted while a prisoner.
must surely have brought down upon him punishment and harsh treatment. 1
cannot say from the record, that this treatment went beyond reasonable bounds
as to amount to maltreatment. The accidental eye injury claimant sustained
appears to have received treatment and it is not shown that he was neglected in
this regard. The nervous affection complained of can scarcely be attributed to
maltreatment. I am inclined to view it as temperamental. The complaint as to
the extraction of teeth has not been shown to constitute maltreatment. On the
whole, the claim fails, and must be disallowed.

FERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commisstoner.
Orrawa, December 13, 1932.

CASE 2764—FRANK BARLOW

Claimant was a Private in the 16th Battalion—Regimental No. 28565. He
cnlisted in August, 1914, at the age of 25 years and was taken prisonze april
24, 1915, during the second battle of Ypres, suffering from gas. He was repa-
triated to England January 7, 1919. He states that he had been in receipt of
a 10 per cent pension, amounting to $5 per month, based on deafness in the left
ear. It was discontinued. He was married in April, 1919 and has one child.
Prior to enlistment, he worked at clearing land, earning $4.50 per day and is now
unemployed but had been a road work foreman, earning $90 per month.

-
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He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which has
resulted in pecuniary dumage o him. e complaing of a kick in the leg causing
varicose veins, that he was beaten abont the head, resulting in deafness, and
of solitary confinement.

An analysis of the evidenee reveals:—-

Claimant spent his period of captivity at the following camps, Gicssen,
Cellelager, Vehnemoor, Ostenmoor and Bokelah.  He reccived a kick in the leg
while at Bokeluh causing a swelling. He was sent to hospital and cold com-
presses applied until the swelling subsided.  While working on the latrines
he received a severe beating about the head and was given five days in the cells
for not obeying orders. Subsequently, in hospital, he was operited on in the
ear without anacsthetie.  He states that his car now discharges continually.

The medieal record consists of a certifieate of Dr. 1. J. Millar, who did
not appear before the Commission.  He finds claimant to be “suffering from im-
paired hearing with, chronie disease of the left canal, general impairment of
health as regards nervous system with tendeney to funetional disorders.” He
fixes the pereentage of dissbility at 25 per cent.  Claimant’s medical history
files refer to the ear condition and varicosity of the legs.

Claimant confines his complaint to his partial deafness and disabled legs,
due to varicose veins. T am informed that it iz unlikely that either of
these conditions resulted from the blows related. 1t is significant perhaps that
in the statement made by elaimant upon repatriation, no mention iz made of any
assault upon himself—he reeites a general bayonet charge upon the prisoners
as a group. On the whole. T have reached the conclusion that claimant has not
discharged the burden of showing a present disability resulting from maltreat-
ment.  His recourse, if any, is elsewhere. Before this Commission, the claim
fails and nust be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

: Commissioner,
Ortawa, Deeember 28, 1932,

CASE 2771—HARRY BELL

Claimant has not completed the usual documents of claim. He ecame before
the Commission at Seattle, Washington, and explained his easze. It appears
that he served with the Tmperial forees—the Kiltless Scoteh Battalion—Regi-
mental No. 41737, He enlisted on November 1, 1917, at 18 vears of age, was
taken prizoner on Qctober 16, 1918, and repatriated to England on December 7,
1918. He is in receipt of pension. Prior to enlistment, he was an apprentice
aml sinee discharge has been a salesman but is now unemployed.

Claimant has applied for naturalization as an American citizen. It was
explained to him at the hearing that this Commission is without jurisdietion
to entertain his claim, becausge he beeame resident in Canada after January 10,
1920, date of the ratification of the Treaty of Versailles. For reasons which
have been explained in my earlier report upon maltreatment cases, this Com-
migsion is without jurizdiction in such ecases. Reserving, therefore, to claimant
all his recourseg, and without deciding the ease upon its merits the claim must
be disallowed before this Commission.

FRROL M. McDOUGALI,,

Commisstoncer.
Orrawa, January 4, 1933.
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N CASE 2321--JAMES BIGNEY

Claimant was a Private in the 17th Battalion—Regimental No. 46050. He
cenlisted in August, 1914, at the age of 20 years and was taken prisoner in Mareh,
1918, at Amiens, suffering from a bullet wound in the left shoulder. He was

repatriated to Fngland near the last of November, 1918. He is not in receipt
~of a pension, was married in 1919 and has five children. Prior to enlistment, he
was employed as & miner, earning about $1.75 per day, and is now following the
same cemployment, averaging about $15 per week.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of forced labour in the
coal mines, beatings with pick handles, that he was compelled to wear clogs
which injured his feet and was badly smashed up by the falling roof of the minc
shaft due to a misunderstanding of the guard.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was a prisoner for about 9 months. Taken first to Dulmen, he has
no complaints.  Sent to a coal mine at Vorbeck he complains of the hard work
and beatings and an accident to which he attributes a weakened back. He was
in the mines about 3 wecks. He was sent to hospital where he remained till
about two weeks before the Armistice. He has no complaints of his treatment
in hospital. Sent then to Munster No. 2, he was transferred to Holland. Claim-
ant complains chicfly of his treatment during the first 3 months of his captivity
when he was held behind the lines, and made to work handling bags of feed, not-
withstanding his wounds. He speaks of the poor and inadequate food. He con-
fines his complaint to the injury to his back.

There is no medical evidence of record, not c¢ven the usual certifieate of a
-physician. Claimant has not completed the usual declaration forms. His medical
history files show nothing unusual. In the file appears a statement made by
claimant upon repatriation which relates almost entirely to maltreatment to an
Imperial soldier. He says praetically nothing of his own treatment.

In this state of the record, it is clearly impossible to reach a finding in
claimant’s favour. Not only is there an entire absence of medieal evidence show-
ing any present disability, but the record does not disclose incidents of mal-
treatment which were likely permanently to injure claimant. He has failed to
discharge the burden of showing a present disability resulting from maltreatment.
The elaim must, aceordingly, he dizallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 15, 1932,

CASE 2506—PHILIP BIRCHAM

Claimant was a Private in the 1st C.MLR.—Regimental No. 622017, He
enlisted December 22, 1914, at the age of 29 years and was taken prisoner June
-2, 1916, suffering with a bullet wound in the left thigh. He was repatriated to
- England December 24, 1918. He is not in receipt of a pension but received a
- gratuity, based on a 3 per cent disability, amounting to $75, covering his war
service wound. He was married at the time of enlistment and had four children
one of whom is now married and another deceased. Prior to enlistment, he
worked as a freight hand, approximating about $50 per month and is stil)
-employed in the freight sheds, earning about $95 per month,
He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
“has resulted in pecuniary damage-to him. He complains of improper medieal
trcnltment of his wounds, bad food and of being compelled to work when unfit
to do so.
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An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

The claimant received hospital treatment at Duisburg, Friederichsfeld and
Cottbus, where his wounds were dressed, but he complains of the use of improper
handages. He was given garden work in 1918, and later put at wheeling barrows
at a gas factory. He found this work too heavy, due to the condition of his
wounded leg and complained so insistently that he was taken before a doctor at
Frankfurt. He states that he had to complain that the food was poisoning his
stomach, before the guard would take him to the doctor. As a result, he faced
court-martial for stating that the food was poisoned. Nothing came of his trial
and he suffered no punishiment.

Claimant adduced no medical evidence before the Commission, relying upon
.the record appearing in his medical history files. These reveal nothing unusual,
his award of pension on the ground of ncurasthenia being now before the Pension
Appeal Court. He now complains of rheumatism, his stomach condition and
continual headaches.

It would seemy from the claimant’s own storv, and by comparison with the
recitals of other prisoners, that he received fair treatment while -a prisoner and
<uffered no particular abuse resulting in permanent disability. The mere fact
of internment, without proof of maltreatment followed by disability, does not
constitute a valid ground of claim. I have no hesitation in finding that the
claim fails, It must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 6, 1932,

JASE 2566—-TIHOMAS BLAKEY

Claimant was a Sapper in the 2nd Canadian Engineers—Regimental No.
503313. e enlisted March 9, 1915, at the age of 33 years and was taken prisoner
June 2, 1916, unwounded, but slightly gassed. He was repatriated to England
1) cember 14, 1918. He is in receipt of & 10 per cent disability pension, amount-
ing to $10 per month, based on the loss of the ring finger of the left hand and
teno-synovitis of the right wrist. He was married at the time of enlistment aund
has two children.  Prior to enlistment, he was employed as a coal-cutterin-a
coal mine, carning $150 per month, and is now a shoe repairer, not earning more
than 870 per month.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which has
resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of starvation, forced labour
while ill, of heing compelled to stand to attention for long periods, confinement,
and an injury to the ring finger on the left hand. which necessitated amputation.
He now suffers fairly constant pain in the head.

An analysis of the evidence reveals;—

Claimant first spent 2 months at Dulmen, where he suffered from starvation.
He was moved about from place to place but was attached ‘s Minden and
Munster camps_ during practically the whole period of his eaptivity. Out oi
Minden, he worked at Abbe, Hanover and Frankfurt-on-Main and suffered tvio
or three illnesses in hospital duc to rectal haemorrhage, which he thinks was
caused by the bad food. He was subjected to the usual rough treatment for
refusal to work on Sundays, was compelled to stand to attention for long periods
and given solitary confinement. While working in a blacksmith shop, he met
with two accidents. The first was the result of a fall on a piece of broken bottle.
He cut his wrist badly and had to have several stitches. He states that hs
received bu.t little medical attention for this injury and as a result, the wrist
movement is still weak. Later, while placing a picce of iron on a machine,
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which was not properly guarded, he injured his finger requiring scveral amputa-
tions, finally resulting in the loss of the whole finger. He states that these
amputations in Germany were performed without anaesthetic and that, with
proper care, the finger conld have been saved. He appears to have been excused
from work for some twelve weeks after this injury and was then sent to a farm
for the remainder of his period of captivity.

No physician appeared at the hearing but the medical record consists of
four medical certificates by doctors J. S. McLeod, H. C. Dixon, J. R. Patterson,
and Oliver Boyd, all of Medicine Hat, the last named having performed the
final amputation of the finger. All of these certificates confine themselves to
the injured finger and wrist which constitute the claimant’s present disability.

Apart from the haemorrhages which are probably due to the condition of
food in Germany, the claimant fails to establish any permanent disability due
to maltreatment. Disabilities resulting from general food conditions in Germany,
cannot be regarded as due to maltreatment (See Opinion annexed to my carlier
report upon maltreatment cases). The loss of the finger and injury to the wrist
are admittedly of accidental origin, and it has not been proved that had better
treatment been received the finger might have been saved. Claimant is in receipt
of pension, covering these disabilities, which, if not adequate, must be the subject
of further submission to the pension authorities. Before this Commission, the
claim fails and must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGA™ 1,

Commussioner,
Orrawa, December 7, 1932,

CASE 2305—J. A. BOSWELL

Claim was made by the above named claimant, apparently on the ground
of maltreatment as a prisoner of war, but no particulars have been filed of record.
Tt has since developed thiat claimant was not a prisoner of war. The claim is,
accordingly, without standing before this Commission.

FERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner,
Orrawa, December 20, 1932.

CASE 2734—GEORGE EDWARD BRADLEY

Claimant was an Imperial soldier who served as a Corporal in the Royal
Tield Artillery-—Regimental No. 56886. Ile was a reservist who had come to
Canada in 1912 and was called up to the colours in August, 1914, at the age of
28 years. He was taken prisoner in April 22, 1915, suffering from gas, and was
repatriated in March, 1918, through Holland. He had been in receipt of an
Imperial pension of 6 shillings per week plus childrens’ allowance, which pension
was terminated by a 1 per cent permanent award, October, 1919. It was based
on hernia. He was married in Canada in Jamary, 1914, and has three children.
Prior to enlistinent, he wae a plastering contractor, at &5 per day, and is now
an employee of the Ontario Liquor Control Board, at $1,440 per annum.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which has
resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of starvation, confinement,
fereed to labour in iron mines, where he developed hernia.

610853
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An analysis of the evidenee reveals:—

Taken to Meschede, claimant was foreed to work although hi+ rank was
recognized. He complains chiefly of the food. At Giessen, he was given three
weeks punishment barracks for refusing to work, He was sent to Saltau for a
short period and thence to Hestenmoor, where ke was made to parade 10 hours
per day.  For attempting to escape he was paraded on bare feei around the
barrack and received two weeks confinement. He was sent to an iron mine.
where, in pushing a barrow laden with ore, he slipped and ruptured himself.
He was given a truss but it wuas not satisfactory. He was immediately sent
back to work, although suffering pain.

No medical evidence was addueced at the hearing, the record consisting of
a certifieate by Dr. W. T Gemmell, who certifies that claimant is a nervous
wreek, and suffers severe headaches. He fixes the disability at 50 per cent. Dr.
J.o Al Beatty certifics as to the condition of the teeth. Al were extraeted.
Affidavits are filed by two acquaintances who knew claimant before and after
the war, and who certify as to hiz present debilitated condition.

I regard claimant’s case as purely pensionable in nature. The hernia which
he developed while at work must be regarded as accidental in origin and not as
resulting from maltreatment.  Claimant’s remaining complaints have to do with
general conditions of camp life in Germany and do not, in my opinion, constitute
such maltreatment as has resulted in disability (Sce Opinion annexed to my
carlicr report upon maltreatment eases).  The claim fails and must be
dizallowed.

LERROL. M. MeDOUGAILL,

Commisstonrr,
Orrawy, January 16, 1933.

CASE 2564 --DONALD BREMNER

Claimant served with the Imperial forees, having enlisted in 1913, with the
Royal Naval Reserve—No. 5312A—at the age of 16 years. He was taken
prisoner in November, 1914, at Antwerp, and was repatriated to England in
Deecmber, 1918, He is now in receipt of a 20 per cent disability pension.
amounting to 8’7 per month, based on myocarditis. He came to Canada to
reside in August, 1924, It was explained to him by letter, dated March 9, 1932.
and also at the hearing at Calgary, on September 16, 1932, that the date of
his arrival in Canada would preclude his elaim from consideration at the hands
of this Commission (See Opinion attacked to my earlier report on maltreat-
inent eases}. A elaimant must show that he established residence in Canada
on or before January 10, 1920, the date oi the ratification of the Treaty of
Versailles, to entitle him to consideration before this Commission. Reserving
to elaimant all other recourses, and, without deciding the case upon its merits,
it is disallowed, in so far as this Commission is concerned.

FERROL. M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 13, 1932

CASE 2605—CAPTAIN HAROLD E. BRIDGE

Claimant wae a Captain in the 19th Battalion. He enlisted in January.
1915, at the age of 28 years and was taken prisoner May 8, 1917, having been
wounded by an exploding bomb, in the body, fore left hand, right forearm, left
knee, feet and neck. He held the rank of Lieutenant when captured. He was



;
3
t
E FINAL REPORT 67
exchanged in April, 1918, and reached England August 30th of that year. He
“is in receipt of a 10 per cent disability pension, amounting to $7.50 per month,
based on disability in the left hand. He was married twice, first in 1916 and the
“second time in September, 1928, and has two step-children, one of age. Prior to
enlistment, he was a Divinity student at Trinity College and is now teaching
privately.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjeeted to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of neglect to his
wounds, dressings without anaesthetic, insanits , and filthy hospital wards,
cruclty of a German surgeon in operating on his nose, and confinement.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was first at Douai, where he remained five days without food
Taken to Tournai, he suffered neglect of his wounds, the dressings having
become putrified. At Kempton, Bavaria, his finger was amputated after six

~weeks in hospital.  He claims the amputation would not have been necessary
had his wounds been properly attended. Here, the surgeon, vithout warning
and with anaesthetic, operated on his nose, with the result that 1% caused intense
pain and has never properly functioned since. It was never drested. He blames
deafness on this condition. He further complains that he was confined to one
room in hospital at Bavaria for 7} months although able to be out. He was
finally allowed to go to one of the regular officers’ camps. He attributes his
nervous condition to this long confinement, the room being, he says ““ nothing
more or less than a morgue.” Due to the careless treatment of his hand he
has lost power to grip and this is the basis of his pension. He finally landed
in an officers’ camp at Karlshrue, whence he was exchanged. )

The medical record consists of certifieates of Drs. A. T. Spankie and E. P.
Scarlett, neither of whom appeared before the Commission.  Dr, Spankic certifies
as to the nasal obstruction and defective hearing and fixes the disability at
100 per cent, in claimant’s own ecalling. Dr. Searlett submitted a lengthy
report, dated March 20, 1932, with a finding of hyperactive nervous system.
Subsequently he wrote, on May 30, 1932, to the Seeretary of the Commission,
requesting that his statement of March 29 be ignored. IHe says “It is myv
opinion that this man is a constitutional psychopathic individual, and, under
such circumstances, hardly ' comes under the jurisdiction of the Reparations
Commision.” Claimant's medieal history files note a neurasthenic condition
without disability.

This case is somewhat unusual as to its neurasthenic aspeets. Why elaim-
ant should have been kept confined for 74 months in the manner deseribed can-
not be explained by claimant, nor does the record furnish any good reason
therefor, unless it be inferred that he was already suffering from a form of neur-
asthenia, which, as will be seen from the medieal evidence, was and is con-
stitutional. Claimant was a prisoner for abovt a vear and T eannot say that
the evidence justifies a finding that claimant was subjected to maltreatmont
resulting in permanent disability. His pretention that his wounds were im-
properly and inadequately aftended to with resultant disability has not been
proven. The claim fails and must be disallowed.

FRROL M, McDOUGALL,
Orrawa, December 27, 1932. Commissioner.

CASE 2370--FRANK HENRY BRONSKILL

Claimant enlisted as a Private in August, 1914, at the age of 24 years, with
the second Battery C.F.A. He obtained a Commission November 6, 1916, and
transferred to the Royal Ilving Corps and held the rank of Licutenant at the

6108554 ‘
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“tibe of capture. He was shot down while flving over Lille and was slightly
wounded by a ricochet bullet which struck him in the chest. This occurred
February 1, 1917. He was released from Germany December 25, 1918, He
is not in receipt of a pension, He was married April 27, 1922, and has two
children. Prior to enlistment, he was s bank accountant, earning $1,100 per
annum and held different positions after discharge and is now an accountant
with a lumber firm, receiving $1,300 per annwn, although this is increased when
the business is operating, to $2,400.

He alleges that while n prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complainsg of bad food, solitary
confinement, exposure to cold, crowded quarters, insanitary living conditions,
and he now suffers from impaired cvesight, nervousness, stomach trouble, loss of
memory and general debility,

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant’s ease is synopsised in his statement of claim. At Douai, he
complains of solitary confinement, cold quarters, and poor food. At Karlshrue,
he was again confined, without cause. At Dobeln, conditions were much the
same, but in his deposition he declares that “ monotony ” of imprisonment is his
main grievance. An explanation for these confinements may be found in the
fact that elaimant with others, dismantled and removed a detectaphone apparatus
discovered in their cells. At Schweidnitz, conditions were better but poor accom-
modation, lack of exercise and bad food are strcased as the main complaints.
He complains of stomach disorders, loss of vision, nervousness and general
debility as resulting from these experiences,

The medieal evidence indieates that elaimiant suffers “ almost complete loss
of sight of left eye following uleerative %erastitis dating from 1918.” His
percentage of disability is stated at from 15 per cent to 30 per cent. Dr. J. H.
Box, who certifics to the foregoing, also appeared before the Commission, He
confirmed his diagnosis and explained that the impaired vision could result from
under nourishment and blood infection. Claimant’s medical history files show
nothing unusual, He was discharged as fit.

The evidence does not disclose any particular maltreatment. That claim-
ant was confined may have been due to his action in destroying the German
detectaphone apparatus installed in his quarters, Whatever disabilities he may
now suffer are nutritional in origin and eannot, in my opinion, be ascribed to
maltreatment. The disability resulting from impaired vision, if established,
would be a matter for the consideration of the Board of Pension Commissioners
As far as this Commission is concerned, the claim fails and must be disallowed.

SRROL AL MeDOUGALL,
Orrawy, December 20. 1932, Commuissioner.

CASE 2604—ABRAHANM BROWN

Claimant completed the usual declarstion forms, from which it appears
that he served with the Black Watch—Regimental No. 5869, was taken prisoner
March 21, 1918, wounded through the right shoulder. He was in receipt of
an Dmperial pension, which was discontinued in 1920. Claimant Sets up
maltreatment in Germany while a prisoner, resulting in disability, but did not
appear before the Commission, although notified to do so, to substantiate his
claim. Nothing has been heard of or from him for several months. The claim
must, accordingly, be disallowed for want of prosecution.

FRROL M. McDOUGALL,
OtTawa, December 28, 1932. _ Commissioner.
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CASE 2649—JOSEPH CHARLES BRUCE

Claimant was a Corporal in the 16th Battalion—Regimental No. 28715.
He enlisted in August, 1914, at the age of 27 years and was taken prisoner
April 24, 1915, during the sccond battle of Ypres, wounded in the right leg,
and gassed. He was released to Holland in October, 1918, and reached England
November 18 of that year. He is not in receipi of pension, was married in
1918, and has three children. Prior to enlistment, he was employed as an
electrical lineman, earning $5.40 per day and is now a stationery cngineer,
carning about $150 per month,

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He con plains that, as an N.C.O,,
he properly refused to work and received several periods of confinement in dark
cells, attempted to escape, was unduly punished and was refused his exchange,
which should have been granted fully fifteen months earlier.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Taken first to Giessen, claimant was then sent to Hestenmoor and to a
punishment camp Z. X 10, where he with others, was forced to exercise by
walking around in a circle 10 hours per day because they refused to work.
He was compelled to remove his jacket and stand to attention for an hour,
getting soaked to the skin. Then he was sent to Saltau and his certificate of
rank ignored and torn up. For refusal to work on munitions, he was given
periods of imprisonment in the cells with ircreasing terms. His exchange to
Holland was unduly delayed owing to refusal to recognize his rank and he
was finally released one month before the Armistice. He now suffers with
rlicumatism,

No medical certificates are filed and the military medieal records indicate
that on March 11, 1915, prior to capture, claimant was admitted to hospital
suffering with rheumatic fever and discharged a few days later.

In this state of the record, it has not becn established that claimant’s
present disability, if any, was the result of maltreatment at the hands of the
enremy. His treatment does not appear to have been unduly harsh and he
has failed to discharge the burden of showing a present disability resulting
from maltreatment. The rheumatic condition of which he complains, was
clearly present previous to capture. The claim must, accordingly, be dis-
allowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioncer.
Orrawa, December 14, 1932.

CASE 2640-—HARRY H. BRYANT

Claimant was a Private in the 7th Battalion—Regimental No. 16754. He
enlisted in August, 1914, at the age of 26 years, and was taken prisoner April
24, 1915, during the second battle of Ypres, unwounded but gassed. He was
repatriated to England December 1, 1918. He is not in receipt of a pension,
was married in December, 1918, and has four children. Prior to enlistment,
he was employed as a general labourer, earning $3.50 per day, and after
discharge resumed this occupation but is now unemployed.

He alleges that while a prisoncr he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of hard labour at
coke ovens; that he was beaten with rifles and shovels because he was unable
to work and received a cut in the leg during one of the beatings; was com-
pelled to stand as near to the ovens as was possible and then compelled to
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cand to attention for a long period. He states that he suffers with lung
trouble due to gas, aggravated by the gas from the coke ovens,

An analysis of the evidenee reveals:—

Claimant was first taken to Munster, and, after six weeks treatment, was
sent to Dortmund and put to work on the coke ovens. .le recites instances
of heatings (wo or three times per week, and of being forced to stand within
10 or 12 fect of the ovens. The coke was pushed out towards him while
sentries stood with bayonets to prevent him from backing away. This would
last ail day, chiefly on Sundays. Another Sunday, he with others, was lined
up on & railway track while an engine approached. Tt stopped before they
were run down. Sentries stood on cither side of the track to prevent them
breaking away. This trestment was as punishment for inability to work. He
now suffers with chest trouble.

He files two certificates by Dr. A. D. Morgan of Alberni, B.C., to the
offeet that he suffers with bronehial trouble and fibrosis of both lungs. He
fixes the pereentage of disubility at 75 per cent. He attributes the condition
to dust and gae fumes from the coke ovens in Germany.

An carlier certificate of Dr. Morgan, written in 1930, and appearing on
the Departmental files attributes claimant’s lung condition to the gas he
received when captured. An X-ray examination made in July, 1930, at the
Shauzhnessy Hospital, shows heart, lungs and mediastinum normal.  Tater
examinations fail to reveal any disability in claimant. It is scarcely necessary
to diseuss the ease further. Claimant has failed to discharge the burden
of showing a present disability resulting from maltreatment. ‘The claim must,
accordingly, be disallowed.

FRROL M. MeDOUGALL,
Commissioner.
Orrawy, December 13, 1932

CASE 2582—VINCENT THOMAS BURGESS

Claumant was a Private in the 1st Canadian Mototr Machine Gun Brigade
-~Regimental No. 107125, He enlisted Noveinber 13, 1914, at the age of 27
vears and was taken prisoner March 23, 1918, wunwounded. e was repatriated
te Fngland November 29, 1918, He is not in reecipt of pension, was married
in August, 1928 and has six childven, three being step-children.  Prior to
erlistment, he was a dredge repaiv worker, at $4 per day and hoard and is now
Lomesteading, )

He alleges that while a priscner he was subjected {o maltreatment which
has resulted in peenniary damage to him.  Ife complains of the bad food,
foreed Tabour, laek of medieal treatment and stoppage of parecls.

An analvsis of the evidenee reveals:—

Claimant was first taken to Giessen and then to Darmstadt, where he
went to hospital as the result of a fainting spell.  After three or four weeks,
he was returned to Giessen and then sent to Burgholms (sie) to work at a
smelter. Here he suffered eve strain due to the glare and sulphur fumes., He
accidently broke his finger, shovelling iron ore, and was laid off for 4 days
‘after nis band was bandaged. Later, he sealded his foot in another accident
and had to walk four miles hefore he received any medieal attention, He
speaks of reeciving a beating at Burgholms for not working fast enough. He
complaing of & stomach condition, due to the poor food.

No medical evidence was adduced and no medieal certificate was filed.
The military examination upon discharge notes the scars from the seald but
otherwise nothing nnusual.
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Claim....t w~as a prisoner for about eight months and, in comparison with
other prisoners, appears to have received very little maltreatment. I do not
find, in the record, any evidence of disability resulting from maltreatment.
In such cireumstances, claimant has failed to discharge the burden resting
upon him and the claim must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawy, January 9, 1933,

CASE 2442--ARTHUR F. BURTON

Claimant was a Private in the 1st C.M.R.—Regimental No. 106119. He
enlisted February 20, 1915, at the age of 37 years and was taken prisoner June
9. 1916. He was repatriated to England December 16, 1918,

Notice of claim was filed by a firm of solicitors, in Toronto, but no docu-
ments, affidavits or other material in support of the claim have been filed.
The claimant was notified to appear at Winaipeg for hearing, on September 13,
1932, but failed fo do so. He, however, wrote to the representative of the
Canadian Legion at Winnipeg under date of September 11, stating that it would
be impossible for him to appear-and asked him to present his case. This he
was unable to do as he had no information.

It is obviously impossible to deal with this case in the absence of docu-
mentary or other evidence. The claimant has made no effort by way of corre-
spondence or affidavit to furnish particulars, and, consequently, the claim must
he disallowed, for lack of prosecution.

ERROL M. MeDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 6, 1932,

CASE 2796 —ROBERT CALLAGHAN

Claimant was an Imperial soldier who served as a Private in the Royal
North Lancashire Regiment-—Regimental No, 201826. He came to Canada in
1907, and cnlisted November 30, 1915, at the age of 18 years. He states that
he tried to enlist in Canada but was rejected on account of his youth so he
returned to England and enlisted thece. He was taken prisoner August 8, 1916,
on the Somme, unwounded, and was repatriated to England in December, 1918.
He is not in receipt of pension and is unmarried. Prior to enlistment, he was
employed as a deckliand on ocean vessels sailing out of Montreal, earning up
to 818 per week and is at present unemployed although at his last job, as
labourer, he earned $22.50 per week,

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of blows on the head
while working in the coal mines resulting in complete deafness in the right ear
and injury to eyesight. .

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was first taken to Dulmen, and, after two months, was sent to
the stone quarry where he states the work was too hard and the food inadequate.
He was moved to Munster and was placed in a coal mine at Eckearm (sic),
where he stayed about a year. While working with civilians in the shaft, he
was knocked down by one of them for not working fast enough. A fight ensued
and he received several blows over the head rendering him unconscious. He is
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now deaf in the right car. He was shipped Fack to Munster No. 2 and was
placed before a eourt-martial but was acquicted. e was_then shipped to a
munition factory at Witten where he remainr.d until the Armistice. For refusing
to work on munitions, he was given a period of standing to attention. A com-
promise was effected whereby he and otliers were to work around the factory
but not at munitions. He received a beating here with a rubber hose for no
cause. e complaing now of head trovble consisting of dizzy spells and blurred
vision, ) .

There is no medieal evidence Hf record, not even the usual certificate of
a physician.  Claimant’s medical Yistory files are not available,

Claimant bases his compla’at upon deafness in the right ear. It was
evident, at the hearing, that he was far from deaf in fhis ear and could hem:
questions put to him in a lov voice from the right side. In the absence ol
medical evidence establishing some present disability connected with claimant’s
experiences as a prisoner, ‘he claim cannot succeed. Such evidence has not
been furnished. The clairs, accordingly, fails and must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commitssioner.
Orrawa, January 18 1933.

CASE 2289—FREDERICK ARTHUR CARTWRIGHT
¥

Claimant was a Private in the 29th Battalion—Regimental No. 706412.
He enlisted December 27, 1915, at the age of 18 years and was taken prisoner
May 8, 1917, suffering from slight shrapnel wounds in the right check, and
concussior. He was repatriated to England Decciaber 12, 1918, He is not in
receipt of a pension, was married in March, 1925, and has one child. Prior to
enlistment, he was employed as a lather, carning 86 per day and is now unem-
ployed although he had been in a logging camp at $3.60 per day.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
hus resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of beatings, confine-
ment, being ticd up by the thumbs and compelled to stand to attention; also
that he was struck in the groin by a bayonct.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:-—

First taken to Douai, claimant states that he was beaten into unconscious-
ness for refusing to divulge information concerning the Canadian army. He
was then confined to a cell for three days without food. At Fort McDonald,
he was again interrogated and strung up by the thumbs for refusal to answer.
He hung with toes touching the fleor for five hours. He was then left in con-
finement for 21 days on bread and water. He was again struck on the head
with a rifle and knocked unconscious and lost a tooth. In Germany, he was
attached to three camps. Tirst at Dulmen, where he complains of the food,
then at Burgensteinfort, and finally at Munster. From this latter camp he was
sent to work at an iron foundry, where, for refusal to work, he was compelled
to stand to aticntion in the hot sun. After 6 hours he collapsed. He went
through this again at Duisburg and again collapsed, He now suffers severe
headaches as the result of this treatment. At Munster, the day after the
Armistice, he remarked to a sentry that the war was over nd was struck in
the groin by a bayonet. He now carries the scar. He further complains of
neuritis in the knee due to working in the rain.

There is no medical evidence of record not even the usual certificate of a
doctor. Claimant’s medical history files show nothing unusual. He was dis-
charged from the service with the notation “all systems normal.” '
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Claimant has failed to establish any disability resulting from maltreatment.
His mere statement, unsupported by medical testimony, that he suffers from
headaches, his knee and possibly a leg injury, is insufficient to establish such
fact. Claimant’s recourse, if any, would appear to be before the Board of
Pension L;ommissioners. Before this Commission, the claim fails and must be
disallowed. )

ERROL M. MeDOUGALL,

Conanissioner.
Orrawa, December 28, 1932.

CASE 2680—NORMAN CHRISTY

Claimant was a Lance-Corporal in the 7th Battalion—~Regimental No.
16853. He enlisted in August, 1914, at the age of 20 years, and was taken
prisoner April 24, 1915, during the sccond battle of Ypres, suffering from_gas.
He was repatriated to England December 12, 1918. He is not in receipt of
pension, was married in March, 1924, and has four children. Prior to enlistment,
he was working as an eleetrician in a saw mill, earning $4 per day, and is now
unemployed, though for a time he was with the Dominion Forestry Branch, at
3165 per month.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary demage to him. He complains of bad food, that he
was forced to work while ill, was bheaten, and desired medical and dental treat-
ment. The file contains a declaration by Ha.old L. Tyack, a fellow prisoner,
who corroborates his story as to illness while a prisoner. C e

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was first taken to Ciiessen, where he spent about five weeks in
hospital. He complains of the food, both as to its quality and scarcity. He
contracted rheumatic fever due to dampness, exposure and his weakened condi-
tion. At a saw m'' in Westphalia, while suffering from rheumatism, he tried
to lay up, was badly beaten with a riflc, and received a blow in the back of
“the neck which still pains him. Every time he was sent out on working parties

Yhe eventually was returned to Giessen beeause of his illness.

There is no medics] evidence of record, not even the usual certificate of a
physician. Claimant’s medical history files refer to a condition of nervous
debility.

Cliaimant’s chief complaint seems to be that he suffers from rheumatism.
It is difficult to say that any maltreatment in Germany induced this condition.
1t may more properly be said to he due to exposure, lack of frod and poor living
conditions (Sce Opinion annexed to my earlier report upon maltreatment cages).
Viewing the case ns a whole, and in the absence of medical evidence, claimant
has not cstablished a present disability resulting from maltreatment. I consider
that his case is one for the consideration of the Board of Pension Commissicu.ers.
Before this Commission, the claim fails and must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 23, 1932. .

CASE 2670—WALTER W. CLARKE

Claimant was a Private in the 87th Battalion—Regmental No. 793137. He
enlisted in January, 1916, at the age of 39 years, ¢nd was taken prisouer
August 17, 1917, suffering from gunshot wounds in the rnight thigh and left foot.



74 REPARATIONS 1932-1443

He was repatriated to England in December, 1918, He is not in receipt of a
persion, but reccived a gratuity of $100 for his wounds. He was married at the
time of enlistment and has three childven, two of whom are of age. Prior to
enlistment, he was employed as a lumberman, earning $4 per day, and is now
trying to farm but without much success. He expeets to lose his farm through
Toreclosure.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to malireatment “which
has resulted in peeuniary damage to him. He complains of negleet of his
wound . absence of medical treatment and lack of food, that he was compelled
to work in the woods although searcely able to walk, and was kept at work on
: farm in the interior of Germany until long after the Armistice.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was first taken to Lens, where his wounds were attended. He
complains that the treatment was inadequate. Removed to Langensalza, he again
complains that he received no medieal. attention, and of starvation, He was not
subjeeted to physical abuse nor was he compelled to work. Sent out and made
to work in the woods, he declares that he waz unfit to do so in his condition of
weakness and injury.  He was next sent to a farm but has no complaints, exeept
as to being confined to cells for what appears to have been minor infractions of
discipline. Ile now complains of a heart condition and weakness in the legs.

The medical evidence indicates that claimant suffers from arterio selerosis
vith heart lesion. His pereentage of disability is stated at 100 per cent in the
seneral labour market. Dr. W, B. Grant, who certifies to the foregoing, did not
appear before the Commission. Claimant's medical history files refor to the
heart condition, which is cvidently the subject of pension consideration at the
moinent.

In this state ot the record it is impossible to reach a finding in claimant’s
favour. Mis main complaint is as to lack of food. As explained in Opinion
annexed to my earlier reports, this general condition of camp life cannot of
itself be regarded as maltreatment. 1 do not think it follows that claimant’s
present; state of health results from thesce conditions. At his present age, claimant
must expect some diminution in his physical vigour. On the whole, I must find
that claimant has failed to discharge the burden of showir a present disability
resulting from maltreatment. His claim, if any, is a matter for the considera-
tion of the Board of Pension Commissioners, As far as this Commission is
concerned, it must he disallowed.

ERROL M. AMcDOUGALL,

Commissionei.
Orrawa. December 13, 1932,

CASE 2760-—WILFRED CLARKE

Claimant was g Private in the 3rd CNLR.—Regimental No. 108154, e
enlisted December 18, 1914, at the age of 29 vears and was taken prisoner
June 2, 1916, suffering from gunshot wounds in right shoulder and left sam. He
was repatriated to England December 27, 1918, He is in receipt of a 15 per
cent digability pension, amounting to $11.25 per month, based on varicose veins.
Heo was married in 1905 and has three children, now all of-age. Prior to enlist-
ment, he was employed as a plasterer, earning £6 per day and is now unemployed;
but tried farming for a time after discharge and had to abandon it owing to his
health.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of abuse, starvation,
hard labour and confizeation of parcels,
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An anaiysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was {reated for his wounds at Courtrai, and sent to hospital at
Julich, as to which he has no complaints. He seems to have spent short periods
at Stendal, Wittenberg, Quedlinburg and Altengrabow. He speaks of a thrashing
received at Wittenberg, because of inability to understand German. He was
sent to work in a coal mine, on swrface work, and was beaten on several occasions.
He began to be troubled with varicose veins but received no treatment. He was
next sent to work at a sugar factory at Alderstadt, where he complains of very
hard work. Returned to Wittenberg he was placed at cutting wood and com-
plains that food parcels were confiseated. He remained here until the Armistice.

The medical record consists of a certificate by Dr. John W. Scott, of Edmon-
ton, who states that Le has known the claimant for some 18 months and finds
him suffering from severe enlargement of the heart, and varicose veins in the
left leg. The certificate recites: “This man has myocardial degeneration. His
overseas experience was undoubtedly a factor in aggravating the condition.”
Claimant’s medical history files refer to the conditions noted and indicate that
the inception of varicose veins occurred before capture.

I regard this case as one for the consideration of the Board of Pension Com-
missioners. Claimant’s health appears to have been affected by the gencral
conditions of camp life in Germany and not by any particular maltreatment on
the part of his captors (See general Opinion annexed to my earlier report upon
maltreatment cases). Claimant has failed to discharge the burden of showing
a present disability restlting {rom maltreatment. The claim fails, «nd must be
disallowed,

FRROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 22, 1932,

CASE 2651 —-COLIN CHARLES CLIFFORD

Claimant was a Private in the 7th Battalion—Regimental No. 23377. He
enlisted in August 1914, at the age of 34 years and was taken prisoner April 24,
1915, during the second battle of Ypres, shghtly wounded with shrapnel in the
leg. He was repatriated to England January 1, 1819, He is not in receipt of a
pension, was married in October 1819 and has no children. Prior to enlistment,
he worked as & miner and on construction work, earning from $120 per month,
upwards. He is now unemployed but had been engaged in leasing mines, aver-
aging about $100 per year.

He alleges that while a prisoncr he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of being knocked down,
kicked and beaten with rifles, resulting in a rupture. Denial of medical attention,
forced to work while unfit. Received blows whieh fractured the skull and
smashed his right foot and leg.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant served his period of captivity attached to several main camps in
the following order, Gicssen, Saltau, Lichtenhorst, Eschede and Hameln. At
Giessen he states he asked for medical treatment of his wounds which was
refused. While working at Lechbach, breaking up serap iron, he was badly
beaten and kicked, resulting in a rupture. This beating was because he refused
to continue longer with this work believing it to be for the manufacture of muni-
tions. At Eschede, he had contracted elephantiasis, his legs being so swollen he
could searcely stand. He was forced to continue at work and when he asked for
medical attention it was denied him and he received another beating, causing an
injury to his head and smashing the bones in his ankles. He was still refused
medical attention. The rupture again protruded after this beating. He alleges
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that he was never insubordinate and only refused to work when he believed he
was heing asked to do what he should not have been compelled ¢ do. Since
dizeharge, he elaims he is unable to earry on his ordinary employment and has
been under medieal observation practieally ever sinee.  Questioned as to the
swollen legs, he admits it may not have been elephantiasis but says they had to
call it something and gave it that name.

The medical record consists of two certifieates by Dr. A. Franeis, who did
not appear before the Commission.  He finds claimant suffering from headaches,
dizziness, pain and swelling in the right ankle and foot, cramp in the right leg,
general weakness and an abdominal pain over the umbilicus. X-ray photos of
the head are on file, revealing a healed fracture of the inner table of the skull.
There is an umbilical hernia, the opening admitting the index finger. A marked
varicose condition of the right leg is noted and a healad sear extending over the
right tibia can be made out. The military medical examination upon discharge
reveals nothing unusual.  In a statement made after repatriation he speaks only
in general terms of camp life in Germany and does not relate any of the instances
of maltreatment which are set out in the evidence given before the Commission.
Several certificates are filed by former prisoners, employers ‘and acquaintances,
to corroborate the story of his condition upon return to Canada. '

The disparity between claimant’s testimony and the statement made by
him upon repatriation is quite marked. In the latter document he scarcely
refers to any brutality to himself but confines his statement to general recitals of
harsh treatment to others. It scems inconveivable, had he encountered the per-
sonal brutality he later tells, that he would not have reported it fully when
examined in England. Having regard to this state of facts and to the medical
vidence of record, I do not consider that I would be justified in reaching a finding
in claimant’s favour. On the whole, I regard the c¢laim as possibly one for the
consideration of the Board of Pension Commissioners. Before this Commission,
the elaim fails and must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

v Commaissioner,
Orraws, December 27, 1932,

CASE 2510—YFREDERICK G. CLIFFORD

Notice of claim was received on behalf of the above named eclaimant, but
the usual documents of claim have never been completed. From his medical
history files, it would appear that he enlisted on July 5, 1915, was taken prisoner
on June 5, 1916 and repatriated to England on November 30, 1918. He is in
receipt of a 20 per cent disability pension. No other informatior concerning
claimant is available. He was notified to appear before the Commission at its
Winnipeg sessions, on September 13, 1952, but failed to appear. His default has
remained unexplained. The elaim must, accordingly, be disallowed for want of
prosecution.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 28, 1932.

CASE 2538—JOHN JOSEPH CLOUGHER

Claimant has not completed th e usual documents of elaim. He came before
the Commission, at Edmonton, and explained his case. It appears that he served
with the Imperials—4th Battalion (Notts & Derbys)—Regimental No. 20032.
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Claimant first came to Canada in May, 1926. He enlisted in April, 1916, at 18
vears of age, was taken prisoner on April 23, 1917, unwounded, and repatriated
to England in December, 1918. He was in receipt of pension, which has since
been discontinued. He is married and has six children. Prior to enlistment,
claimant was employed on a farm. He is still following the same occupation.

It was explained to claimant, at the hearing, that, as an Imperial who first
came to Canada in 1926, he has no standing before this Commission. In cases of
Tmperial soldiers, it is only those who became resident in Canada previous to
January 10, 1920, date of the ratification of the Treaty of Versailles, who are
entitled to consideration (See my earlier report upon maltreatment cases).
Reserving, therefore, to claimant all his recourses, and without deciding the case
upon its merits, the claim must be disallowed before this Comimission,

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

) Commissioner, -
Orrawa, January 4, 1933,

CASE 2694—CHRISTOPHER COATES

Claimant was a Private in the 15th Battalion—Regimental No. 799870. He
enlisted in January, 1916, at {he age of 19 v cars and was taken prisoner Septem-
ber 23, 1917. He states he was not wounded, although the military records
indieate gunshot wounds in the i,ack, face and left hand, either at time of capture
or shortly before. He was repatriated to England December 15, 1918. He is not
in receipt of pension, was married in December, 1919, and has one child. Prior
to enlistment, he was employed in the hardware trade, earning $12 per week and
is now with the Toronto City Parks Department, at $30 per week. ‘

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of forced labour in the
stone quarries, exposure to cold due to lack of clothes, of beatings, having his
head cut open, and confinement to dark cells,

An analysis of the evidence reveals:-—

Claimant was first detained at Douai, Mannheim and Dulmen for short
periods but hes no complaints, except as to the food. Sent to the stone quarries
at Heuburg, he complains of having to work in the winter without underclothing.
Next sent to a farm at Bochum, he states he was knocked down a flight of steps
by a sentry, cutting open his head and injuring his nose. This was followed
by a period of confinement for five days without food. He still has trouble
with the injured nose. .

No medical evidence was adduced at the hearing, the record consisting of a
certificate by Dr. J. L. Gardiner, indicating a fracture of nasal septum and
dislocation of nasal bhones with a disability up to 90 per cent in claimant’s
own calling. A certificate by Dr. A. J. Prentice is filed, who finds that claimant
is very nervous, rapid pulse on exertion, has a cough with expectoration; diag-
nosis acute bronchitis. A certificate by Dr. H. A. Hession is also filed. He
states that claimant suffers from neurasthenia coupled with nervous exhaustion,
rapid heart, chrouic bronchitis aud nervous indigestion and declares that he
cannot follow an indoor occupation. Claimant’s medical history files show
nothing unasual., He was apparently discharged as fit,

By comparison with the statements of other prisoners in Germany, claim-
ant's experiences were not particularly harsh. I cannot say, from the record,
that the nose injury has left any appreciable disability. His remaiaing ail-
mentg, if attributable to his experiences as a prisoner, would appear to be the
result of general conditions of life which were common to all prisoners, and can-
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not be said te follow from any particular maltreatinent. Claimant’s recourse,
if any, is before the Board of Pension Commissioners. Before this Commission,
the claim fails and must be disallowed,

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner.
Orrawa, January 16, 1933,

CASE 2607—H. 1. COLLINS

Claimant was a Private in the 13th Battalion—Regimental No, 445011,
He cealisted in June, 1915, was taken prisoner in October, 1916, and was
repatriated in December, 1918, He made application to this Commission in
March, 1932, and forms were forwarded to him on March 21st of this year.
They have never been returned, nor is any additional information available.
Claimant was notified to appear for hearing, at St. John, N.B., on June 13, 1932,
but 1ailed to do so, The claim is, accordingly, disallowed for want of prosecu-
tion.

FERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.,
Orrawa, December 28, 1932

CA3ZE 2790-HUGO ROSS COLLVER

Claimant was a Private in the 14th Battalion—Regimental No. 796542, He
cnlisted December 23, 1915, at the age of 19 vears and was taken prisoner April
21, 1917, unwounded. He was repatriated to England November 28, 1918, He
is in receipt of a 70 per cent disability pension, amounting to $103.50 per month
for himself and family, based on osteo-arthritis of the spine. He was married
in July, 1921, and has four children. Prior to enlistment, he lived with his
father on a farm and is now engaged in teaching school, at $1,800 per annum.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of forced labour at
heavy tasks, exposure, inadequate clothing ard sturvation. :

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant passed through the notorious Fort MeDonald at Lille, where
he reeeived no food, and landed at Avelin reprisal camp. Here he worked long
hours per day, seven days per week and was compelled to tontinue while suffer-
ing from boils. Finally he was admitted to hospital at Tournai, suffering from
septic sores and states that he was vaccinated against smallpox, which spread
to the sores. e reéeived no medical treatment for this condition. Upon
recovery, he was sent to Aniche, near Douai, where he worked in a lumber yard
and no fires were allowed in the billet, The prisoners gathered wood and made
a fire which was put out by the guards and they were driven to their bunks
with rifle butts. The cxposure and cold resulted in eclaimant developing
rheumatism, At Denain, he was placed at loading shells on freight cars and
pushing the cars about a mile down the track. He states that besides being
illegal, this work was too arduous. He received beatings on several occasions
but no permanent injury resulted. Hé was exposcd to shell fire from the front
line at times. Next he was at Soignes (sic) working in a tannery and finally
at Leige until the Armistice, He now suffers with arthritis of the spine as a
result of the treatment and exposure while a prisoner, Claimant was questioned
by the medical examiner to the Commission concerning his diary which does
not scem to bear out entirely his story of maltreatment,.
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No medieal evidence was adduced at the hearing, the record consisting of a
copy of a certificate of Dr. B. C. Archibald, which indicates that claimant suffers
with osteo arthritis localized in the lower dorsal and lumber vertebrae. A copy
of a certificate by Dr. G. E. McCartney is filed, indicating the same trouble. - A
further certificate by Dr. McCartney fixes the disability at from 70 per cent to
90 per cent. The record is completed by copies of certificates by fellow prisoners
corroborating claimant’s story. Claimant’s medical history files show nothing
unusual, apart from the condition for which he receives pension.

Claimant has filed a diary kept by him while he was a prisoner. In reading
this document, it is, at once, apparent that claimant’s treatment was not ax
severe as his testimony would now indicate, 'This fact was pointed out to
claimant at the hearing, but the explanation of the disereparcies was not very
satisfactory. I am not convinced that the condition of arthritis, of which
claimant complains, can be aseribed to his treatment as a prisoner. It may, and
probably did, result from general conditions of ecamp life in Germany and in my
opinion, is fully covered by the pension which claimant receives. Claimant has
failed to discharge the burden of showing & present disability resulting from
maltreatment. The claim, accordingly, fails and must be disallowed,

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

, Commissioner.
Orrawa, Japuary 16, 1933,

CASE 2483 —ITHAMER COMFORT

Claimant was a Sapper in the 2nd Tunnelling Company—Regimental No.
503456. He enlisted January 13, 1916, at the age of 26 years and was taken
prisoner June 2, 1916, unwounded. He was repatriated to England November
29, 1918, having reached Holland on the 7th of that month. He is not in receipt
of pension but has an application therefor pending. He was married in February,
1919, and has three children. Prior to enlistment, he was employed as a dairy-
man, cearning £60 per month and board and at present is selling insurance, earn-
ing about $60 per month. s

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of bad food, rough
treatment, heavy labour and that he received a kick, whieh resulted in hernia.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was first taken to Dulmen, and then sent to the village of Engers,
where he was placed on railway construetion. The work was heavy and while
lifting steel girders, which were too heavy, he received a kick in the groin and
was made to lift the burden. About an hour later he felt pain and states that
“my side all came down.” He was left in barracks for a week, without medical
attention, and was then placed on a farm, where he remained a year and received
fair treatmenf. In June, 1918, he was sent to Limburg and was placed at firing
furnaces in a glass factory but could not continue, so he was placed in a factory
at light work. His condition became worse and he was supplied with a truss
which did not fit. He finally reached Holland. -

No medical testimony was adduced at the hearing, but a certificate of Dr.
R. L. Stewart, of Blairmore, Alta. is filed, indicating that claimant suffers from
a right inguinal hernia, He fixes the disability at from 30 per cent in his own
calling to 50 per cent in the general labour market. i

1 do not consider that it can be said that the hernia from which claimant
suffers is traumatic in origin. I am informed that such a result is rare. I am
inclined to think that the injury was accidental in origin. It is referred to in
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claimant’s pension documents as * Post discharge.” Claimant made no mention
thereof when discharged and was apparently passed “all systems normal.” In
these circumstances, claimant has failed to show a disability resulting from mal-
treatment.  The elaim must, accordingly, be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, Deeember 13, 1932, '

CASE 2778—-WALTER CONLEY

Claimant was a Private in the 4th CM.R.—Regimental No. 111107. He
enlisted November 28, 1914, at the age of 25 years, and was taken prisoner June
2, 1916, suffering with shrapnel wourds in the head and legs and a touch of gas.
He was repatriated to England December 24, 1918, He is not in receipt of pen-
sion, was married in April, 1920, and has four children. Prior to enlistment, he
was employed in the kitchen of a passenger vessel, earning $35 per month and
hoard, and -is now an clevator operator at $17 per week.

He alleges ‘that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of a double hernia, the
result of a blow with a rifle while he was in the act of lifting a heavy steel
girder. Now suffers severe pain and has to wear a suspensory.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant received hospital treatment at Aachen and Cologne, was transferred
1o Stendal and thence to Wittenburg. Here he worked on a farm and complains
18 to the food and a beating reccived for not being able to work. TFor resisting
this beating and striking the guard he received fourteen days confinement. He was
next sent to Altengrabow and succeeded in having corporal’s stripes sewn on his
sleeve.  Unable to verify his rank he was taken to Gardeleben and then to Zerbst,
where he was placed at hard labour. In moving iron girders he was struck by a
guard with a rifle, in the side, just as he was lifting, which is stated to have caused
the hernia from which he now suffers. After a short lay-off, and being fitted with
a truss, he was put back to work, but after a collapse he was allowed rest until the
Armistice.  Fe states that an operation was performed in Canada for the hernia,
which was successful, and that he now suffers from his chest and pains in the back.

The medical record consists of a certifieate by Dr. J. R. Davidson, who did not
appear before the Commission. He has known claimant since 1920, snd finds
that he suffers from periodic attacks of sub-acute bronchitis. Ife fixes the dis-
ability at from 35 per cent to 40 per cent. The military medical board on dis-
charge indicates “ double inguinal hernia. Operation military hospital St. John
15/3/19. Good recovery. No disability at present time.” o

Claimant was successfully operated upon for hernia and suffers no disability
therefrom. His explanation of the origin of this injury is not the same in his
testimony as it appeais in statement appearing on his medical files. In one case
he says it was due to a blow lifting steel girders, and in the other that it was
developed while lifting heavy bags. Claimant speaks of being gassed when
captured. This is practieally the only case in which the Geriaans are said to have
employed gas on June 2, 1916. Claimant may have been treated roughly, but
I do not consider that he has succeeded in showing a present disability resulting
from maltreatment. His story of his experience was not impressive. Claimant’s
recourse, if any, is before the Board of Pension Commissioners. Before this
Commission, the claim fails and must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
. Commissgioner.
Ortawa, January 91933~ -~ - — — oL
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CASE 2532—JOHN ALEXANDER CONNOLLY

Claimant was a Private in the 13th Battalion—Regimental No. 427058. He
enlisted May 4, 1915, at the age of 31 years and was taken prisoner October 8,
1916, suffering from gunshot wound in the left arm and a superficial shrapnel
wound in the stomach. He was repatriated to England December 15, 1918. He is
not in receipt of a pension, and is unmarried. Prior to enlistment, he was employed
as o clerk on the staff of the Y. M.C.A. at Reging, at 75 per month, and is now a
salesman in a shoe store, earning $100 per month.

_ He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which has
reaulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of heing compelled to work
while ill with influenza, that he was made to stand to atteution during the dinner
hour because of unfinished work and kept at work late at night uitil the day’s
work was completed. Blows from rifle butts and bayonets.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was first sent to hospital after capture, where he remained four
months. He has no complaints as to his treatment in hospital. After release,
he was sent to Altdamm, and, after a short stay, was sent to a chemical factory
near Stettin, where he served the remainder of his period of captivity. Here he
was placed at labour shovelling and wheeling coal and phosphate and reccived
the usual knocks and blows but suffered no permanent. injury. The work was too
heavy and more than a man could do, and, in consequence, he states that he now
suffers from heart strain and stomach disorders.

A medical certificate by Dr. W. A. Lincoln is filed, indicatitg that claimant

has a permanent enfargement of the heart, probably the result of war service. His. - -

medical history files show nothing unusual.

There is no evidence of maltreatment beyond the excessive hard labour which
<cems to have been the lot of most prisoners. The claimant has thus failed to
cstablish the elements necessary to an award, viz: maltreatment followed by
permanent disability. His recourse, if any, should be found before the Board
of Pension Commissioners. Before this Commission the claim fails and must be
disallowed,

ERROLL M. McDOUGALL,

_ Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 13, 1932,

CASE 2708—ALFRED CORMACK

Claimant was a Private in the 4th Battalion—Regimental No. 784034. He
cnlisted November 15, 1915, at the age of 24 years and was taken prisoner in
January, 1918, unwounded. He was repatriated to England December 4, 1918.
He is in receipt of a 20 per cent disability pension, amounting to $23 per month,
based on chronic bronchitis, He was married in May 1921 and has one child.
Prior to enlistment, he was employed as a shoemaker, earning $15 per week and
is now a postal-helper, at $1,020 per annum.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of frequent beatings
and of having his side crushed, fractured ribs in the coal mines, denial of
medical aid, and of starvation.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant first spent two weeks in confinement at Fort McDonald in Lille.
He received a beating from guards for not understanding orders while hauling
conl. He was then taken to Stoppenburg to work in a coal mine, but stopped
at Dulmen en route, where he remained eleven days undergoing seven or ecight

610856



82 - REPARATIONS 1932-1033

inoculations. At Stoppenburg, he relates that his side was crushed when a horse
was driven against him in the narrow minp tunnel, The doctf)r mstead of treat-
ing him for his fractured ribs, knocked him down. He received other beatings
and states the quarters were poor, the food bad, and that he suffered from the
cold due to lack of clothing and heat in the barracks, He states that an attempt
was made to foree him and other prisoners to work after the Armistice was signed
and that they were fired upon by the sentries and three prisoners were killed.

No medieal evidence was adduced at the hearing, the reeord consisting of a
certificate by a doctor (name indecipherable) indieating chronie bronchitfis with
a 20 per cent disability.  Claimant’s medical history files show the condition of
bronchitis, for which he receives pension,

Claimant’s testimony varies materially from the statement made by him
upon repatriation, which is filed with his military record. I am not convineed
that the incident of having his ribs erushed by a horse, if it occurred as related,
was deliberate, nor does the evidence establish any disability resulting there-
from. The condition of bronehitis, if established, might give claimant, entitle-
ment to pension but does not meet the requirements before this Commission,
viz., proof of present disability resulting from maltrentment. On the whale,
claimant has failed to discharge the burden resting upon him. The claim fails
and must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner.
Orraws, January 16, 1933,

CASE 2759—ANDREW COWIE

Claimant was a Private in the 31st Battalion—Regimental No. 161092, He
enlisted December 15, 1915, at the age of 35 years, and was taken prisoner
May 3, 1917, suffering with gunsliot wounds in the right buttock and a fractured
kneceap. He was repatriated to England December 7, 1918, 1le is in receipt
of a 15 per cent disability pension, amounting to 815 per month, based on his
war service injurics, He was married in"April, 1903, and has three children, all
now of age. Prior to enlistment, he was cmployed as a building contractor,
carning about $7 per day, and since discharge he has been farming,

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of an injury due to a
plank falling on his head, forced to labour in coal mines, beatings, and an injury
in the mine, being caught between the coal hatch and the cage.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was marched 18 kilometres to Douai, suffering with fractured
kneecap. He received treatment for his knee irjary and was in hospital four
months. Here, he injured his head due to the accidental falling of a 16-foot
plank. At Dulmen, for three weeks, he has no complaints, but in the coal mine
at Bochum he suffered injuries to his back due to having been jammed in a hateh,
He was carried out on a stretcher, was sent to hospital for six weeks and has no
complaints. Thence he was sent to Munster, in Westphalia, where he remained
until the end of his period of captivity,

Attached to the declaration is a_certificate by Dr. A. H, Mann, who has
attended claimant since June, 1921. He finds him to be suffering from sciatica
and lumbago, with disability from 75 per cent to 100 per cent. Other medical
certificates are appended indicating the condition of lumbago, weakness in the
knee, arthritis and infected teeth,
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The injurics received by claimant while a prisoner are the result of acci-
dents and eannot be attributed to maltreatment. It is not unusual to find a
man of claimant’s present age suffering with lumbago and rheumatism, and 1
cannot find in his evidence any indication that maltreatment, whilst a prisoner,
induced or augmented his disabilities. I am not unmindful that claimant spent
some months in the coal mines, but this period of his captivity was of compara-
tively short duration (see Opinion annexed to my carlier report on maltreatment
cases). On the whole, I am of opinion that claimant has failed to discharge the
burden of showing o present disability resulting from maltreatment. The claim,
accordingly, fails and must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner,
Orraws, December 13, 1932,

CASE 2517--NORMAN CRANSTON

Notice of claim was received from the above-named claimant in 1931. It
appears that he served with the Imperials, Durham Light Infantry, Regimental
No. 217408, He asserts that he had been resident in Canada since 1913, but
went home to enlist in 1915. He was taken prisoner on April 23, 1918,
unwounded, and repatriated to England on December 23, 1918. Although
appearing as an Imperial, claimant was notified to appear before the Commission
at its Calgary sessions, on September 18, 1932, but failed to do so. His default
has remained unexplained. The claim must, accordingly, be dismissed for want
of prosecution.

ERDOL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 28, 1932.

CASE 2753—JOHN CRAWFORD

Claimant was n private in the 7th Battalion—Regimental No. 17209, He
enlisted in August, 1914, at the age of 37 years and was taken prisoner April 24,
1915, during the second battle of Ypres, suffering from gas. He was repatriated
to England December 27, 1918, He is not in receipt of pension but is receiving
the Veteran's allowance of $20 per month, and is a widower,-with ene child,
now of nge. Prior to enlistment, he was employed as a contract miner, earning
about $150 per month, and is now unemployed. ,

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has vesulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of beatings, confine-
ment, forced labour while ill, and a broken finger from a blow by a rifle butt.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was first taken to Giessen, where he remained for about 8 months
and was then sent to Mannheim to work on munitions. The work was too heavy
for him and he was given a beating and was confined to barrucks for one month.
He was next tried ‘at the gas factory and reccived another beating for not work-
ing fast enough. He was sent to Lichtenhorst in January, 1916, and was
examined by a Belgian doctor and pronounced unfit to work due to a swollen
ankle. He was, however, placed at work on the moors and being unable to
carry on due to his ankle, was knocked about and had two teeth knocked out by
a rifle butt and a finger broken. He was then confined to cells, and while there,, -
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reccived another beating. He was confined for 10 days, without any food what-
soever for two days. He was next given light work and was sent up for examinga-
tion before the Swiss Commission. He was then sent to Saltau and finally to
Konigsberg on lumbering work. He worked here until the summer of 1918
During this period, he was suffering from a rupture_and being unable to work
further was returned to Saltau, where he remained until the Armistice. Claimant
complains of swollen legs (varicose veins) and injury to his little finger. Claimant
made a statement upon repatriation which coineides with the story now told,
before the Commission. o

No medical evidence was adduced and no certificate is filed in support of
the elaim.  Claimant’s medieal history files refer to his disabilities as post dis-
charge.

In the absence of medical evidence establishing a present disability resulting
from maltreatment, it is impossible to reach a finding in claimant’s favour. He
told a very straightforward story but the mere statement by him that his dis-
abilities are the result of his experiences in Germany is not sufficient to base an
award, particularly since his pension records indicate his ailments of varicose
veins, duodenal uleer and neurasthenin as post discharge.  The hernia condition
has not been shown as otherwise than aceidental, Before this Commission, the
elaim fails and must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

A Commissioner,
Orrawa, January 24, 1933,

V CASE 2803—CHARLES CRAWLEY

Claimant was a Private in the R.C.R.—Regimental No. 552029. He enlisted
in February, 1915, at the age of 29 vears, and was taken prisoner on Qctober
8, 1916, unwounded. He was repatrinted to Ingland in November, 1918. He is
not. in receipt of pension, was married in 1924, and has one child, adopeed. Prior
to enlistment, claimant was o farmer, carning 840 per month, and is now « night
: watchman at a garage, carning about 830 per month.

; Claimant aleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment
which has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. e cotaplains of heavy work
in the coal mines, where his fingers were injured and he was compelled to work
notwithstanding sueh injuries, and made to stand to attention for long hours, as
punishiment.

' Claimant did not appear before the Commission, but in detailed statement
submitted he complains that in Muarch, 1917, while working in the coal mines
near Bochum, he was hit aeross the fingers of the left hand with an iron bar in
the hands of a guard, tearing the finger nails off the first three fingers. He
received some medieal attention for the injury, but was compelled to return to
work almost immediately, and suffered intense pain.  Beeause he could not work,
he was made to stand to attention for periods of six hours, Again, in May, 1918,
while loading rocks the German guards were o careless in throwing the rocks
that the index finger of claimant’s right hand was hroken, He had protested
as to the danger of the wark, but his protests were unavailing. He was again
compelled to continue working in this condition. He has no complaints as to
the medical treatment received but stresses the fact that he was compelled to
work when unfit. -~ )

The medical evidenee indicates that claimant is unable to “ flex the termimd{ S<yi§
phalanx of index finger, right hand. When forcibly flexed and let go il snaps
back. Very slight sensation in skin of the terminal {inch of this finger.” His
pereentage of disability is stated at 10 ber cent. Dy, & W, Walker, who cer-
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tifics to the foregoing, did not appear before the Commission. Claimant’s 2
medieal history files show no disability upon discharge from the service. #
It will be observed, from the medical evidence, that there is apparently no §

disability in elaimant’s left ' and. The injuty to the finger of the right alone is
mentioned.  The injury was accidental in origin, however carclessthe guard
may have been, and I cannot say, from the record, that there is any evidence 4
supporting the view that the present 10 per cent disability results from mal- ;
treatment.  Claimant has failed to discharge the burden of showing a present 3
disability resulting from maltreatment. His recourse, if any, is before the Board ;
of Pension Commissioners. Before this Commission, the elaim fails and must be g
disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner. .
Orrawa, January 30, 1933.

CASE 2577—ROBERT CRICHTON

Claimant was a Private in the 13th Battalion-~Regimental No, 24120, He
cnlisted in August 1914, at the age of 31 years, and was taken prisoner April 24,
1915, during the second battle of Ypres, unwounded. He was repatriated to Eng-
Iand December 27, 1918, He is not in receipt of pension, was married in January
1922, and brought up two children, having married a widow. Prior to enlistment,
hie was employed as a miner, carning $3.50 per day, and is now a fire boss, earning
£6.75 per day.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of exposure, bad food
and an injury to his foot which seems to have oceurred hefore capture.

An anelysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was first taken to Meschede, where his only complaint is as {o the

food. At Giessen, he was sent out gardening and scems to have been fairly
treated, except that his injured foot troubled him and he was not allowed medical
attention.  The foot. seems to have heen sprained in jumping a trench some time
hefore his eapture. He was sent to the moors to labour, as punishment for laugh-
ing at a German Corporal, and complains of exposure, being compelled to work
long hours in water, He received several clouts with rifle butts, but suffered no
3 permanent injury. '
Dr. G. Blair Ross, of Hillerest, Alta., certifies that he has attended the claim-
A ant for the past ten vears and finds that every three months the left foot becomes
4 =wollen and tender, requiring absolute rest, with elevation, for from three to five
3 days. Claimant’s medieal history files show nothing unusual.

Claimant is evidently under the misapprehension that the Commission is
authorized to deal with pensions, His present disability results from the wound
received at or before the time of capture, and the evidence does not justify
a finding that the injury was aggravated due to maltreatment whilst a prisoner.
The hard labour, of which he complains, has not been shown to have resulted in
disability. The claim, if any, is one for the consideration of the Board of Pension
Commissioners. As far a- (hi- Commission is concerned, it must be disallowed.

ERROIL M. McDOUGALT,,
Comissioner.

Orraws, December 13, 1932,
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CASE 2731—ERNEST HENRY CROFTS

NSTIO3EAM3 T e e

Claimant was a private in the 4th CM.R.—Regimental No. 113155. He .
enlisted August 19, 1915, at the age of 22 years and was taken prisoner June 2,
1916, suffering from gunshot wound in the right hip, gas and shell-shock. He wus
repatriated to England January 4, 1919, He is in receipt of a 60 per cent dis-
ability pension, amounting to $60 per month, based on bronchitis and asthma.
He was marriedin Marceh 1921 and has no children. Prior to enlistment, he was
employed as a cooper, at $1.75 per day, and is now doing light jobs, at about
£3.50 per day. ’

He alleges that while @ prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which has
resulted in peeuniary damage to him. He complains of the food, expozure to cold,
and starvation.

An analysis of the evidence reveal<:-—

Claimant first spent a few weeks in Cologne hospital, followed by six montlhs
at Stendal where he complains that he was compelled to be out at work in all
weathers, Next on a working party in the woods at Magdeburg, for three months,
he states he was kept out in snow and rain and was nearly frozen at night.
Reeceived the usual kicks and blows but nothing serious enough to cause disable-
ment. This was followed by three months at Wittenberg under the same condi-
tions of hardships and exposure. At Altdamm and Zerbst, the complaints are
similar.

No medical evidence was adduced at the hearing, the record consisting of two
certificates by Dr. W. A, Baker, who has treated claimant periodically since 1919,
He finds him to be suffering from chronie asthma and cubect to swelling in the

: face which he is unable to diagnose. He fixes the disability at from 40 per cent
to 100 pereent.  Claimant's medical history files refer to bronehitis-and asthma,
’ for which he receives pension.

Claimant’s complaints are quite general in nature. General conditions of
camp life, exposure to the weather while at work and privation, form the basis
of his complaint, to which he attribufes his present chest condition.  For reasons
which have been explained in my earlier repos on maltreat 1ent cases, 1 do not
regard these conditions as constituting maltreatment.  Claim t's vecourse, if any,
iz before the Board of Pension Commissioners,  Before this ¢ nmission, the claim
fails and must be disallowed.

ERROL M. .. DOUGALL,
Conmissioner.
irawy, January 16, 1933.

CASE 2733—STANLEY LAVERN CRUIKSHANK

Claimant was & Lance Corporal in the 4th C.M.R.—Regimental No. 109288.
He cnlisted November 27, 1914, at the age or 16 years and was taken prisoner
June 2, 1916, suffering from shrapnel wounds in the chest, hip and near the
spine. He was repatriated to England December 31st 1918, He has an applica-
tion for pension now under consideration, was married in April 1919, and has one
child.  Prior to enlistment, he was a railroad labourer, carning 818 per week and is
now a bus driver, at $25.50 per weck. .

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which has
resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of exposure, bad food, star-
vation and a kick in the back, causing permanent injury.
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An analysis of the evidence reveals: —

Claimant was first in hospital at Giessen, where, he states, the attention
given his wounds was very poor. He developed septic poisoning and was dis-
charged from hospital to camp with his wounds still discharging. After eight
months, he was sent to Saultau and placed at work clearing land. He was
-kicked and knocked about and received a blow in the baek which still gives him
trouble. He was made to work in the rain and cold and had no place to dry his
wet clothes. He now suffers from bronchitis. He was sent to hospital in Han-
over with this complaint and received no medical treatment. After six weeks, he
was placed in a car factory, where he remained until the Armistice, a period of
some 18 months. There was no particular brutality here, the complaint being of
general rough treatment. )

The medical record consists of certificates by Dr. W, I, Henderson, who did
not appear before the Commission. e indicates that claimant suffers from
chronic bronchitis, which existed to his knowledge since 1922, He also notes a
complaint of sharp pains through the chest and back attributed either to a blow
“ recetved in the back or his wound in that region. He fixes the disability at from
i 10 per cent to 100 per cont. (It is unusual to find a statement by claimant
included in the statement of the physician). Claimant’s medieal history files show
nothing unusual. He was apparently discharged as fit.

Claimant appeared to be in good health at the hearing. His complaint is
confined to bronehitis, attributed to exposure whilst a prisoner. I consiavr that
the case is purely pensionable in nature. Claimant has not shown such mal-
treatment as would eause disability. The bronchial condition, if established,
would result from general conditions of camp life in Germany. Hc also speaks of

a hack injury, from a blow, but this condition has not been proved. On the whole,
5 the elaim fails and must be disallowed,
g
3 TFRROL M. McDOUGALL,
i Commisstoner.
3 Orrawy, January 16, 1933
; CASE 2768—EDWIN DALBECK
: Claimant was a Private in the 44th Battalion—Regimental No. 829654. He
. enlisted December 7, 1915, at the age of 24 years and was taken prisoner August
; 23, 1917, at. Lens, unwounded. The military records state he had a gunshot wound
5 in the left shoulder (probably incurred previously). He was repatriated to

England November 24, 1918, He is not in receipt of pension and is unmarried.
Prior to enlistment, he was employved as a labourer, earning about $100 per month,
and s now unemploved. Since discharge, he states he has never been able to
work more than six months per year due to weakness,

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which has
resulted in pecuniary damage to him. e complains of beating, excessive labour
and refusal of medieal attention while ill with influenza.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant. was first taken to Dulmen, and then transferred to Oberhausen,
where he w: placed at very heavy work on a smelter. In the spring of 1918 he
beeame ill with influenza and after three days in bed he walked to a doctor some
three kilonieters away. The doctor, without examining him, knocked him down
and kicked him out of the office and he was marched back to work. His fellow
prisoners helped with the work until he partially recovered his strength. His
entire complaint is that he was forced to do excessively heavy work while unfit,
with the result that he suffers with his nerves and heart.
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There is no medieal evidenee of record, not even the usual certifieate of a
physieian.  Claimant’s medica) history files show nothing unusual. He was
apparently discharged from the service as fit. o

In this state of the record it is clearly -impossible to reach a finding in
claimant’s favour. IIis mere statement that be suffers from his nerves, and a
heart. eondition, without medical evidence showing a present disability, cannot
cstablish the fact. Claimant was subjected to heavy work and if his health has
suffered from the strain, T do not consider that this can be regarded as the result
of maltreatment.  His recourse, if any, is before the Board of Pension Com-
missioners.  Before thix Commission, the elaim fails and must be disallowed.

m&,‘ M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner.
Orrawy, December 30, 1932.

CASE 2655—HARRY DARLEY

Claimant. was a Private in the 7th Battalion—Regimental No. 16878, He
enlisted in August 1914, at the age of 25 years, and was taken prisoner April 24,
1915, during the sccond batile of Ypres, suffering with gunshot wound in the
right shoulder.  He was repatriated to England December 15, 1918, He is not in
receipt of pension, was married in February 1919 and has one child.  Prior to
enlistment, he was emploved as a logger, earning from £3 {0 86 per day. Ie is
now a sash and door maker, at 55 cents per hour,

He alleges that while a prisoner fie was subjected to maltreatinent which has
resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complaing of the foo, unsanitary con-
ditions, exposure, and of being foreed to work while i,

An analysis of the evidenee reveuls:—

Taken to Roulers, elaimant had the usual five day journey in a box car into
Germany on starvation rations. Upon reaching Paderborn ‘he was placed in
hospital and remained under treatment cight or nine weeks. When discharged
he was taken to Yangengreer and placed at railway work. He remained here
antil repatriated, and complains chiefly of the damp quarters, the food rations,
and, when ill with dysentery that he was compelled to earry on at work. He
eseaped beatings and bratality, he says, beeause he kept his mouth eloserd, He
now sufters with chronie catarrh.

The medical vecord consists of a certifiente of Dr. A, D. Beehtel, who did
not appear before the Commission, indicating a catarrhal condition of the nasal
chamber, throat and pharvnx, and bronchitie, A declaration is also filed by Teslic
G, Seott, of Vietoria, who states he has known elaimant since 1912 and that he
has been a resident of Victoria since then. Claimant's medical history files show
nothing unusual. e ix deelared to have been without dixability upon discharge
from the service.

The complaint in this case rests chiefly upon disability resulting from exposure
while at work and inadequate food. No incidents of phveical brutality are
recounted. Ior reasons which have beeiy explained in genera) Opinion annexed
to my ecarlier report dealing with maltreatment cases, I do not regard s ach genera!
conditions of camp life in Germany as constituting maltreatment within the
meaning of the Treaty of Versailles. Claimant’s recourse, if any, is before the
Board of Pen<ion Commissioners, Before this Commission the elaim fails and
must be disallowed,

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioncr.
Orrawa, December 28, 1932,
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CASE 2791—CHARLES DAVEY

Claimant was a Lance Corporal in the 3rd Battalion—Regimental No. 9666,
e enlisted in August 1914, at the age of 49 years and was taken prisoner April
24, 1015, during the second of Ypres, suffering from gas. He was released to
i{olland in March 1918 and reached England in November of that year. He is
in receipt of a 100 per cent disability pension, amounting to $100 per month,
hased on heart trouble. He was married in 1888 and has three children, none
dependent upon him for support. Prior to enlistment, he was employed as
carpenter, earning about $4.80 per day and states that he has not worked for
vears since discharge. .

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He compiains of an injury when struck
with a rifle butt over the back of the head, shoulders and knee, causing severe
headaches, loss of memory, defective hearing in the right ear and continual pain
in the left knee, starvation and Joss of parcels.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant spent his period of eaptivity at Giessen, Recklinhausen, Krew-
haimer (sic), Saltau, Lichtenhorst and Vebnemoor. While working in a stone-
quarry, he received a severe beating for not keeping up with the work and
reecived the blows from the rifle butt in the head, shoulder and knee, causing the
disabilitics which form the basis of his complaint.  He complains of stoppage of
parcels while working at Lichtenhorst and also at Vehnemoor, where he wus
engaged in cutting peat.

No medical evidence was adduced at the hearing, the record consisting of a
certificate by Dr. W. J. Corrigan indicating an enlarged heart with poor muscle,
also pain swelling in the left knee. Disability is fixed at 100 per cent. A certi-
fieate is filed by Dr. E. K. Richardson coveving the condition of claimant’s wife
due to shock and worry concerning him.  Claimant’s medical history files deal
with a heart condition, for which be reccives pension.

Claimant’s knee injury, torether with some deafness, form the basis of hiz
complaint. It will be observed that his medical history files, upon discharge,
carry the following notation. “Ear and hearing normal”. ‘There is no mention
of any knee injury in these documents, the record dealing only with the heart
condition. In the absence of more definite evidence as to the two disabilities
<tated, and having regard to claimant’s present age—66 years—I do not think
[ would be justified in finding that claimant now suffers a disability rvesulting
from maltreatment. The elaim thus fails and must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Orrawa, January 16 1933. Commissioner.

CASE 2046—BRYCE DAVIDSON

Notice of elaim was received from the above named claimant, who has com-
pleted the usual documents of claim. It appears that he wos a Private in the
2nd Battalion—Regimental No, 8538. He was taken prisoner on April 24, 1915,
at the second battle of Ypres, unwounded, and was repatriated to England in
January 1919. He complains of general maltreatment while a prisoner.

Claimant was notified to appear before the Commission at its Toronto ses-
sions on December 7, 1932, but failed to present limself. — His default has
remained unexplained. The claim must, accordingly, be disallowed for want of

prosecution,
. ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Ortawa, January 11, 1933. Commissicner.
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CASE 2710—JAMES DAVIDSON

Claimant was a Private in the 14th Battalion—Regimental No. 26187. He
-enlisted in August 1914, at the age of 29 years and was taken prisoner April 24,
1915, during the second battle of Ypres, suffering from gunshot wounds in the
chest and thigh. He was repatriated to England December 31, 1918, He is not
in receipt of a pension, was married in August 1919 and has one child. Prior to
enlistment, he was employed in a brick-yard, at about. 816 per week and is now
a “'receiver”, earning 820 per week.”

He alleged that while a prisoner he was subjected to malireatment which
has vesulted in pecuniary damage to him. e does not set out details of his
complaint in his declaration forms.

An analy=is of the evidenee reveals:—

Claimant was first taken to hospital at Ohrdruf, where his wounds were
dressed. In October 1915, he was <ent to Gottingen and was slated for work in a
salt mine but the condition of i leg exempted him from that work. In January
1916, he entered hospital for treatment to his leg and has no complaint, except
as to the foad. In Mayreh 1916, he was placed on o farm, and, for an attempted
vseape, reecived the usual 14 days’ confinement on bread and water.  From
January 1917 until the Armistice, he worked in « stone quarry where he received
uhout a dozen beatings, was compelled to wark at top speed under conditions of
exposure to cold and wet in all kinds of weather with no facilities for drying
clothes. He sufters from nervonsness and rheumatism.

No medieal evidenee was addueed at the heaving, the record consisting of
two certificates by Dr. Ray Spenee, indieating arthritis, neurasthenia and bron-
ehitix. No pereentage of disability i estimated.  Claimant's medical history
files show nothing unusual.

Claimant’s complain®s ave quite general in character and T cannot gay, from
the record, that he has sueceeded in <howing a permanent disability resulting
from maltreatment whilst a privoner (See Opinion annexed to my earlier report
upon maltreatment cases). The eonditions cemplained of may or may not give
entitlement to pension. As far as this Commission js coneerned, the claim has
not been extablished and cannot be allowed,

ERROL M., McDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, January 16, 1933,

CASE 2550—-JAMES H. DAVISON

The elaimant was o Private in the 19th Battalion—Regimental No, 161001,
He enlisted on December 29, 1915, at the age of 24 years and was taken prisoner
on October 9, 1916, unwounde 1. He was repatiiated to Fngland on December 2,
1918, and is not in receipt of pension.  He was married January 18, 1923, and
has one child. Prior to enlistment, claimant was a farmer and is stil] engaged in
the same pursuit.

Claimant was unable to appear before the Commission at its Edmonton
sessions.  He complains of maltreatment. and alleges’ that his health has been

~undermined thereby, attributing this condition to privatior and abuse, He
declares that he is nervous and suffers with his legs.

Claimant apparently spent some time at Dulmen camp and was also at the
coal mines at Bochum. There is no detailed statement of his experiences and the
record is, perhaps unfortunately for cliimant, quite incomplete.

A medical certificate of Dr. W. Merritt has been produced indicating that
claimant complains of pains in the legs and nervousness, Objectively, Dr.
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Merritt finds slight disability which he is unable upon examination to estimate.™
He iz declared to be a “ robust appearing, well developed man, heart and lungs
normal, abdominal examination negative, suffers from some pyorrhoea, deep
reflexes unexaggerated.” Clsimant’s medieal history files show iothing unusual.
He was discharged from the service ag fit.

In this state of the mecord it.is clearly impossible to reach a finding in
claimant's favour. The documents submitted would appear to show but slight
disability and it is entirely unlikely that had claimant appeared he could have
made out a ease of disability resulting from maltreatment. The claim fails and
must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner,
Orrawa, December 29, 1932,

CASE 2805—ROBERT de la GORDONDIERE .

Claimant was & Private in the 5th Battalion—Regimental No. 13414, Te
enlisted August 17, 1914, at the age of 21 years, and was taken prisoner April 24,
1915, during the sccond battle of Ypres, suffering from gunshot wound in the left:
knee. e was repatriated to ngland in December, 1918, He is in receipt of o
10 per cent disability pension, amounting to $11.50 per month, based on rheum-
atoid arthritis in ‘the left knee. e was married in April, 1920, and has one
child.  Prior to enlistment, he was employed as a bank clerk, earning $100 per
wonth, and is now employed as a letter-carrier, on part time, at $34 per month.

He alleges t! at while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which has
resulted in pecuniary damage to him.  He complains of hard lnbour at the smelt-
ing ovens for three years, without pay, including Sundays,

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was first taken to Paderborn hospital, where he remeined three
months, and was later tragsferred to Senne lager, and, after a short stay, to
Bergeborbeck (sie) and employed as o stoker on the smelting ovens. Here be
worked incessantly, with poor food, and under conditions of intense heat. He
was overcome by weakness, had fainting spells and lost greatly in weight.

daimant does not complain particularly of physieal abuse, but says he was
“hutted " about. His complaint is confined to injury to his health from over-
work and improper food.

The medical record indicates that claimant suffers from nervousness, rheum-
atism, injured left knee, with some impairment of vision. Dr. Jules A. Brien,
who certifies to the foregoing, did not appear before the Commission. Claimant's
medical history files show nothing unusual, apart from his service wounds, for
which he receives pension. _

Claimant’s disabilities, apart from his service wounds, are general in nature
and are aseribed by Tim To ovérwerk and undernourishment while o prisoner.
As explained in genceal Opinion annexed to my carlier report upon maltreatment
cuses, injury to health from sueh causes cannot be regarded as the result of mal-
freatment.  Claimant's recourse, whatever it may be, is before e Boand of
Pension Commissioners.  Before this Commission, the claim fails and must be

disallowed,
ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner.
Orrawa, January 24, 1933.
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CASE 2646—ROBERT DEMPSTER

Claimant was an Imperial reservist, who came to Canada to reside in 1912,

and was called to the colours at the outbreak of war, in August, 1914. He served

as a Corporal with the Gordon Highlanders, Regimental No. 9249, being 27 vears
of age when he enlisted.  He was taken prisoner October 26, 1914, at La Bassce,
suffering with a bullet wound in the left hip joint. He was reloased to Switzer-
Jland in the summer of 1916 and reached Iingland September 13, 1917, He is in
reecipt of a 60 per cent disability pension, based on his injured thigh. He was
married in 1912 and has three children. Prior_to leaving Canada, he was
employved as a tailor, earning 830 per week, and has since resumed that trade,
carning &1 cents per hour for a four hour day.

He aleges that while a prisoner he was <ubjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in peeuniary damage to him. He complans of being shot in the
shoulder by a German soldier while he was Iving wounded on the field, was
roughly handled and negleeted after eapture and improperly treated and operated
upon in a German hospital.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:——

Claimant lTay wounded on the field for about three days, exposed to rain and
damp. A party of Germans approached and one fired and struck the claimant
in the shoulder: an officer stopped the man from firing again.  He wag removed
to a field hospital, his elothes removed and g pair of eanvas pants and an old
hirt supplied; no dressing given. At Namur, about six days later, he received
his firct. nourishment and dressing for his wounds.  He remained here unti
February, 1916, e speaks welt of his treatment in hospital at Namur. He was
transferred to Hamburg and placed in a hospital which had formerly been a
prison, and contends that an operation was performed here with dirty instru-
ments, without anacsthetie, eausing him to faint. A week later this was repeated,
hut he did not faint the second time, e then lay for four months, unattended
by the doctor. e deseribes two further operations, performed with the use of
chloroform and details the fact of an abseesc which formed in his leg and burst.
He finally reached Gustrow and was exchanged to Switzerland.  He states that
his leg is now 24 inches short and g Hleges that his condition is due to improper
medical attention in German prison hospitals. A letter from a fellow priconier in
corroboration of his story is plad, hut only in so far as it deals with the incidents
at the time of eapture nnd namedistely after. There is no corrohoration of the
shooting nor the operations pertormed at Hamburg and claiman’t Imperial
Pension files make no mention of the meident of being <hot after ecapture,

No medieal testimony was produced nor have any medieal certificates been
filed.  Claimant’s medieal history files relate only to his service wound.

Claimant tells & very gruesome story of his treatment in German hospitals,
However rough his treatment may have been, I do not think that he has shown
that he now suffers a greater disability than he would otherwise have had. The
original wound invelved the hip joint and bone and it is diffieult to see what
could have been done that was negleeted.  Hix complaints of being left on the
field of battle far everal days does not constitute maltreatment and the incident
of being shot in the shoulder while he was Iving on the ground, would require
corrchoration, ()n. the whole, T regard the ease as one for the consideration of
the Board of Pension Commissioners.  As far as thjs Commission is concerned,
the elaim fails and must he disallowed. -

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner,
OrTawa, December 22, 1932,
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~-CASE -2783—LANCELOT CYRII: DEVONSHIRE

Claimant was a Private in the 1st C.M.R.—Regimental No. 106192. He
enlisted January 4, 1915, at the age of 23 years and was taken prisoner June 2,
1916, suffering from gunshot wounds in the left foot, right thigh and right foot. He
was repatriated to Fingland December 19, 1918. He is in receipt of a 5 per cent
Jizability pension, amounting to $15 per month, based on amputation of great
and little toes of the left foot. He was married in June, 1919, and has two
children. Prior to enlistment, he was engaged in farming and is now a hospital
patient, since January, 1932. Before that, he was employed as a clerk, earning
315 per month.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of having been forced
to work while his foot was unhealed, starved, medical negleet while ill and non-
receipt of parcels. '

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was a stretcher case after capture, received a dressing at a filed
~tation and had the great toe amputated st o temporary hospital. He was taken
to Ixighen monastery hospital where he remained until June 13, but states that
lie received no treatment. He finally arrived at Julich hospital where he was
kept until the latter part of October. He then went to Trier until Christmas.
e was next sent to Gicssen where he stayed until April, 1917. His complaint
chiefty centres around the treatment received at Giessen. He alleges that due
to moculations given him without steiilization, he has contracted disease which,
he states, could have been contracted in no other way, Claimant does not recite
other instances of maltreatment but confines himself to the inoculations to which
he attributes the disease.

The medical record consists of a certificate by Dr. W, A, Gardner, which
mdicates the amputations of toes on the left foot and fixes the disability at trom
25 per cent to 50 per cent, and a certificate from Dr. D. F. Melntyre indicating
the presence of disease, with a 50 per cent disability. Neither of these physicians
appearced before the Commission. The possibility of contracting the disease,
whieh did not become apparent until March, 1932, is commented upon by the
medical adviger to the Commission, and must be regarded as quite iinprobable.
While elaimant declares that he suffered therefrom since 1920, it is significant
that the condition was first diagnosed in 1932.

This case is quite unusual in some respects. Claimant confines his com-
plaint to disease which he avers was contracted through inoculations received
in Germany, either by deliberate intent or gross carelessness on the part of the
German medieal officers. The ailment, if indeed he suffers from it, has so preyed
npon his mind, that he is now obsessed with the thought of it and the possible
comsequences. 1 am informed and I believe that claimant has no ground for his
upprehension and, at all events, I am quite unable to find that, were the con-
dition as stated, there was any deliberate attempt to injure claimant in the
manner stated.  Such a speeulation would be too terrible and is beyond the bounds
of reasonable probability. Claimant has not zueceeded in making out a case
and the elaim must be disallowed.

ERROI M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner,

Ortawa, January 9, 1933.
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CASE 2761:SWILLIAM ‘CREWS DEXTER- -

Claimant was a Private in the 3rd Battalion—Regimental No. 18767. He
cnlisted in August, 1914, at the age of 22 years and was taken prisoner April
24, 1915, during the second battle of Ypres, suffering from gunshot wounds in
the left thigh and head. e was released to Switzerland in Septemnber, 1916, and
reached England September 11, 1917, He is in reccipt of a 20 per cent disability
pension, amounting to $26 per month for himself and family, based on his war
wounds and psychoneurosis,  He was married in December, 1921, and has two:
children.  Prior to enlistment, e was employed in a laundry, earning $16 per
week, and s now a salesman, at 8100 per month.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has rexulted in pecuniary damage to him. He did not file the usual elaim forms,
having appeared hefore the Commission at Calgary to give direet testimony,

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

After eapture, complainant reeeived field dressings and was then taken to
hospital, near Cussel, where he remained about three months,  He has no par-
ticular complaint as to the treatment in hospital, except some kicking and
shoving, about.  Upon release from hospital, he was sent {0 Gottingen, where
hie spent three months further in hospital and six months in the camp,  He wus
xent to Cologne for an operation known as a bone graft. His complaint is that
this operation should have been performed at an earlier date. He now suffers
with headaches, loss of memory, stomach dizorders and pyorrhea. The medical
advizer to the Commission pointed out to the elaimant that the best practiee is
to leave such wounds open and that the fact that the operation was delayed
conld not be considered bad practice. There is no med cal evidence of record
and claimant’s medical history files refer only to his service wounds,

There s no evidencee of maltreatment in the record.  Claimant’s contention
that the operation to his leg should have been performed at an earlier date is
untenable. 1 am of opinion that the evidenee discloses that elaimant received
every attention he could expeet from his eaptors, This case should never have
been presented to this Commission, The claim is disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Commissioner. Y
Orrawa, December 22, 1932,

"

CASE 2652-JOIIN DORMAN

e

Claimant was a lance-corporal in the 28th Battalion—Regimental No.
73775, He enlisted Ocwober 24, 1914, at the age of 24 vears and was taken
prisoner June 6, 1916, suffering from injuries due to having been blown up and
buried. He was injured in the left side, back and abdomen, internal injuries
and bones broken in the lower part of the back and minor bruises and cuts. He
eseaped from Germany to Holland in February, 1918, He is in reccipt of a 3
10 per cent. disability pension, amounting to $10 per month, based on lumbo-
sacral arthritis and vertral hernia,  He was married June 25, 1923, and has two i
step-children.  Prior to enlistment he was employed on steet constriction, at P
$125 per month, and after discharge tried various jobs but is now employed as a

janitor, at $80 per month.
He allogqs that while a- prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of lack of medical

attention, being forced to work while unfit, beaten with rifles, kicked and forced
to stand to attention.
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~ An anelysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was severely injured before capture and it was only with the
assistance of his comrades that he was able to mareh into captivity. He received
no treatment for his injuries but was taken to Dulmen, where he remained three
months, i'e states that bs made several complaints to the guards concerning
hix conditicn but was only given a cursory examination. He was next taken to
Engers, wheve he was foreed to work on bridge construction, e, with others,
refused to work and asked to be allowed to sce the docior. They were com-
pelled to stand to attention and when he collapsed was kicked up again and
beaten with rifie butts.  Unable to carry on at work, he received further punish-
ment and had to stand with nose and toes touching a wall until nine o’clock at
night and wes also given solitary confinement on bread and water., He made
an attempt to escape, was recaptured, confined and then sent to Wahn, returned
to Lingers, given fourteen days’ further confinement and was beaten by the sen-
triecs. Ie states that he was continually asking for medical treatment, which
was refused. At the time of his eseape, a fellow-prisoner, who got away with
him, J. S, Home, recites in a declaration (a copy is on file) that Dorman’s kip
got =0 corc he was unable to travel. Ife fell into a gravel pit one night. The
pain i hi= hip was very severe after the accident. C. A. Scott, another fellow-
prizoner, recites, in & declaration (copy on file), that in the fall of 1916 Dorman
attempted to eseape and after he was captured he complained of the pains in
the hip and back which rendered it impossible for him to work.

Dr. Thomas Miller appeared and testified that laimant first consulted him
i May 1929, He produced an X-ray photograph which shows an exostosis in the
pelvie bone probably due to a break or of traumatic origin (opinion of Dr. W. M.
Carr, who identified the photograph, by statutory declaration). This injury, he
admitted, wonld not be likely to be discovered by the German doctors without an
N-ray. There was a difference of opinion between the witness and the medieal
adviser to the Commission as to whether the X-ray indieates proof of injury or
could have been caused otherwise. Dr. Miller also supplies medical certificates
in which he finds indication of wmbilical hernia, seoliosis in the left lumbo-gacral
region and states that the spine is very rigid. o finds evidence of a fracture of
the left ischium which has produced a bony spur projecting into the pelvie eavity,
which eauses considerable distress in walking or in lifting.  He fixes the disability
1t 50 per ecent. The record further contains a certificate of character from General
Faibury and declarations by two fellow prisoners as to conditions in Germany,
corroborating claimant’s story as to beatings and medical neglect.

The military record contains a lengthy statement made by eluimant upon
vepatriation which is general in nature and recites instances of maltreatment
neted out to other prisoners without particular reference to himself. IHe says
that us to Dulmen he has no particular complaint except a< to the lack of food
and the non-receipt of parcels. At Engers, he complains of over-crowding, lack
of food, the standing to attention, confinement, and says he was allowed to sce
a doctor but once. He sums up his experiences at Engers however by saying
“on the whole, our treatment at Engers was not so bad, and 1 think we might
Lave heen worse off 7,

As will be seen from the foregoing analysis of a very voluminous record, there
ix great doubt as to the nature and extent of claimant’s injury. His complaint is
confined to lack of treatment for his back and hip while in Germany. The
evidence shows that the condition complained of weuld only show under X-ray
examination, and it can hardly be termed maltreatment by his captors to have
made him work when his injury was not manifest, Again, when claimant
aflempted to escape he was injured by a {all which he admits aggravated the
condition. This can hardly be charged to the Ciermans. A comparison of claimant’s
statement upon repatriation, when c¢vente were fresh in his mind, with his testi-
mony given at the hearing would show that in the former document he referred to
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cvery littlé maltreatment-to- himself-— His-statement. refers_to rough treatment
to other prisoners. After very careful consideration of the record, I have reached
the conclusion that claimant has not sueceeded in showing that denial of medical
treatment. and neglect of his condition has inereased his disability, and this is the
hasiz of his complaint. Claimant’s recourse, if any, is before the Board of
Pension Commissioners. On the whole the claim fails and must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissionner,
Oprawa, January 4, 1933,

CASE 2801—WILLIAM T. DOWNING

Claimant was a Private in the 13th Battalion—Regimental No. 426327. He
vidisted on January 11, 1915, at the age of 27 years, and was taken prisoner on
October 8, 1916, unwounded. He was repatriated to Fngland on November 30,
1918, He deelares that he is in receipt of a disability pension of 4 per cent, based
upon rhenmatism (decision pending re nerve deafness). He was married Nov-
ember 4, 1920, and has two children.  Prior to enlistment, elaimant was farming
and worked for the City of Moose Jaw, at $3 per day. He has since worked, at
times, as a coach cleancr, with the C.P.R., at from 44 cent to 47 cents per hour.

Claimant alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment
whi-h has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. Ie complains generally of
hea v work, exposure to the weather, starvation, punishinent parades with
resuftant injury to his health.

Claimant’s documents were filed tao late to give him an opportunity to be
neard before the Commission during its last Western sessions.  From his state-
ment of claim and a supplementary affidavit setting forth his expeoriences it
appears that he spent. the period of his captivity at Dulmen camp and at the coal
mines at Bochum.  He speaks of no particular physieal brutality but attributes
a rhewmatie condition to the exposure and hard Iabour. He was denied medical
attention when ill, and reccived no treatment for a condition of deafness which
developed whilst he was a prisoner. He complaing of deafness and nervous dis-
orders.

The medical record indicates that claimant. suffers from articular rheumatism.
His pereentage of disability is stated at from 20 per cent to 40 per cent in certi-
ficate of Dr. H. Gordon Young, who, however, makes no mention of impaired
hearing or nervons disorders. - Claimant’s medical history files show nothing un-
nsnal. He was apparently diseharged as fit.  His pension fles refer to rheuma-
ti=m, dental earies, and nerve deafness (under consideration).

In view of the detailed statement contained in the affidavit filed by claimant,
I do not think that, even if claimant had been heard, he would have been able to
-how that his present disabilities are the result of maltrentment whilst a prisoner.
His rheumatic condition may possibly be attrributed to the nature of the work
he wax compelled to do, but T do not think that it necessarily follows that such
condition results from maltreatment. ‘I'hiere is no medical evidence to support.
the elaim of deafness and nervousness. Claimant's recourse, if any, is before the
joard of Pension Commissioners.  Before this Commission, the claim fails and
nust be disallowed.

FRROL M. McDOQUGALL,
Commissioner.

Orrawy, January 30, 1933,
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e~ —..CASE_2578—HARRY FARL DROPE, M.M.

Claimant was & Private in the P.P.C.L.I.—Regimental No, 475823. He

enlisted August 2, 1815, at the age of 26 years and was tilen prisoner
June 2, 1916, suffering from slight shrapuel wounds in the legs. He escaped from
Germar - August 19, 1918. He is not in receipt of a pension. ‘The military
records indicate that he received a gratuity of 875, due to flat feet. He was mar-
ried in April, 1919, and has four children. Prior to enlistment, he was manager
for « life insurance company, earning $225 per month and is now in business, at
a =salary of about $400 per month.

He alleges that while a prisoner, he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of lack of food, expo-
-ure, foreed Inbour and lack of medical treatment while i}, '

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Taken first to Dulmen, he has no complaint except as to the food. Afir
two months, he was transferred to Goldop (Heidelberg) and placed on pick and
hovel work.  His complaints as to conditions here are general in nature being as
to food, housing conditions and general treatment. He escaped beatings, had
long hours of labour and did not get any pareels for months, The camp buildings
were unheated and sanitary arrangement very bad.  He left camp to escape in
June, 1918, and suceceded in getting into Russia.  He complains of digestive
rroubles,

The medical record consists of two certifieates by Dr. W, I Harvie, who
Jid not appear before the Commission. Tie finds elaimant suffering from gastritis,
constipation, defeetive liver function and nervous exhaustion. He fixes the dis-
ability at 20 pereent in elnimant’s own calling.  Claimant’s medieal history files
refer to a condition of flat feet but indieate that this may have been of pre-war
origin. Lumbago is also referred to.

Claimant appears to be in excellent health and I am at a loss to understand
why the elaim was presented to this Commission.  There is no particular evidence
of maltreatment and practically no dicability has been shown. Digestive dis-
tirbanees may result from a number of causes and the medieal files indicate
that claimant was subject to constipation  before the war. T conelude that
claimant has failed to make out a case of di~ability resulting from maltreat-
ment whilst held a prisoner. The claim fails and must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner,
Orrawa, January 9, 1933.

CASE 2695—WILLIAM WRIGHT DUDLE.”

Claimant wus a Private in the 4th CMR.—Regimental No. 113194,
“ulisted Junuary 2, 1915, at the age of 21 years and was taken prisoner June 2,
1916, unwounded. He was repatriated to England December 12, 1918, He has
an appliention for pension now under consideration. He was married in Decem-
ber 1921 and has three children.  Prior to enlistment, he was & locomotive fire-
man, earning up to $94 per month and for the past two years has been idle due to
l-health.  Prior thereto he wa< employed as a labourer in bridge building.

He «lieges that while a prizoner he was subjected to maltreatment which has
resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of bad food, labour in the
coul mines, and beatings which have ieft scars.

AiC8s—7
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An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Tirst. claimant spent three months at Dulmen, but has no particular com-
plaint, He was sent to the coal mines at Ospell No. 2, where he laboured for
some 19 month-. He relates an meident wherein a German was killed due to an
aceident at the mine fur which be, and other prisoners, was blamed. They were
courtmartialled and given 30 davs’ confinement on bhread and water, nlso beaten

and claimant carries a sear near the eve as the result of a blow. Next he was .
sent to Munster No. 3. where he remained 7 months until the Armistice (Claim- 3
ant says it was 29 months, which i= elearly wrong). His chief complaint is con-
errning his stomach, o
No medieal evidence was addueed at the hearing, nor has any medieal certi- ’
ficate been filed.  Claimants medieal history files show nothing unusual.  He §
was apparvently diseharged as fit,
On clnimant’s own admission, he suffers no disability at the present time,

nor is there any medieal evidence establishing this essential fact. Claimant may o
have been under the misapprehenaion that the fact of being hield a prisoner was Q’
alone suflicient to entitle him to an award. The record docs not justify a finding
in his favour. The elaim must, accordingly, be disallowed. .
ERROL M. McDOUGATLL, it

Commissioncr. %

Or2awy, January 16, 1933,
CASE 2687—-RALPH DUSENBURY *

"

Claimant was w Private in the 21st Battalion—Regimental No. 58081, He [j‘:‘;v
enlizted November §, 1904, at the age of 17 vears and was taken prisoner June 2,

i

1916, unwounded. He escaped in July 1917, to Holland. At the time of hearing |}
. he had an applieation for pension pending, was married in Augvst 1922 and has |
two children. Prior to cl\listxvlm?ﬂ;p was at =chool and is now a factory worker,
carning 40 cents per lour,
He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which has
resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of an injury to his eye due B
to a blow, and a weakened knee resulting from a blow with « rifle butt, leaving

2

it permanently weakendd. ]

An anplysis of the evidenee reveals:—- Zj

Claimant first spent a few months at Dulmen and was then transferred to

Duishurg. Here, he attempted to escape, was recaptured, and received a beating ¥

4 in whicir his knee was knorked out of Joint by a blow from a rifle butt.  His left. £
eye was also injured.  He then served seven days’ solitary confinement. He was

then sent to Munster No. 1 and placed at work in the stone quarries.  After two ,'%

' or three months, he sueeceded in making his eseape, The knee goes out of place 3

periodieally and the sight of the left eyve is practieally gone. Claimant made a
statement upon return to England but did not tell of the beating in which his
knee and eve were injured, ‘

No medical testimony was addueed at the hearing, the record consisting of
a certificate by Dr. W. H. Birks, stating that he treated claimant in 1931 for
dislocation of semi-lunar (sic) cartillage of right. knee. ‘This disloeation has
recurred several times sinee.  Impaired vision in left eye. Disability rated at 15
per cent.  Claimant’s medieal history files refer to a knee and cye injury, but
his record upon discharge contains the following comment: “This soldier is in
perfect physical condition and fit for eategory A2, but Headquarters’ authority
says he niust not be permitted to return overseas under any cireumstances”
(beeause he was an escaped prisoner).
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A perusal of the statement made by elaimant upon repatriation does not
show any particular maltreatment. 'The injury to his eye and knee, stressed in
his testimony, is not. even referred to and he refers to the treatment generally as
good. Tt is hardly necessary to discuss the case further. Claimant has failed to
discharge the burden of showing a present disability resulting from maltreat-
ment whilst a prisoner.  The elaim, accordingly, fails and must be disallowed.

FRROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner,
Orrawy, January 19, 1933.

CASE 2644-—CAPTAIN DAWSON W. BLLIOIT

Claimant waz a Licutenant in the 27th Battalion. He enlisted in the latter
part of 1914 and was 1ppointed to the Overseas Battalion February 1, 1915, at
the age of 31 years, He was taken prisoner April 5, 1916, wounded in the head
and ruptured. He was transferred to Swit.erland in May, i918 and reached
ngland in December of that vear. He ix in receipt of a5 per cent disability
pension, amounting tc 84 per month, based on deafucss.  He was married in
1907 and has two children.  Prior to enlistment, he was emploved as an assistant
credit manager, at $4,600 per annum and is now retired.

He alleges that while n prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which has
resulted in pecuniary damage to him.  He complains of long periods of solitary
confinement which has eaused nervous disorders.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was first taken to Duisburg hospital for two weeks and then sent
to Giutersloh, where he remained until July, 1916, From there to Crefeld, where
he attempted to eseape, was recaptured, and served five months solitary confine-
ment. After release he was sent to Schwarmstadt., e was here four months and
began to suffer from insommia. Transferred to Freiburg, he suffered with his
nerves due to frequent allied bombardments. He was given clectrie-ray treat-
ments at Freiburg University and finally passed for exchange to Switzerland.

There i= no medical evidence of record, not even the usual certificate o” a
physician.  Claimant’s medieal history files show nothing unusual. His deafness
< referred to and certain post discharge disabilities are shown, Iis general
Lealth is declared to have been good upon discharge from the service,

Solitary confinement for § months as punishment for an attempted escape,
with resultant injury to clnimant’s nervous system and general health seems to be
the basis of this elaim. In addition conditions at Frieburg camp are said to have
been very trying. No medieal evidence has been adduced showing present dis-
ability. It is clearly impossible to reach a finding in claimant's favour. His
recourse, if any, is elsewhere. The elaim fails and must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioner.
trrawa, December 28, 1932,

CASE 2617—EINER CARIL ERICKSON

Claimant was born in Iceland and naturalized in Canada in December, 1920.
He arrived in Canada .« February, 1911 and enlisted in the 78th Battalion July
11, 1916, at the age of 33 years—Regimental No. 826755. He served as a Private
and was taken prisoner August 11, 1918, suffering with gunshot wound through the

610857}
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right lung.  He was repatriated to England December 7, 1918, He is in receipt
of n 10 per cent disability pension, amounting to $10 per month, based on his
chest wound.  He was married in 1930 and has no children.  Prior to enlistment,
he was a donkev-engine driver, enrning from $6 to 88 per day and now is em-
ploved ns a night watehman, at $4.70 per day. .

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which has
resulted in pecuniary damage to him.  He complains that he received no medien!
attention for hix wounded chest. for several weeks after eapture. He was com-
petled to work while still suffering from the wound and was struck with rifle butt,
causing haemorrhage and further illness,

An analysis of the evidenee reveals:—

Taken to &1 Quentin, claimant was given a dressing and sent on to Mons,
where he was foreed to walk from the station to the hospital and wax then foreed
to stand in the rain for § or 6 hours; was in hospital for three weeks and was then
removed to Giessen,  Here he was refused treatment and was sent out to work
at loading cord wood.  He only lasted one day at this work, beeause the sent:y
struek him in the back with a rifle butt, kicking him down, and a haemorrhage of
the lung commenced.  He was allowed to lie in his bunk for a week without
medical attention, The Armistice was signed shortly after and he eventually
1eached Fngland, e

Dr. Robert I, Greer testified that he had been treating elaimant for several
vears, He finds that there is no expansion in the rvight side of the chest at all due
to the eficet of the abzeess in the lung,  He says that under proper treatment and
rest the wound should have completely healed and states that the blow reeeived
would be ealenlated to retard recovery and bring on haemorrhage, He fixes the
disability at 50 per eent. An X-ray report is on file. L

Claimant was a prisoner for about 4 months,  Apparently ¢ weeks after he
had been wounded he was put to work, e contends that his wound, while it
may have given the appearance of being healed, was not so in fact and that it @
wits maltreatment to send him to work in that condition and to knock him down
when he couldn’t do the work. The evidence shows that he was medieally |
examined before being sent to work and deelared fit. Thiz may have been a grave .3
crror of judgment on the part of the doetor, but does not, in my view, constitute
maltreatment. T am not convineed that elnimant’s expericenes in Germany have
resulted in a greater disability than he would otherwise have had, The claim is
one for the consideration of the Board of Pension Commissioners.  As far as th,
Commiszion is concerned, it fails and must be disallowed. (3

FRROL M. McDOUGALL, :
Commissioner, ;

o e

b ain

Orrawy, December 22, 1932,

CASE 2696—CHARLES H. M. EVANS

Claimant was a Sergeant in the 4th C.M.R.—Regimental No. 109330, He

enlisted November 27, 1914, at the age of 38 years, and was taken prisoner

June 2, 1916, suffering from, shell shock  He was released to Holland in April,

1918, und reached England November 23 of that year. 1le is in receipt of a 40

per cent disability pension, amounting to $46 per month for himeelf and family,

based on eardine enlargement, hypertension and neurosis.  He was married in

‘ ])occm.bor, 1897, and has now six children. Prior to enlistment, he was employed
ax an iron founder at 830 per week, and is now unemploved, due to ill health.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which

has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of having heen tied to

a post, had teeth knocked out by a rifle butt, starvation, and long periods of

standing to attention. )

o % o N s e 7‘ ) hnrh.r;mmrx:u«.tan'w-; Rgaw Tk mas e wn Nl
. v ,ﬂ"‘ i A 13 - - B



o e

FINAL REPORT L)

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

First at Dulmen, where he remained about a year, claimant recites an
incident of having been tied to a post for two hours because a guard saw him
throwing out food which claimant claims was unfit to eat. This occurred in cold
March weather. e also states that he had teeth knocked out by a guard for
not obeying an order. Next, at Minden, he says he has no cmnp!{lint‘, except as
to food and punishment parades every Sunday, consisting of long periods of
«anding to attention. At Saltau, for five days, he was then gent to Bohmte,
where, upon arrival, he was forced to stand to attention all night,  Attempts
were made to foree him to work, and he was daily made to stand to attention.
He finished his eaptivity at farm labour, without particular incident, until he
was exchanged to Holland.

There is no medieal evidence of record, not even the usual certifieate of «
physieian,  Claimant’s medical history files 1elate o heart condition and
NeNrosis,

Claimant is now a man of 57 vears and, after careful examination of the
record. I have reached the conclusion that his case is purely pensionable in nature.
le infers that his period of captivity has induced the heart and nervous infee-
tions. irom whieh he now suffers.  While this may be so, I do not find that any
particular maltreatment was the eause. It 1s more the result of general condi-
rions of camp life in Germany (see Opinion annexed to my carlier report on
Dadtreatment eases). On the whole, the claim fails and must be disallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
('ommissioner.
Oprawa, January 16, 1933

CASE 2456—EARL (. FANNING

Notice of claim wag filed on behalf of the above named claimant, but the
wenal documents of elaim have never been completed. From his medieal history
filex, it would appear that he enlisted on September 28, 1015, was taken prisoner
on September 15, 1916, wounded in the back, right arm and right side, and
repatriated to England on June 15, 1918, medically unfit, He was in receipt of
2 30 per cent disability pension, but appears to have died on Scptember 12, 1927,
which information was only received reeently. ‘There can be no claim i such
circumstances,

FRROL M. McDOUGALL,

("ommissioncer.
Orrawa, December 28, 1932,

CASE 2637-—ANDREW FLEMING FINNIE

Claimant was a Private in the 13th Battalion—Regimental No. 24250. He
enlisted in August, 1914, at the age of 25 years, and was taken prisoner April
24, 1915, during the sceond battle of Ypres, suffering from a flesh wound in c:t}f
of right leg and gas. He was repatrinted to England January 11, 1919, e i«
in receipt of a 5 per cent disability pension, amounting to $3.35 per month.
hased on chronic bronehitis. e is unmarried. Prior to enlistiment, he was

employed as a machinist, earning $4.76 per day, and has been unemployed since
the summer of 1931, when he worked as 8 labourer,
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He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment whicl
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of being forced to work
over heated furnaces where ol fumes would overcome him and aused him to
collapse, but he was kicked and beaten back to work. e now suffers with
stomneh trouble and dizziness,

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Held prisoner for more than three years and eight months in Germany,
claimant confines his complaint to the last twenty months which he spent at
Weitzr, working at an oil-refinery in an izolated spot. Here, with other prisoners
and civilinn prison conviets, he was compelled to work over a hot furnace forcing
oil sand through holes in a conveyer. The fumes were averpowering and on several
oceasions he faiuted. When he revived he would be beaten and kicked until he
returned to work. ¥inally about a week before tue Armistice he collapsed entirely
and was transferred, as a streteher ense, to Holland and cventually to England.

The medical record consists of certificates by Dr. G. 1, Kearney, who finds
claimant to be suffering with a lung condition, heart enlarged and weakened and
an enlarged liver, He fixes the disability at 100 per cent. Dr. D), W. McKay
certifies to attendances upon claimant in 1927 for throat aad bronehitis, and
Dr. H. MeGregor certifies to attendance on claimant in 1921-22 for bronchitis
and a:thamatic attacks. None of these doctors gave evidence before the Com-
mission.  Certifieates are also filed by former officers ns to the character of the
claimant.  Ths medical history files relate to a condition of chronic bronchitis
for which he receives pension,

As will be scen elaimant’s complaint is of an occupational character. While
the work he was compelled (o do was of a distressing nature the evidence does
not satisfy me that his present disabilities result therefrom. It must not be over-
looked that elaimant had been hadly gussed when captured and his chest condition
may well be the result thereof.  Claimant has failed to discharge the burden of
showing a present disability resulting from maltreatment. s recourse, if any,
is clsewhere.  Before this Commission, the elaim fails and must he disallowed.

ERROL M. MeDOUGALL,

Commissioner.
Orrawa, December 27, 1932.

CASE 2551—WILLIAM FOOTTIT

Claimant was a Private in the dth C.M.R.---Regimental No. 113220, He
enlisted in January 1915, at the age of 22 vears and was taken prisoner June 2,
1915, unwounded. e war repatriated to England December 12, 1918, He is not
in receipt of pension, was married in December 1919 and has two childven.  Prior
to enlistment, he was employed as a farm Inbourer, earning 820 per month and
board and is now engaged in carpentering, at 40 cents per hour, but is unable to
wark steadily due to illness.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment. which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him.  He complains of ill-health due to
treatment while a prisoner but does not give details in his claim papers.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—-

Claimant was firgt taken to Dulmen, where he remained six weeks. e has
no speeial complaint as to treatment there, but, after transfer to Gescke (sic)
cement factory, he began to experience difficulties.. Here he was given fourteen
days’ cells for an attempted escape, fed on bread and water. He was physically
unable to do the required work due to stomach trouble.  The howrs were long,
with 24 hour duty at week-ends. The work, lifting heavy stones in a quarry,
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<hovelling hot lime so that they worked in « cloud of dust continually, has caused
him now to suffer shortness of breath and stomach disorders, He contracted
influenza n @lm Fuii of 1917 and was given no medieal treatment.

No me(.ll‘cal testimony was adduced at the heaving, the record consisting of
several certificates. Two by Dr, D). 8. Johnstone, indicate neurasthenia and gas-
tric 1 curosis.  He fixes the disability at from 30 per cent to 50 per cent. A certi-
ficate by Dr. J. B. Ritehie, who examined claimant in September 1930, indieates
svmptoms of chronie duodenal uleer and apparently cured pulmonary tuberculosis.
A cortifieate by Dr. A, M. Miller recites that he treated claimant, about 1925, for
aeute gastritis,  The military records indicate that the application for penzion
i« still under advisement.

The record does not diselose such maltreatment as would induce the condi-
rion now complained of by claimant. Whatever disability he may now suffer
i probably due to general conditions of camp life in Germany and is almost
certainly nutritional in origin, Tor reasons which have been explained in Opinion
annexed to my earlier report upon maltreatment ceases, T do rot regard this as
constituting maltreatment within the relevant sections of the T'reaty of Versailles.
Claimant's recourse, if any, is clsewhere, Before this Commission, the claim fails
and must be dizallowed.

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,
Commissioncr.
Oprawa, January 10, 1933.

CASE 2728—HERBERT FRETWELL

Claimant was a Private in the 7th Battalion—Regimental No. 16888. e
enlisted in August 1914, at the age of 24 vears, and was taken prisoner April 24,
1915, during the sceond battle of Ypres, suffering from a gunshot wound in the
right. forearm and a touch of gas. He was repatriated to lngland December 7,
1018, He is in receipt of a 15 per eent disability pension, amounting to $15 per
month, based on gastric ulcer. He had been married in June 1913 and has one
child, now 18 years of age. Priov to enlistment, he was employed as a cement
finisher, carning about £3.75 per day, -and i now unemployed. Previously
Jid odd jobs at labouring, carning, at most, 2540 per day.

He all~ges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment. which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. e complains of abuse by a German
wuard after capture beeanse he was unable to keep his place on the mareh, and
was shot in the left thigh. He was exposed to the wet while lying wounded, and
upon arrival at hospital was given no medical attention.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—-

On the march to Roulers, after eapture, the column was seattered by o
(ierman battery coming into aetion, and claimant was kicked and beaten by a
sentry for lagging. He heard a shot and next thing he knew there was a hole in
his thigh, bleeding profusely. He received but little attention in hospital at Roul-
ers and was taken to Paderborn, where he remained in hospital until July. Next
sent to Senne lager No. 3, where on one oceasion all prisoners were forced to
stand to attention in the snow until 4 am. His chief complaints regarding this
camp are as to the food and exposure. At Minden, he received Red Cross parcels,
and was frequently in hospital with stomach trouble. The parcels were often
held back and beeame unfit to eat when received, He spent a short time at Her-
ford, working at unloading coal for a brewery, but eventually landed at Fried-
erichsfeld, where he tells of an order to lay the beds in the open where they
beeame wet, and several influenza patients died as the resnlt. A statement as to
this is filed with the military records. From there he was sent to work at Gossen-
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baum, at a piano faetory aid again placed at unloading coal trucks, contracted
a cold, but reecived no medieal trentment. Here he complains that his tunic
was taken from him and his pareels withheld.

Dr. Thomas MePherson appeared and testified that he had treated elaimant
sinee June 1930, He performed two operations for gastrie uleer. He also fur-
nishes n eertificate covering the stomaech conditions and fixes disability at from

40 per cent to 60 per cent. A deelaration of Walter J. Pearson is filed, attesting to
claimant’s pre-war residence in Canada, Claimant’s medieal history files refer to ]
his stomach condition, and deseribe his serviee and other wounds as constitu- o
ting o negligible disability, )

Claimant complains chiefly of the wound in the hip reecived after eapture,
when he declares he was deliberately shot by o guard.  His version of the affair
is rather vague and, to extablish o unusual an incident, some corroboration
would be necessury.  Moreover, ns far ax the medieal record goes, the disability

hr A

b

resulting from the wound is insigniticant,  Claimant’s own physician makes no %
mention of it andd confines his statements to a gastrie condition. 1t is to be %
ohserved that elaimant was «uffering with his stomach immediately after eapture. g)i
1t ix entively likely that the condition now present is nutritional in origin and E
cannot be regarded as the result of maltreatment whilst a prizoner. 1 regard i
' the caxe ax one for the consideration of the Board of Pension Commissioners. '3
Before this Commission the elaim fails and must me disattowed. :
FRROL ML MeDOUGALL, : §
Commissioncr, A
Orrawas, December 28, 1932, é%
03

1
CASE 2775--FRED FROST =
A
L
Claimant was a Private in the 7th Battalion--Regimental No. 16309, He .
enlisted in August 1914, at the age of 30 years and was tuken prisoner April et
24,1015, during the =ceond battle of Ypre:, unwounded but slightly gassed. He )
was repatrinted to Enpland in December 1918 He s not in reccipt of pension. 4
was married in July 19200 and has two clatdren. Prior to enlistment, he was ;
employed as a labourer, earning up to $3 per dey and is now a road foreman, E
carning $110 per month, ~
He alleges that while 2 prisoner he was <ubjeeted to maltreatment. swhich K
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. e does not speeify the grounds o
of complaint in hix statutory declaration, ¢
An analvsis of the evidenee reveals:--. ;
Claimant wax taken to Giessen to which eamp he remained attached for the *

whole period of his eaptivity, e was first sent to a stone quarry, where three

men were injured. The whole party refused to earry on and were given five 24
. days solitary confinement.  He speaks particularly of two years spent in an iron ;3
foundry at Giesselwekschapt (sie), where he was compelled to handle pig iron ]
ore, twelve hour shifts, with 24 hour duty at the week-ends. The work was very
hard and the food insufficient, and had it not been for the pareels received, the
prisoners could not have survived, Finally, he could earry on no longer and was 5
sent to a farm at Hochstat, where he remained fifteen months, IHe was kicked 2
and beaten into uneonsciousness hecaus: he failed to salute an officer quickly i
cnough and retalinted when the officer struck him. e complains that he was o5
kicked about the head, neck and shoulders from which he now =uflers pain in ]

the back, neck and chest.
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There is no medical evidence of record, not even the usual certifieate of a
physician.  Claimant’s medical history files contain a statement by elaimant that
he hurt his left side by letting fall a bar of iron while a prizoner. In a statement
made upon repatriation he recites instances of maltreatment inflicted upon other
prizoners.  He also states he was kicked and punched by a sentry for talking to
a fellow-prisoner sbout Italy’s joining the Allies, but makes no reference to the
heating consequent upon his negleet to salute the officer.

Cluimant has not established any definite divability resulting from maltreat-
ment,  He speaks of pains in the shoulders and chest, which he attributes to
the beating referred to. I eannot sav, from the record, that the conneetion
between the incident and a present disability has been shown, nor can it be
inferred.  Claimant’s recourse, if any, is before the Board of Pension Commis-
<toners,  Before this Commission, the elaim fails and must be disallowed.

ERROI, M, McDOUGALIL,
Commissioner,
Orrawy, December 30, 1932

CASE 2530—WALTER FULLER

Claimant was a Private in the 2nd Battalion—Regimentat No, 18642, e
elisted’in August 1914, at the age of 18 vears and was taken prisoner April 24,
1915, during the second battle of Ypres, slightly gassed. He was repatriated
to England December 24, 1918, He is in receipt of a 25 per cent disability pen-
<ion, amounting to $32.50 per month for himself and family, based on neuras-
thenia, - e was-marvied-in August 1928 and has_two children.  Prior to enlist-

ment, he was employed as a locomotive fireman, carning 3150 per month but haus.

heen unable to work for the past two years due to illness, -

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to nuh’f‘r(mtmont, which has
resulted in pecuniary damage to him. e complains of lack of food, confinement.
exposire, heavy labour and beatings with rifle butts,

An analysig of the evidence reveals:—

('laimant was first placed at farm work out of Giessen and for refusing to
work after supper, was confined in strafe barracks and made to sit on a stool
frora morning till night.  Next he was sent to Vehnemoor, where he has no com-
plaints.  He was then taken to Bokelah, where he remained ¢ . months, H'or(',
while employed at laying fertilizer and laying track, he, with others, complained
of the severity of the task and asked to sce the Commandant. This was refused
and they were driven, under rifle fire, out to the moors. He states one man was
killed: Tried for mutiny at Hanover, the prisoners involved were sentenced to
ten years hard labour and taken to the fortress at Cologne.  While suffering fmm
dysentery and unable to rise, he was set upon by guards and placed in a straight-
iacket for three hours. After ten months imprisonment, he was taken to Wilhelm-
“haven, where he remained some nine months but received no maltreatment. At
Ostenholzenmoor, he wag stripped, made to place sods on his head and run aroun
the square. ‘Thiz occurred in October and he contends that he contracted a cold
which developed into chronie bronehitis. Claimant finished his period of cap-
tivity at Vehnemoor and at Saltau, without incident.

The medical record consists of a certificate of Dr. A, Greenaway, who did
not appear before the Commission. He finds a condition of under-nourishment
and fixes the disability at 60 per cent. Claimant’s medical history files appéar
to indieate a condition of general debility upon discharge.

I am inclined to regard claimant’s case as more a matter for the consideration
of the Board of Pension Commissioners than ef this Commission.  He was
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undoubtedly subjected to harsh treatment, but the impression is created that
this may have been due, in part at least, te the actions of the prisoncrs phem-
sclves, particularly at Bokelah, where the incident occurred for which elaiman:
was tried and condemned to ten years vard Inbour (ten months of which he
<crved).  Aets of so called mutiny on the part of prisoner§ may and must be
~uppressed as the eaptor deems expedient and 1 do not think that the recor.
~hows that the punishment inflicted went beyond reasonable bounds. Claimant
has thus failed to discharge the burden of showing a present disability resulting
from maltreatment.  The elaim must, aceordingly, be disallowed.

ERROIL M. McDOUGALL,
Orrawa, January 9, 1933, Commissioner.

CASE 2780—GLEORGE GAMAGE

Claimant was a Private in the 44th Battalion—Regimental No. 865955. He
enlisted Mareh 24, 1917, according to his attestation paper although in his
evidence he says 1946, Ie was then 24 years of age. He was taken prisoner
August 23, 1917, suffering with slight shrapnel wounds in both legs. He was
repatriated to England Novembor 24, 1918, He is in receipt of a 30 per cent dis-
ability pension, amounting to &45 per month for himself and family, based on
Juodens] wleer, He was married in December, 1918, and has four children.  Prior
to enlistment, he was employed as a labourer, carning $60 per month and is now
unemployed but had been with a dairy company, at $26 per week.

He alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which
has resalted in pecuniary damage to him. He complains of bad food, forced
lubowr while ill. exeessive inaculations, that he was beaten and kicked, resulting
i pervous_trouble and failing evesight.

An analysis of the evidence reveals:— B I .

Claimant went through Dulmen and Friederichsfeld camps and landed at
the Irupps works at Oberhausen.  He remained here for more than a year work-
ing at firing boilers.  While ill, he refused to work at the hoilers and received a
heating at the hands of the guards with a rifle and was also kicked. He was
under the doctor’s cave for five weeks, saw him every three days and states that
he was given an inoculation upon the occasion of every visit until he received
some 16 or 17 inoculations in all.  is nerves and eyesight are now affected as
the result of his treatment,

No medical evidence was adduced at the hearing, the record consisting of
a certifieate from Dr. S, B. Walker, who certifies as to the duodenal uleer with
obstruction followed by gastro-enterostomy. He fixes the disability at 30 per
cent. A report from the Department of Pensions and National Health discloses
that the left eve was found to be defective in vision upon examination by a
=pecialist, who concluded that any defect was not due to stoking furnace. Since
December, 1924, there is a record of complaint of gastric symptoms and some
recent bronehial trouble,  Claimant’s medical history files show nothing unusual,
referring only to the stomach condition.

In these circumstances, I am unable to reach a finding in claimant’s favour.
He has quite failed to show that any disability from which lie now suffers results
from maltreatment whilst he was a prisoner of war. Impaired vision is advanced
as a cause of entitlement, but the record does not justify any finding in regard
thereto.  Whatever gastric condition claimant may be suffering from must be
regarded as nutritional in origin, and is covered by pension. The claim fails
and must be disallowed,

ERROL M. McDOUGALL,

Orrawa, January 10, 1933, Commissioner.
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- CASE 2554—JOHN DARRELL GAW

Claimant was a Private in the 4th CM.R.—Regimental No. 113238. He
nlisted January 14, 1915, at the age of 18 years and was taken prisoner June
2, 1916, sufiering from gunshot wounds in the thigh and neck. He was released
1o Sswitzerland in January, 1918, and repatriated to England in March of that
vear. He is in receipt of a 50 per cent disability pension, amounting to-$37.50,
hared on wound in the left leg wich limitation of movement of the kee. He was
warried in Fugland in 1918, divorced in 1931, and remarried in Ottawa, Tecom-
ber 12, 107 There are no childven. Prior to enlistment, %& was & machinist's
apprentice, - «rning $8 per week, and since discharge was employed as telegraph
aperator, at 895 per month, but had to abandon the work due to nerves, and was
nnemployed for two years. He has been an clevatos operator for the past eight
vears, at $100 per month,

He alieges that while a prisoner he was subjreted to maltreatment which
has resulted in pecuniary damage to him. e conplains of being thrown on a
pile of rocks and struck over the head with his crutches, leaving a scar, beeause
he peeled potatoes unsatisfactorily.  Was also kicked in the back whii in hnenita!
hecause he had no gifts of soap or sugar for the guard. The treatment of his
wounds after eapture was unnecessarily rough,

An analysis of the evidence reveals:—

Claimant was taken, on a stretehes, to a dressing station, where his wounds
were first attended.  Removed tu Courtrai, he remained in hospital for a short
time and was removed to Stuttgart hospital, where he remained eight months. He
has no complaint as to the treatment exeept that it was rough. He underwent
about six operations here and apparently the German surgeons did all that was
possible for him. e was next sent to Aix-la-Chapelle and spent some time at
Limburg and Mannheim camps awaiting repatriation. His main complaint is ip
regard to an incident which oceurred at Cologne, where he was kicked in the back
by-a guard,-apparently -beeause he was-not peeling potatoes-to the-satisfaction
of the guard. He complains that his back still troubles him from this kick., e
was also beaten on another oceasion, in Cologne, by a guard to whom he had nct
siven sugar and soap from his parcels, but no ill effects appear to have resultxd
from this blow. Claimant confines his complaint to the back injury and his
nerves.  He does not contend that, due to inadequate surgieal attention, his
dizability is now greater than it would otherwise have been.

Claimant has produced no medical cvidence and relies upon the medical
history contained in his pension files. The record is substantially in accordance
with the stacements made by claimant but no particular stress is laid upon the
back injury. _ )

In this state of the record it is impossible to reach a conclusion in elaimant’s
favour. ‘There is no medical cvidence establishing any back disability and the
claimant’s pension for service wounds would appear to cover his other ailments.
Claimant told a very frank story, but T icel that he has not discharged the burden
of showing a present disability resuiting from maltreatment whilst a prisoner.
The elaim must accordingly be dizallowed. '

 ERROL M. MeDOUGALL,
Orrawa, December 16, 1932. Commussiorer.

CASE 2377—ALFRED GAWN

Claiman was a Private in the 4th C.M.R.-—Regimental No. 113239. He
enlisted in January 1915, at the age of 20 years and was taken prisoner June 2,
1916, suffering with gas. He was repatriated to England January 1, 1919. He
is in receipt of an 100 per cent disability pension, amounting to $127 per month,
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based on tubereulosis. He was married November 8, 1922, and has two children.
Prior to enlistment, he was & machinist by trade, but was railroading immedintely
hejors the war, earning 875 per month.  After discharge, he was employed with
the iv.CULP., at 8142.60 per month and is also in receipt of a service pension from

eSO

thae body, amounting to $27 per month, but has Leen a patient in the Royal
T (Oftawa Sanitavium sinee Maveh of this vear. . _ h:
e alleges that while a prisoner he was subjected to maltreatment which 5

A3

hed resulted in peeuniary damage to him.  He complains of having been eon-
stuntly overworked, starved and given bad food and of terrible living conditions.

Hii to work in coal mines and complains of the coal dust.  He had his cough ]
at thet time, notwithstanding which he was «ibjeeted to exposure and heatings 3
while working in a sugar factory. ;

An analyxis of the evidenee reveals:—-

Claimant was auite seriously gassed when captured. He was taken to Dul-
men Camp where he remained, in all, about 12 months,  He has no compiaint
as to his treatment au Dulmen,  He was then sent on to a coal mine, where
he complains that the conl dust greatly aggravated his condition and, notwith-
standing hix weakness, that he was compelled to continue work.  He made an

s 3 i
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attempt to eseape, received the usual fourteen days’ confinement and was sent &
on to Minden Cumip and returned to Dulmen, apparently his chest condition "
gradundly beeoming more serions,  He was later sent to o stone quarry, near 5
Hameln, where the work was arduous and the food very poor. e was apparently A
altached to this eamp for about three months and speaks of the accommodation 5
in barracks as unhealthy, It iz elaimant’s contention that, had he received proper
medieal attention, he would not now be 100 per cent dizsabled.  Claimant also &
apsears to have spent some time at a salt mine, not clearly identified.  He 4
e — e worked undergronndfor-a- short_time, hut refers to his treatment,-at a-sugne F5 -
factory, shortly thercafter, ns the worst feature of his period of eaptivity. He b

was beaten on several oceasions for minor breaches of diseipline, was steadily
Josing weight and appears to have been in serious condition when the Arnistice
was declared,  He complaing, in addition to hiz condition of tuberculosis, of
gastritis and nenrosiz, but admits quite frankly that he was * spitting blood when
I went into Germany.” <o that the condition was apparently advanced at that
time.

The medieal evidence indicates that elaimaat suffers from pulmonary tuber-
culosiz, his pereentage of disability being stated to be 100 per cent. Dr, D, A,
Carmichael, who certified to the foregoing, did not appear hefore the Commission.
Claimant’s mediecal history files are quite complete and show the condition of ‘
tuherculozis above referred to, for which he is in reeeipt of 100 per cent disability - 3
pension, ;

It seems elear in this case that the originating eanze of claimant’s present
malady was the gas which he received at ihe time of capture. While it is quite §
true that a man in elaimant’s condition shonld not have been compelled to do -
hard work, 1 cannot <ay that the faet that his captors disvegarded his condition
and made him work constitutes active maltreatment.  Fven had he received E
the host of care, T am not convineed that he would not still be a vietim of ‘
tuberenlosis. Viewing the case as a whole, I am inclined to think that whatever
aiggravation there may have been to elaimant’s condition, that this is the result
of general camp conditions in Germany. Tt is perhaps worthy of note that claim-
ant deelared that he had been 18 months in the salt mines, whereas in his testi-
mony this period is considerably lessened.  Claimant has thus failed to estab-
lish o present disability vesalting from maltreatment. T regavd his case as one
entirely for the consideration of the Board of Pension Commissioners.  As far
as this Commission is coneerned, the elaim fails and must be disallowed.

_ ERROL M. MeDOUGALL,
Orrawy, December 16, 1932, Commussioner.
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